
High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Tuesday, 14 February 2017

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

The internal and external auditors will be available to meet committee 
members from 6.15 to 6.30 pm. Any councillors who are not able or do 
not wish to attend the session at 6.15 pm are requested to join the 
meeting with the Executive Councillors and officers at 6.30 pm.

6 February 2017

PART 1
1. Apologies for absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 

 i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
ii) Other Interests. 

3. To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

4. Annual Audit Letter 2015/16 (Pages 9 - 24)

5. Annual Grant Certification Letter 2015/16 (Pages 25 - 26)

6. External Audit Plan 2016/17 (Pages 27 - 44)

7. External Audit - Informing the Risk Assessment 2016/17 (Pages 45 - 68)

8. Amendments to Accounting Policies (Pages 69 - 74)

9. Appointment of External Auditors - Public Sector Audit Appointments Opt-In (Pages 
75 - 106)

10. Annual Governance Statement - Progress against 2015/16 Action Plan (Pages 107 
- 118)

11. Treasury Management Update - Mid-Year Report 2016/17 (Pages 119 - 128)

12. Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2017/18 (Pages 129 - 158)

13. Internal Audit Charter (Pages 159 - 174)

Public Document Pack



14. 2016/17 Internal Audit Periodic Report September 2016 to January 2017 (Pages 
175 - 198)

15. Part 2 
To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

16. To approve the Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 199 - 200)
(Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. )

17. Buxton Crescent & Thermal Spa Project - Oral Update 
(Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee
Councillor J Pritchard (Chair) Councillor D Robins (Vice-Chair)
Councillor A Barrow Councillor C Boynton
Councillor G Claff Councillor J Douglas
Councillor L Grooby Councillor S Helliwell
Councillor N Longos Councillor R Quinn
Councillor F Sloman Councillor J Walton



`                                                              
 
 
 
 
AUDIT AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE  
 
 
Meeting: Thursday 29, September 2016 at 6.30 pm in the Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, 

Buxton 
 
Present: Councillor Pritchard (Chairman)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

 
Councillors Barrow, Boynton, Douglas, Helliwell, Quinn, Walton and Young 
(substitute for Grooby). 
 
A Stokes  - Executive Director (Transformation) 
C Hazeldene  - Finance and Procurement Manager 
V Higgins  - Information Business Partner 
S Robinson  - Principal Finance Officer (Financial Reporting) 
R Tuffrey  - Principal Regeneration Officer  
L Vernon  - Senior Officer Governance & Member Support 
 
Phil Jones and Allison Rhodes (External Audit) and Councillor Thrane were 
also in attendance. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from J Leak and Councillors Grooby and 
Sloman. 
 

17/26 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
(Agenda Item 2) 

 
 There were no declarations of interest made. 
 
17/27  MINUTES 
  (Agenda Item 3) 
  

RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2016 be approved as a 
correct record.  
 

17/28 EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
(Agenda Item 4) 

 
The Authority’s External Auditors presented the Audit Findings for the Council 
for the year ending 31st March 2016. Matters referred to included property 
valuations, pension liabilities and progress made with regards to the 
implementation of IT control recommendations.  Considerable work had also 
been completed relating to the Council’s bank reconciliation procedures which 
would help to make this a routine process requiring appropriate officer time.  
Attention was also drawn to disclosure changes identified during the audit and 
dealt with in the final set of financial statements.  Significant risks were also 
considered for which the Council had a good track record of addressing (e.g. 
financial planning and mitigating risks related to the Buxton Crescent project). 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Audit and Regulatory Committee 
Thursday, 29 September 2016  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the External Audit Update be noted. 
 

17/29  STATEMENT OF FINAL ACCOUNTS 
(Agenda Item 7) 
 
The Committee considered the final version of the Statement of Account 
2015/16. There had been no changes made to the primary statements. 

 
 RESOLVED: 

 
That the Statement of Accounts for 2015/16 be approved. 

 
17/30 KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK ASSESSMENT 

(Agenda Item 5) 
 
Following the formal annual review of the effectiveness of the Audit & 
Regulatory Committee for 2015/16, a knowledge and skills framework 
assessment had been undertaken to identify and evaluate the overall 
knowledge and skills of the committee, identify training needs and enable the 
committee to perform effectively. 

 
RESOLVED:  

 
1. That the outcome from the self-assessment against the knowledge and 

skills framework be noted.  
2.  That the priorities for training and development of the Audit Committee 

members as identified in section 10.1 of the report be agreed. 
3.  That the Councillor Support and Development Group be requested to 

develop a programme of training focussed around the priorities and 
identify appropriate providers and timescales for delivery. 

4.  That the co-option of independent members to the committee to fill the 
specialist knowledge gaps identified in section 11.1 of the report be 
considered. 

5.  That the Council’s Constitution Working Group be requested to 
consider and develop new terms of reference for the committee and 
determine the balance of elected and independent members.  

 
17/31 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE (OVERVIEW OF STRATEGIC AND 

OPERATIONAL RISKS) 
 (Agenda Item 6) 
 
The purpose of the report was to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s risk 
management arrangements in accordance with generally accepted good 
practice.    
 

   RESOLVED: 
 

That the Council’s current risk position and the mitigation plans summarised 
within Appendix A (strategic risks) and Appendix B (operational risks) of the 
report be noted. 

 Page 4



Audit and Regulatory Committee 
Thursday, 29 September 2016  
 
 
17/32 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE: MID-YEAR REPORT 2016/17 
 (Agenda Item 8) 

 
The Council’s Treasury Management performance in 2016/17 was scrutinised 
in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 and 
generally accepted good practice. Discussion took place with regards the 
reduction in the base rate, forecasts for further changes and impact on 
income.  
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That Council be recommended to note the current Treasury Management 
position (as at 31 August 2016). 

 
17/33 INTERNAL AUDIT PERIODIC REPORT APRIL TO AUGUST 2016 

 (Agenda Item 9) 
 

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”.  In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit 
Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan.  

 
 RESOLVED: 

 
That the progress information contained within the report be noted. 
 

17/34 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (2000) – REVIEW OF 
POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

 (Agenda Item 10) 
 
  The Committee considered a report with regards to the Council’s 

arrangements in place to ensure compliance with the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and those arrangements were subject 
to inspection by the Office of Surveillance Commissioners. This was achieved 
through the adoption of a set of Policy and Procedures that ensured 
compliance with the requirements of the legislation. 

 
   RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Council’s use of RIPA powers and the outcome of the June 
2016 Office of Surveillance Commissioners Inspection Report be noted. 

 
2. That the updated Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 Policy 

and Procedures attached at Appendix 1 to the report be approved and 
adopted. 

 
 
 
 Page 5



Audit and Regulatory Committee 
Thursday, 29 September 2016  
 
 
17/35  COUNTER FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 

 (Agenda Item 11) 
 
The Council’s Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy had been in place for a 
number of years. The strategy summarised the arrangements that the Council 
has in place to ensure security from fraud and corruption.  In order to ensure 
that the Council’s counter fraud and corruption arrangements remain up-to 
date, the strategy had been reviewed to ensure that it continued to reflect the 
latest fraud legislation and best practice. 

 
 RESOLVED: 

 
That the updated Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy attached at Appendix 1 
to the report be approved and adopted. 
 

17/36 APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR 2017/18 
 (Agenda Item 12) 
 
Consideration was given to the selection of the Mayor for the municipal year 
2016/17. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That at its meeting on 15th December 2016 Council confirm that the Labour 
Group be invited to make a nomination for the appointment of Mayor of the 
Borough and Chairman of the Council for the municipal year 2017/18. 

 
17/37  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 (Agenda Item 13) 
  
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items 

because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 3 and 5 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
SUMMARY OF EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

17/38 MINUTES 
(Agenda Item 14) 

 
RESOLVED: 
  
That the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2016 be approved as 
a correct record. 

 
17/39 BUXTON CRESCENT & THERMAL SPA PROJECT – ORAL UPDATE  

(Agenda Item 15) 
 

The Committee received an oral update relating to the Buxton Crescent and 
Spa Project and associated risks. Page 6



Audit and Regulatory Committee 
Thursday, 29 September 2016  
 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the update be noted. 
 
  
 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 7.27 pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CHAIRMAN 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 

The Annual Audit Letter 

for High Peak Borough Council 

 

Year ended 31 March 2016 

12 October 2016 

Cover page 

Allison Rhodes 

Manager 

T 0121 232 5285 

E  allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com 

Emma Cable 

Executive 

T 0121  232 5153 

E  emma.cable@uk.gt.com 

Phil Jones 

Engagement Lead 

T 0121 232 5232 

E  phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 2 

Contents 

Section Page 

1. Executive summary 3 

2. Audit of the accounts 4 

3. Value for Money conclusion 7 

4. Working with the Council 13 

Appendices 

A  Reports issued and fees 

Contents 

P
age 10



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 3 

Executive summary 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Purpose of this letter 

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the 

work that we have carried out at High Peak Borough Council (the Council) for the 

year ended 31 March 2016. 

 

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to the 

Council and its external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to draw 

to the attention of the public.  In preparing this letter, we have followed the 

National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and  Auditor 

Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'. 

 

We reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit and 

Regulatory Committee as those charged with governance in our Audit Findings 

Report on 29 September 2016. 

 

Our responsibilities 

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit 

Practice, which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability 

Act 2014 (the Act). Our key responsibilities are to: 

• give an opinion on the Council's financial statements  

• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion). 

 

In our audit of the Council's financial statements, we comply with International 

Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the 

NAO. 

 

 

 

 

Our work 

Financial statements opinion 

We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 29 

September 2016. 

 

Value for money conclusion 

We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources during the year ended 

31 March 2016. We reflected this in our audit opinion on 29 September 2016. 

 

Certificate 

We certified that we had completed the audit of the accounts of High Peak 

Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code on 29 

September 2016. 

 

Certification of grants 

We also carry out work to certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on 

behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions. Our work on this claim is not 

yet complete and will be finalised by 30 November 2016. We will report the results 

of this work to the Audit and Regulatory Committee in  our Annual Certification 

Letter. 

 

Working with the Council 

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation 

provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff. 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

October 2016 

 

 

P
age 11



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 4 

Audit of  the accounts 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Our audit approach 

Materiality 

In our audit of the Council's accounts, we use the concept of materiality to 

determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in evaluating the results 

of our work. We define materiality as the size of the misstatement in the financial 

statements that would lead a reasonably knowledgeable person to change or 

influence their economic decisions.  

 

We determined materiality for our audit of the Council's accounts to be £864,000, 

which is 2% of the Council's gross revenue expenditure. We used this benchmark, 

as in our view, users of the Council's accounts are most interested in how it has 

spent the income it has raised from taxation and grants during the year.  

  

We also highlighted certain areas such as officers remuneration, where we did not 

set a separate materiality threshold, but where we undertook more extensive 

testing to reflect the interest in these disclosures.   

 

We set a lower threshold of £43,000 above which we reported errors to the Audit 

and Regulatory Committee in our Audit Findings Report. 

 

The scope of our audit 

Our audit involves obtaining enough evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are 

free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.  

 

This includes assessing whether:  

• the Council's accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently 

applied and adequately disclosed;  

• significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and 

• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view. 

 

We also read the narrative report and annual governance statement to check 

they are consistent with our understanding of the Council and with the accounts 

on which we give our opinion. 

  

We carry out our audit in line with ISAs (UK and Ireland) and the NAO Code 

of Audit Practice. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

  

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's 

business and is risk based.  

 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response 

to these risks and the results of this work. 

 

P
age 12



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 5 

Audit of  the accounts 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

 

 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk 

Management over-ride of controls 

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 it is presumed  that 

the risk of  management  over-ride of 

controls is present in all entities. 

As part of our audit work we: 

• Reviewed accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

• Tested journal entries 

• Reviewed unusual and significant transactions 

We did not identify any issues to report 

Employee remuneration 

The Council's expenditure on its employees 

in 2015/16 was £12.6 million, which 

represents 25% of its total expenditure 

(source: note 1 to the financial statements). 

 

 

As part of our audit work we have:  

• documented and walked through the controls in place  over payroll expenditure 

• performed trend analysis to identify any unusual variances in pay transactions 

• reviewed the reconciliation  between the  payroll system and the general ledger 

• tested a sample of employee remuneration payments in the year to ensure accurately accounted for and in the correct period 

• agreed the disclosure of senior officers remuneration to the information from the payroll system and supporting evidence .  

We did not identify any issues to report. 

Operating expenses 

The Council's  operating expenditure  in 

2015/16 was £38.7 million, which represents 

75% of its total expenditure (source: note 1 

to the financial statements). 

 

As part of our audit work we have:  

• documented and walked through the controls in place over operating expenditure 

• reviewed the completeness and accuracy of the reconciliation between the purchase ledger and the general ledger 

• obtained an understanding of the accruals process and tested a sample of accruals (and other creditors balances) 

• tested a sample of payments after the year end to confirm these were accounted for in the correct period 

• tested a sample of operating expense transactions in the year to ensure these are accurately accounted for and in the correct 

period. 

We did not identify any issues to report. 

These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.  

P
age 13



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 6 

Audit of  the accounts 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Audit opinion 

We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's accounts on 29 September 2016, 

meeting the 30 September 2016 deadline. 

 

Issues arising from the audit of the accounts 

We reported the key issues from our audit of the accounts of the Council to the 

Audit and Regulatory Committee on 29 September 2016. 

 

We have identified no adjustments that affect the group and Council's reported 

financial position. We have agreed a number of adjustments to improve the 

presentation of the financial statements and to amend disclosures.  

 

We identified  one matter during our audit that we have asked the Council's 

management to address for the next financial year. This relates to balances 

recorded on the balance sheet as creditors where the age of the liabilities suggests 

that the likelihood of payment has reduced. Management will conduct a detailed 

review in 2016/17 to determine if these balances should be retained. 

 

We highlighted the difficulties that the Council had encountered in fully 

reconciling its bank account balance to the general ledger since July 2015 following 

an upgrade to the cash receipting system.  This position is now improved and 

going forward the Council will complete its reconciliations on a periodic and 

routine basis to provide assurance that all transactions affecting cash and the main 

accounting system are identified and recorded.  

 

We will continue to work with the Council to pull forward its closedown timetable 

in 2016/17. There is more to be done to ensure that a full set of draft statements 

can be prepared at an earlier stage and in readiness for the earlier deadlines that 

will apply for 2017/18. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report 

We are also required to review the Council's Annual Governance Statement and 

Narrative Report. It published them on its website with the draft accounts in 

line with the national deadlines.  

 

Both documents were prepared in line with the relevant guidance and were 

consistent with  the supporting evidence provided by the Council and with our 

knowledge of the Council. 

 

Other statutory duties  

We also have additional powers and duties under the Act, including powers to 

issue a public interest report, make written recommendations, apply to the 

Court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law, and to give 

electors the opportunity to raise questions about the Council's accounts and to 

raise objections received in relation to the accounts. 

 

We have not identified any issues that have required us to apply our statutory 

powers and duties under the Act. 

P
age 14



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 7 

Value for Money conclusion 
 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Background 

We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit Practice 

(the Code), following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2015 which 

specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys resources 

to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  

 

Key findings 

Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and 

identify the key risks where we concentrated our work. 

 

The key risks we identified and the work we performed are set out in table 2 

overleaf. 

  

Overall VfM conclusion 

We are satisfied that in all significant respects High Peak Borough Council  put 

in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2016.  

 

P
age 15



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 8 

Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusions 

Planning finances 

The Council has historically 

managed its finances well and 

has consistently achieved 

savings targets. It is on course 

to achieve a balanced budget 

for 2015/16. However, following 

the most recent settlement, and 

with the expected reduction in 

government grant, the Council 

has identified deficits in the later 

years of the MTFP of 875,230 

in 2018/19 and £406,450 in 

2019/20 that will need to be 

met. Addressing this shortfall is 

dependent on funding that may 

arise from business rates 

retention or the impact of 

changes to New Homes Bonus. 

 

 

We reviewed the outturn 

position for 15/16 and the 

budget plans for 16/17 and 

17/18, and reviewed the 

Council's progress in 

updating its medium term 

financial strategy. 

The Council has a good track record of achieving its financial plans. in 2015/16 the Council reported an 

underspend of £0.297m against its net revenue budget of £10.385m.  

 

The Council continues to hold a general fund reserve of £2.8m, in line with the forecasts set out in the latest  

reserves strategy and providing sufficient cover compared to the Council's estimate of a minimum requirement of 

£1.3m. Overall earmarked reserves (general fund) have  reduced by £0.9m, reflecting new sums set aside but also 

the use of the earmarked reserves to support service spending. The overall decrease is mainly attributed to the use 

of earmarked reserves for capital investment (£0.742m) and a contribution towards the one-off costs of the 

implementation of service review (£0.350m). The underspend against the budget has enabled contributions into 

specific earmarked reserves. 

 

The Corporate Plan 2015-2019 sets out four main aims, underpinned by priority actions to be implemented, The 

monitoring and reporting against these forms part of the Council’s performance management framework.  

The Corporate Plan has formed the basis for developing proposals within the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

(MTFS).  

 

The budget setting process for 2016/17 has resulted in a balanced general fund budget for the year with an 

efficiency and rationalisation target of £0.660m. The HRA budget is also balanced with a new efficiency target of 

£0.504m. This reflects the consequences of the rent reduction imposed by central government.  The Council 

propose an increase in council tax of 1.9% for 2016/17.  

 

The MTFS also reports a balanced budget for 2017/18, however the Council continues to face deficits in its general 

fund revenue budget of £0.875m for 2018/19 and £0.406m in 2019/20.  

 

The Council's three year efficiency programme provides the Council with this balanced budget position in the short 

term. However those schemes that remain to be implemented are inevitably those that are more difficult and more 

uncertain. 

 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

Value for Money 

Table 2: Value for money risks 

Value for Money conclusion 
 

P
age 16



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 9 

Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusions 

Planning finances 

(continued) 

As the Council progresses through its planning cycle towards setting a 2017/18 budget in February 2017,  it will 

further refine the financial assumptions and consider what flexibility it has to generate growth in council tax and 

business rates. The Council is also exploring  various options for service delivery in areas such as waste, leisure 

and facilities managements. These are expected to provide the Council with scope for significant savings through 

its procurement decisions. The ways in which the Council can rationalise the use of its estate also remains an area 

of focus.  

 

The Council continues to demonstrate a robust planning process, which means it is well prepared to identify and 

put plans in place to tackle the financial risks that face it in the medium term. 

 

On that basis we concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated and the Council has proper 

arrangements for planning finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of strategic priorities 

and maintain statutory functions. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

Value for Money 

Value for Money conclusion 
 

P
age 17



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 10 

Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusions 

Service reviews 

 

As the Council reaches the 

implementation stage of its 

service review process, the 

management of these changes 

represent  risk to the VFM 

conclusion. 

We have considered:  

• what progress is being 

made to implement the 

service reviews  

• how the Council is 

addressing the risks and 

challenges associated 

with the changes in 

working arrangements 

• how the Council is 

dealing with the one off 

costs associated with the 

changes. 

The Council's three year Efficiency and Transformation programme for 2014/15 to 2016/17, set a target of savings 

of over £5m across the Council and its Alliance partner, of which the service reviews were a key area to achieve 

savings of £1.3m. 

 

Many of these reviews have been completed in 2015/16. The outcomes of the services reviews include: 

• Assessment to define excellence in each service area and then identify strengths and weaknesses compared to 

this model 

• Service improvement plans to commit each service to actions and outcomes 

• New staffing structures 

• Changes in working arrangements to encourage flexibility 

• A reduction in staff employed by the two councils of 57 posts, achieved through voluntary redundancies and 

deletion of vacant posts and redeployment of staff. 

 

The service review process is expected to achieve total savings across the Alliance of  £1.4m by April 2019, 

exceeding the original target. There  are though some costs of implementing these changes, including redundancy 

costs and the use of temporary or fixed term staff to provide the necessary flexibility during the transition. Most of 

these transition costs have already been incurred in 2014/15 and 2015/16 and so it is from 2016/17 that the 

Councils expect to start to see the longer term savings being achieved. 

 

Looking ahead, the implementation of the Channel Shift project is set to change the way in which the public 

engage/ interact with the Council so that they are much more 'self service'. The initial investment as part of the ICT 

strategy is expected to result in more streamlined internal processes, more integration between different system 

and a better experience for the customer as a result.   

 

It is evident that the Council has made considerable progress in implementing its service reviews. There is more to 

be done to embed the new ways of working and to ensure that the full benefits are realised from these changes. A 

more agile and flexible workforce should enable the Councils to be more responsive to changing circumstances 

and demand. Some areas of the reviews that remain to be completed, are now integrated into the process for 

reviewing the HRA business plan taking place in 2016/17.  

 

Overall we concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated and the Council has proper arrangements for 

planning, organising and developing the workforce effectively to deliver strategic priorities. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

Value for Money 

Value for Money conclusion 
 

P
age 18



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 11 

Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusions 

Housing business plan 

 

The Council's Business Plan for the 

housing revenue account, is affected 

by external factors including the 

recent government announcements of 

rent reductions that will need to be 

applied in future.  We need to 

consider the Council's arrangements 

to update its Business Plan in light of 

this and other developments 

throughout 2015/16, as this 

represents a risk to the VFM 

conclusion 

We considered how the 

Council have responded to the 

developments that impact 

upon its HRA Business Plan. 

The housing revenue account self financing regime took effect in 2016 and required the Council to put in 

place a 30 year HRA business plan. In July 2016, the government announced legislation and financial 

changes for the social housing sector, the most significant changes require the Council to reduce social 

housing rents by 1% per annum over the next four years. In this period, this is estimated to reduce the  

funds available in the HRA by £2.4 million, but would also lead to a breach of the borrowing cap in 13 

years.  

 

In response the Council has began a fundamental review of the Business Plan that will take place 

throughout  2016/17. Although the review was at an early stage in 2015/16, we are assured that the 

Council has plans in place to re-assess and reconfigure the Business Plan in light of these changes.  

 

It is evident that the Council has: 

• Established a structure for reporting progress to members and focusing attention on the policy issues 

that will need to be considered during the review – through the work of a sub committee (reporting to 

the Corporate Select Committtee) 

• Put in place a programme of work leading to the revised Business Plan being presented to Council in 

February 2017 

• Set out the scope of the review to take place, building on an initial self assessment against the six 

principles of the voluntary code (CIPFA/ Chartered institute of Housing Voluntary Code for self financed 

HRA) 

• Made provision to integrate the broader remit of the associated services reviews into the HRA 

Business Plan review 

• Prioritise each of the reviews area taking into account the likelihood of financial savings, the impact 

upon the financial position, the need to finalise staffing structures and the scope for improvements to 

services. 

 

The Council's progress with this review and the operational and policy decisions that it makes as a result 

will be critical in determining the  financial viability of its social housing services and the Council's long 

term financial plans. This is likely to remain a significant risk in our VFM conclusion in 2016/17.  

 

Overall we concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated and that the Council has proper 

arrangements for utilising assets effectively to support the delivery of strategic priorities, and 

planning finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and 

maintain statutory functions. 

Value for Money 

Value for Money conclusion 
 

P
age 19



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 12 

Risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusions 

Crescent development 

 

Since 2000, High Peak Borough 

Council and Derbyshire County 

Council have been working on the 

Buxton Crescent & Thermal Spa 

Project to bring one of High Peak’s 

iconic buildings back into use as part 

of the heritage led regeneration of 

Buxton. The continued progress with 

the scheme and the risks to the 

Council associated with that continue 

to be of relevance to the VFM 

conclusion. 

We considered what progress 

is being with the development, 

how the Council is addressing 

the risks and challenges 

associated with this and 

how the Council is dealing 

with the financial implications 

of the project. 

At the time of setting the budget for 2015/16 the partners of the Buxton Crescent project had identified a 

funding gap of £2 million but this was then covered by a loan arrangement with the County Council. With 

the sufficient funding arrangements in place, the project has progressed significantly.  

 

The developers preferred contractor, Vinci Construction Ltd, have now began the main works to transform 

the site into a 5* spa hotel. The refurbishment works are due to be completed in 2018.  

 

A smaller project to refurbish the separate Pump Room and enable this to be used as a temporary visitor 

information point has been completed.  

 

The Council have estimated the potential costs to the Council if the scheme failed to be completed, taking 

into account the costs of maintenance and mothballing for the period that it would take to  restablish the 

project with a new development partner. These costs are estimated to be £2m . As these cost are not at 

this stage, expected to be incurred,  they are not factored into the MTFP but they are clearly reported for 

information. 

 

Members of the Audit and Regulatory committee have received regular feedback on the progress of the 

scheme and the risks associated with its delivery. It is also included in the Council's risk register. 

 

Taking this into account, we concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated and the Council has 

proper arrangements for working effectively with third parties to deliver strategic priorities, 

managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system of internal control. 

Value for Money 

Value for Money conclusion 
 

P
age 20



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 13 

Working with the Council 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Our work with you in 2015/16 

 

We are really pleased to have worked with you over the past year. We have 

established a positive and constructive relationship with your team.  

 

An effective audit – we delivered the accounts audit by the deadline. Our 

audit team are experienced and knowledgeable and understand your 

financial accounts and systems.  

 

We will continue to work closely with you as you make further progress to 

prepare full financial statements for the earlier deadline that will apply for 

2017/18.   

 

Improved financial processes – during the year we reviewed your financial 

systems and processes including employee remuneration and operating 

expenditure.  

 

Understanding your operational health – through the value for money 

conclusion we provided you with assurance on your operational 

effectiveness.  

 

  

 

 

 

Sharing our insight – we provided audit committee updates covering 

emerging issues and best practice.  We have also shared our thought 

leadership publications which include: 

 

• Better Together -  building a successful joint venture company;  

• Knowing the Ropes - audit committee effectiveness review   

• Making Devolution Work - a practical guide for local leaders  

• Brexit -  planning the future, shaping the debate. 

 

Providing training and supporting development – we met with finance staff 

with a bespoke workshop to discuss the changes to accounting standards 

the Code of Practice and emerging issues and future developments, to 

support officers involved in the preparation of the Financial Statements. We 

also provided a briefing paper setting out the new requirements for the 

Narrative Report, that replaces the explanatory foreword in the financial 

statements.  

We will also continue to work with you and support you over the next 

financial year as you develop your plans to tackle your financial risks and 

embed new ways of working. 
 

P
age 21



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 14 

Appendix A: Reports issued and fees 

Fees 

Planned 

£ 

Actual fees  

£ 

2014/15 fees  

£ 

Statutory audit of the Council 47,273 47,273 63,030 

Housing benefit grant certification 9,199 9,199 14,720 

Total fees (excluding VAT) 56,472 56,472 77,750 

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services 

Our work on the certification of the housing benefit claim is to be formally 

concluded. In the event of any variations in actual fees from the planned fee, we 

will agree these with the Executive Director (Chief Finance Officer). Any fee 

variations are subject to approval by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd. 

Reports issued 

Report Issued 

Audit Plan February 2016 

Informing the Risk Assessment February 2016 

Audit Committee Update May 2016 

Audit Committee Update July 2016 

Audit Findings Report September 2016 

Annual Audit Letter October 2016 

Fees for other services 

Fees 

£ 

None audit services (2015/16): 

• Waste collection and street scene - strategic options 

• Waste collection and street scene – options appraisal 

(next steps) 

• Place Analytics – subscription agreed Feb 2016 

 

4,500 

4,000 

 

5,625 

None audit services (2016/17): 

• Leisure services options - work completed in 2016/17 

• CFOi insights – subscription agreed September 2016 

 

8,990 

2,000 

Audit related services: 

Pooling capital receipts 2014/15 – work completed in 

November 2015 

 

2,170 

P
age 22



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for High Peak Borough Council  |  October 2016 

Back page 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP. 

A list of members is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see www.grant-thornton.co.uk for further details. 

Andrew Stokes 
Executive Director  
High Peak Borough Council 

Buxton Town Hall 

Market Place 

BUXTON 

Derbyshire 

SK17 6EL  

13 December 2016 
 
Dear Andrew 

Certification work for High Peak Borough Council for year ended 31 

March 2016 

We are required to certify the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim submitted by High Peak 
Borough Council ('the Council'). This certification takes place six to nine months after the 
claim period and represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the Council's 
entitlement to funding. 

Arrangements for this certification of the 2015/16 Housing Benefits Subsidy claim has now 
transferred to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited ( previously prescribed by the Audit 
Commission) which agreed the scope of the work with the Department for Work and 
Pensions, and issued auditors with a Certification Instruction.   

The indicative scale fee for this work was set by the Audit Commission and the fee for the 
Council for 2015/16 is £9,199. This was based on 2013/14 certification fees, reduced by 25 
per cent, in line with the reduction also applied to the main audit fee. The amount of work 
required by the auditor to certify the housing benefit subsidy claim is consistent with that in 
the 'base' year and so there is no variation from the planned fee. 

Overall we are pleased to report that the Council has appropriate arrangements to compile a 
complete, accurate and timely claim for audit certification. The claim for Housing Benefit 
Subsidy, reported a total value of subsidy claimed of £22,097,383. This was not subject to a 
qualification letter and there were no amendments to the claim.   
 
In addition, and under the terms of a separate engagement letter, we have also provided an 
assurance statement on the Council's annual Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return for 
2015/16, in accordance with the requirements set out by the Department of Communities 
and Local Government. There were no matters arising from our work. The agreed fee for this 
work was £2,200 which is not included in the scale fee referred above. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

Phil W Jones 
Director 
For Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Colmore Building 
20 Colmore Circus 
Birmingham B4 6AT 
 

T +44 (0)121 212 4000 
F +44 (0)121 212 4014 
DX 13174 Birmingham 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

The Audit Plan 

for High Peak Borough Council 

 Year ended 31 March 2017 

Phil W Jones 

Engagement Lead 

T 0121 232 5232 

E  phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com 

Allison Rhodes 

Manager  

T    0121 232 5285 

E  allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com 

Javed Akhtar 

In charge auditor 

T 121  232 5153 

E  javed.akhtar@uk.gt.com 

February 2017 

Cover page 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 2 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details. 

This Audit Plan  sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of High Peak Borough Council, the Audit and Regulatory Committee), an overview 

of the planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the 

consequences of our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. 

It also helps us gain a better understanding of the Council and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management.  

We are required to perform our audit in line with Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit Office 

(NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015. Our responsibilities under the Code are to: 

-give an opinion on the Council's financial statements 

-satisfy ourselves the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair 

view. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process.  

It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change. In particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks 

which may affect the Council or all weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit. We do not accept any responsibility for any 

loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other 

purpose.  

We look forward to working with you during the course of the audit. 

Yours sincerely 

Phil Jones 

Engagement Lead 

February 2017 

Dear Members of the Audit and Regulatory Committee 

Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2017 

Letter 

High Peak Borough Council 

Buxton Town Hall 

Market Place 

Buxton 

Derbyshire 

SK17 6EL 

Grant Thornton UK LLP  

The Colmore Building 

20 Colmore Circus  

BIRMINGHAM 

West Midlands  

B4 6AT 

 

T +44 (0)121 212 4000 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

P
age 28



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Contents 

Section  

Understanding your business and key developments 4 

Materiality 5 

Significant risks identified 6 

Other risks identified 7 

Value for Money 10 

Other audit responsibilities 12 

The audit cycle 13 

Audit fees 14 

Independence and non-audit services 15 

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance 16 

 

  

3 

P
age 29



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council |  2016/17 

Understanding your business and key developments 

Financial reporting changes 

 

Key Challenges 

 

Key performance indicators 

Measure Value 

Outturn forecast at quarter 2 215,100 overspend 

Efficiency programme of £1,655,690 445,000 shortfall 

Housing revenue account forecast 

at quarter 2 

349,260 surplus 

Our response 

 We will discuss with you your progress in preparing for an earlier closedown and audit by 31 July, and share any good practice or areas of improvement. 

 As part of our interim audit we will consider your progress in preparing the adjustments to the prior year comparative figures and then (as part of our opinion on your financial statement)s,   in whether 

your financial statements accurately reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2016/17 Code.   

 We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  reporting requirements for 2016/17 through on-going discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops. 

 We will review the Council's progress in updating it's MTFP, preparing it's  annual budget for 2017/18 as part of our work in reaching our VFM conclusion.. 

 We will consider the progress being made by the Council in its steps to determine a housing revenue account business plan that is sustainable in the longer  term, as part of our work in reaching our VFM 

conclusion. 

Autumn Statement  

The Council is working through the implications of the  

Chancellor's announcements in the Autumn Statement, and 

to examine how the impact of the reduction in central 

government support may be mitigated by: 

• retained business rates through economic growth 

• maintaining the level of new homes bonus through a 

commitment to housing growth; and 

• reviewing fees and charges and identifying new sources 

of income generation 

• an annual 1.9% increase in council tax. 

 

  

CIPFA Code of Practice 2016/17 (the Code) 

Changes to the Code in  2016/17 reflect aims of the 'Telling 

the Story' project, to streamline the financial statements to 

be more in line with internal organisational reporting and 

improve accessibility to the reader of the financial 

statements. 

The changes affect the presentation of the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in 

Reserves Statements, segmental reporting disclosures and 

a new Expenditure and Funding Analysis note has been 

introduced. The Code also requires these amendments to 

be reflected in the 2015/16 comparatives by way of a prior 

period adjustment. 

 

Earlier closedown 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require councils 

to bring forward the approval and audit of financial 

statements to 31 July by the 2017/2018 financial year. 

You are planning to prepare your draft accounts for 2016/17 

to the earlier timescale  and we propose to carry out our 

audit work by the end of July.  

You are considering how the timing of your Audit and 

Regulatory Committee meetings need to be changed to 

reflect these future arrangements. 

Efficiency and Rationalisation programme 

The Council's MTFP includes a three year efficiency and 

rationalisation strategy with budgeted savings of £2.8m in 

the three years to 2016/17. 

A new Efficiency Plan is being set as part of the  2017/18 

budget setting process. 

In order to balance the general fund budgets for 2017/18 

through to 2020/21, there was (at the time of the update to 

the MTFP in November 2016)  a new savings requirement of 

£1.762m and a further saving requirement of £3.569m over 

the four years for the HRA. 

Understanding 

your business 

Housing 

Previous Government announcements in regard to an annual 1% 

rent reduction from April 2016 for 4 years, have a significant 

impact on the financial resilience of the Council's Housing 

Revenue Account. 

The Council is continuing to complete and implement a Housing 

Management and Revenue Plan and to review all the current 

assumptions in the HRA Business Plan. The results of the full 

stock condition survey will inform the 2018/19 budget setting 

process but in the meantime the Council is focusing on where 

measures can be taken to support the longer term financial 

position. 

P
age 30



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Materiality 
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in planning and 

performing an audit. The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but 

also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. An item does not necessarily have to be large to be considered to have a material effect on 

the financial statements. An item may be considered to be material by nature, for example, when greater precision is required (e.g. senior manager salaries and allowances).  

We determine planning materiality (materiality for the financial statements as a whole determined at the planning stage of the audit) in order to estimate the tolerable level of misstatement in 

the financial statements, assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests, calculate sample sizes and assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in 

the financial statements. 

We have determined planning materiality based upon professional judgement in the context of our knowledge of the Council. In line with previous years, we have calculated financial 

statements materiality based on a proportion of the gross revenue expenditure of the Council. For purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £864k (being 

2% of gross revenue expenditure) in line with that determined in the previous year. Our assessment of materiality is kept under review throughout the audit process and we will advise you if 

we revise this during the audit. 

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because 

we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually 

or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £42k. 

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of 

lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. We have identified the following items 

where separate materiality levels are appropriate: 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level 

Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary bandings 

and exit packages in the notes to the financial statements 

Due to public interest in these disclosures 

and the statutory requirement for them to 

be made. 

£20,000 

Related party transactions £20,000 (although the significance of  any matters arising will also be evaluated with regard to the 

materiality from the perspective of the other party) 

5 

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of the financial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 

or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial information needs 

of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered. (ISA (UK and Ireland) 320) 

P
age 31



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Significant risks identified 
An audit is focused on risks. Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK and Ireland) as risks that, in the judgment of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In 

identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher 

risk of material misstatement. 

Significant risk Description Audit procedures 

The revenue cycle 

includes fraudulent 

transactions 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a presumed 

risk that revenue streams may be misstated due to the 

improper recognition of revenue. 

 

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 

due to fraud relating to revenue recognition. 

 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at High 

Peak Borough Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition 

can be rebutted, because: 

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition 

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited 

• The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including High Peak Borough Council, 

mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable 

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for High Peak Borough Council. 

Management over-

ride of controls 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a non-

rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of management 

over-ride of controls is present in all entities. 

Work planned: 

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

 Review of journal entry process and selection of unusual journal entries for testing back to 

supporting documentation  

 Review of unusual significant transactions. 

6 

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or 

nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's 

normal course of business as giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 550) 

P
age 32



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Other risks identified 
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement 

cannot be reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of 

substantive work. The risk of misstatement for an RPR or other risk is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly 

judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of the business. 

Reasonably possible risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Operating expenses Year end creditors and accruals 

are understated or not recorded 

in the correct period. 

 

We will document the processes and controls in place around the accounting for operating 

expenses and carry out walkthrough tests to confirm the operation of controls. 

We will carry out testing including: 

 the completeness of the subsidiary system interfaces and control account  reconciliations 

 obtaining an understanding of the accruals process and testing a sample of accruals 

including those for goods received  but not  invoiced  at the year end 

 payments after the year end to consider completeness of operating expenses 

Testing will  also cover a sample of operating expenses covering the period 1/4/16 to 31/3/17  

to ensure they have been accurately accounted for and in the correct period. 

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration accruals 

are understated 

We will document the processes and controls in place around the accounting for employee 

remuneration and carry out walkthrough tests to confirm the operation of controls. 

We will carry out testing including: 

 the completeness of the payroll reconciliation to ensure that information from the payroll 

system can be agreed to the ledger and financial statements 

 a review of monthly trend analysis of total payroll 

 substantive testing of senior officer remuneration.  

Testing will also cover a sample of employee remuneration payments covering the period 

1/4/16 to 31/3/17 to ensure they have been accurately accounted for and in the correct 

period. 

7 

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315)  

P
age 33



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Other risks identified (continued) 
Other risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Changes to the presentation of local authority 

financial statements 

CIPFA has been working on the 

‘Telling the Story’ project, for 

which the aim was to streamline 

the financial statements and 

improve accessibility to the user 

and this has resulted in changes 

to the 2016/17 Code of Practice. 

 

The changes affect the 

presentation of income and 

expenditure in the financial 

statements and associated 

disclosure notes. A prior period 

adjustment (PPA) to restate the 

2015/16 comparative figures is 

also required. 

We will documented and evaluate the Council's process for recording the required financial 

reporting changes to the 2016/17 financial statements. 

We will: 

 review the re-classification of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

(CIES) comparatives to ensure that they are in line with the Authority’s internal reporting 

structure. 

 review the appropriateness of the revised grouping of entries within the Movement In 

Reserves Statement (MIRS). 

 test the classification of income and expenditure for 2016/17 recorded within the Cost of 

Services section of the CIES. 

 test the completeness  of income and expenditure by reviewing the reconciliation of the 

CIES to the general ledger. 

 test the classification of income and expenditure reported within the new Expenditure and 

Funding Analysis (EFA) note to the financial statements. 

 review the new segmental reporting disclosures within the 2016/17 financial statements  

to ensure compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

 

8 

P
age 34



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Other risks identified (continued) 

Other material balances and transactions 

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 

will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous sections but will include: 

• Property, plant and equipment  

• Investment properties 

• Investments (long term and short term) 

• Debtors (long term and short term) 

• Cash and cash equivalents 

• Borrowings and other liabilities (long and short term) 

• Useable and unusable reserves 

• Movement in Reserves Statement and associated notes 

• Statement of Cash Flows and associated notes 

• Financing and investment income and expenditure 

• Taxation and non-specific grants 

• Grant income 

 

• Pension liability and associated CIES transactions and disclosure notes 

• New notes covering expenditure and income analysed by nature and 

other segmental disclosures 

• Officers' remuneration 

• Leases 

• Related party transactions 

• Capital expenditure and capital financing 

• Financial instruments 

• Housing Revenue Account and associated notes 

• Collection Fund and associated notes 

9 

Going concern 

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption 

in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a 

going concern” (ISA (UK and Ireland) 570). We will review the management's assessment of the going concern assumption and the disclosures in the financial 

statements.  

P
age 35



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Value for Money 

Background 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion.  

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work for 2016/17 in November 2016. The guidance states that for local 
government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the 
Council has proper arrangements in place. 

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:  

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out opposite: 

Sub-criteria Detail 

Informed decision 

making 

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and 

applying the principles and values of sound governance 

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and 

performance information (including, where relevant, 

information from regulatory/monitoring bodies) to 

support informed decision making and performance 

management 

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system 

of internal control 

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment 

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable 

delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory 

functions 

• Managing and utilising assets effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce 

effectively to deliver strategic priorities. 

Working with 

partners and 

other third parties 

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic 

priorities 

• Commissioning services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities. 

10 

P
age 36



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Value for Money (continued) 

Risk assessment 

We shall carry out an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's guidance. In our 
initial risk assessment, we will consider : 

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in 
previous years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the 
financial statements. 

• the findings of other inspectorates and review agencies, 

• any illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its 
Supporting Information. 

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your 
arrangements. 

Following the completion of this risk assessment, we will set out our planned 
work  for 2016/17 to meet our duties in respect of the VfM conclusion, as part of 
our progress updates to the Audit and Regulatory Committee. This update will 
include any significant risks identified, along with details of the work we plan to  
carry out to address these risks. 

 

 

Reporting 

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in 
our Audit Findings Report and in the Annual Audit Letter.  

We will include our conclusion as part of our report on your financial statements 
which we will give by 30 September 2017. 

 

 

 

11 

P
age 37



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Other audit responsibilities 

12 

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice in relation to your financial statements and arrangements for economy, efficiency and effectiveness we 

have a number of other audit responsibilities, as follows: 

 

• We will undertake work to satisfy ourselves that the disclosures made in your Annual Governance Statement are in line with CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and 

consistent with our knowledge of the Council. 

• We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the financial statements on which we  give an  opinion and that the disclosures included 

in it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

• The Council is below the audit threshold and so there is no requirement for us to review the WGA information prepared by the Council. 

• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, including: 

• We will give electors the opportunity to raise questions about your financial statements and consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to 

the financial statements; 

• issue of a report in the public interest; and 

• making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of State 

• We certify completion of our audit.  

 

P
age 38



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

The audit cycle 

The audit timeline 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Add any other agreed 

milestones or outputs agreed 

with your client 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Logistics 

Key dates: 

 

 

 

Audit phases: 

 

 

 

Year end:  

31 March 2017 

Audit and Regulatory 

Committee:  

TBC September 2017 

Sign off by:  

30 September 2017 

Planning  

January - February 2017 
Interim   

From 13 February 2017 

Final   

w/c 25 June 2017 

Completion of 

fieldwork   

31 July 2017 

Key elements 

 Planning meeting with management to 

inform audit planning and agree audit 

timetable 

 Issue audit working paper 

requirements to management 

 Discussions with those charged with 

governance and internal audit to 

inform audit planning 

 Discuss draft Audit Plan with 

management 

 Issue the Audit Plan to management 

and Audit Committee 

 Meeting with Audit Committee to 

discuss the Audit Plan 

Key elements 

 Document design effectiveness of key 

accounting systems and processes 

 Review of key judgements and estimates 

 Early substantive audit testing 

 High level review of IA arrangements 

 Specialist review of the general IT control 

environment  

 Review journal entry policies and procedures 

and extract unusual entries for examination 

 Review prior period adjustment 

 Review of Value for Money arrangements 

 Issue progress report to management and 

Audit and Regulatory Committee 

 

Key elements 

 Audit teams onsite to complete detailed 

audit testing 

 Weekly update meetings with 

management 

 Audit of group reporting consolidation 

schedule 

On completion of fieldwork: 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to 

management 

 Meeting with management to discuss 

Audit Findings 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to Audit 

Committee 

 

Key elements 

At time of Audit and 

Regulatory Committee 

 Audit Findings 

presentation to Audit 

Committee 

 Finalise approval and 

signing of financial 

statements and audit 

report 

 Annual Audit Letter 

Debrief  

August 2017 

Reporting 

September 

2017 

P
age 39



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough COUNCIL  |  2016/17 
 

Audit Fees 

Our fee assumptions include: 

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 

request list 

 The scope of the audit, and the Council and its activities, have not 

changed significantly 

 The Council will make available management and accounting staff to 

help us locate information and to provide explanations 

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 

working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly. 

Grant certification 

 Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 

certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited 

 Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance 

reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'. 

 

What is included within our fees: 

 A reliable and risk-focused audit appropriate for your business 

 Feed back on our work to review your systems and processes, identifying potential 

risks or opportunities  

 Invitations to events hosted by Grant Thornton in your sector, as well as the wider 

finance community 

 Technical briefings and updates for members of your finance team including 

invitations to our Accountants' Workshop 

 Regular contact with senior management to discuss strategy, emerging issues and 

other important areas 

 Regular progress reports and emerging issues bulletins to your Audit and Regulatory 

Committee 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit.  At the 

time of preparation of the Audit 

Plan it is unlikely that full 

information as to all fees 

charged by GTI network firms 

will be available. Disclosure of 

these fees, threats to 

independence and safeguards 

will therefore be included in the 

Audit Findings report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Fees for other services 

 

Fees for other services detailed on the following page, reflect those agreed at the 

time of issuing our Audit Plan. Any changes will be reported in our Audit Findings 

Report and Annual Audit Letter. 

Fees 

£ 

Council audit 47,273 

Grant certification  11,040 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 58,313 

P
age 40



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for High Peak Borough COUNCIL  |  2016/17 
 

Independence and non-audit services 

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of matters relating to our independence. In this context we confirm that there are 

no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the Auditing 

Practices Board's Ethical Standards and we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to High Peak Borough Council. The following audit related 

and non-audit services were identified for the Council for 2016/17: 

PSAA Ltd have confirmed their approved for Grant Thornton UK LLP to undertake the work set out above for both Authorities, with the fees to be split 50:50. 

The above services are consistent with the Council's policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. 

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services (to be) undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP (and Grant Thornton International Limited network member 

Firms) in the current financial year. Full details of all fees charged for audit and non-audit services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms 

will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit. 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit. At the time 

of preparation of the Audit Plan 

it is unlikely that full information 

as to all fees charged by GTI 

network firms will be available. 

Disclosure of these fees, threats 

to independence and 

safeguards will therefore be 

included in the Audit Findings 

report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

group’s. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Independence and 

non-audit services 

Fees for other services  

Service Fees £ Planned outputs 

Audit related 

Pooling housing capital receipts return 2015/16 – work completed in November 

2016 

2,200 Completion of reasonable assurance work to meet the requirements of 

DCLG and submit certification on the Department's LOGASNET system. 

Non-audit related 

Leisure services – options (work completed in 2016/17) 8,990 Options appraisal for alternative delivery vehicle for leisure services. 

CFOi insights – subscription agreed September 2016 2,000 These are subscriptions to access our online software that provides the 

councils with rapid insights relating to financial performance, socio 

economic factors and service outcomes. Total fees split 50:50. Place Analytics –  Year 3 of three year subscription package 5,625 

Waste management review 6,450 Benchmarking and a critical review of a business case, total fee £12,900 

to be split 50:50  

Total non – audit related  23,065 This is the value of the share attributed to this Council 

P
age 41



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged.   

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements 

 

Non compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter  

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern   

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK 

and Ireland) prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those 

charged with governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.   

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

while The Audit Findings will be issued prior to approval of the financial statements  and 

will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together with an 

explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Council. 

Respective responsibilities 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs (UK and 

Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged 

with governance. 

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/) 

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 

covering finance and governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 

Council's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code.  

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with 

governance of their responsibilities. 

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 

the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities. 

16 

P
age 42

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

17 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

  

Informing the audit risk assessment  

for High Peak Borough Council 

 

 
Year ended 31 March 2017 

February 2017 

Phil Jones 

Engagement Lead 

T 0121 232  5232 

E  phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com 

Allison Rhodes 

Manager 

T 0121 232 5285 

E  allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com 

Javed Akhtar 

In-charge Auditor 

T 0121 232 5153  

E  javed.akhtar@uk.gt.com 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 7



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Contents 

Section Page 

Purpose 3 

Fraud 4 

Fraud risk assessment 5  - 7 

Laws and regulations 8   

Impact of laws and regulations 9 - 10  

Going concern 11 

Going concern considerations 12 - 13 

Estimates  14 

Estimate considerations 15 - 20 

Related parties 21 

Related party consideration 22 

  
The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, 

which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a 

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and 

in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which 

may affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has 

been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part 

without our prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss 

occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the 

content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other 

purpose. 

P
age 46



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Purpose 

 

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between auditors and the Council's Audit and Regulatory Committee , as 'those 

charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Audit and Regulatory 

Committee under auditing standards. 

 

Background 

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA(UK&I)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit Committee. ISA(UK&I) 

emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit Committee and also specify matters that should be communicated. 

 

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit  Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and developing a constructive working 

relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit Committee and supports the Audit Committee in fulfilling its 

responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process.  

 

Communication 

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Audit  Committee's oversight of the following 

areas: 

• fraud 

• laws and regulations 

• going concern 

• accounting estimates 

• related party transactions 

 

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from the Council's management. The Audit  Committee should 

consider whether these responses are consistent with the its understanding and whether there are any further comments it wishes to make.  

 

P
age 47



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Fraud 

Issue 

 

Matters in relation to fraud 

 

ISA (UK&I) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements. 

 

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit and Regulatory Committee and management. Management, with the oversight of the 

Audit and Regulatory Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part 

of its oversight, the Audit and Regulatory Committee should consider the potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 

process. 

 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required 

to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for management override of controls. As part of our audit risk assessment procedures 

we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including:  

 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud 

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks 

• communication with the Audit and Regulatory Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud 

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour.  

  

We need to understand how the Audit and Regulatory Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of both management and the 

Audit and Regulatory Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions 

below together with responses from the Council's management.  

 

P
age 48



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Fraud risk assessment 

Question Management response 

Has the Council assessed the risk of material misstatement in the 

financial statements due to fraud? 

What are the results of this process? 

Yes.  The underlying management processes are primarily as described in the Annual Governance 

Statement, which is published alongside the Statement of Accounts. 

These are strengthened by additional procedures specific to the Statement of Accounts. For example, 

the Chief Finance Officer / Finance & Procurement Manager undertakes a detailed review of the 

draft Statement of Accounts and will not issue a certificate until satisfactory answers and assurances 

have been provided. 

We conclude that there is no significant risk of material misstatement in the Statement of Accounts 

due to fraud. 

What processes does the Council have in place to identify and 

respond to risks of fraud? 
There are a number of policies and procedures in place including an Counter Fraud & Corruption 

Strategy, RIPA Policy & Procedures, Whistleblowing Policy, risk management arrangements set out 

in the risk management policy, strategy and process, participation in the NFI. 

Internal Audit is also 'good practice compliant' and has a proven track record in planning audit work 

to take account of fraud risks and responding appropriately to fraud risks in the organisation and 

enhancing controls to protect against the risk of fraud (e.g. procurement arrangements). 

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high risk of fraud, been 

identified and what has been done to mitigate these risks? 
No specific fraud risks or areas with a high risk of fraud have been identified. However, the Council 

is always vigilant to the threat of fraud and Internal Audit work is planned to highlight the threat of 

potential fraud. 

Are internal controls, including segregation of duties, in place and 

operating effectively? 

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating actions have been 

taken? 

Overall internal controls work effectively and Internal Audit report on ineffective controls which are 

corrected by management. 

P
age 49



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Fraud risk assessment 

Question Management response 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of controls 

or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process (for 

example because of undue pressure to achieve financial targets)?  

Not significantly. Financial and operational targets are an important part of the management process. 

However, a strong corporate commitment to appropriate ethical behaviour outweighs any pressure to 

meet targets. 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for misreporting 

override of controls or inappropriate influence over the financial 

reporting process? 

Controls are in place to minimise risk. 

How does the Audit and Regulatory Committee exercise oversight 

over management's processes for identifying and responding to risks 

of fraud? 

What arrangements are in place to report fraud issues and risks  to 

the Audit and Regulatory Committee? 

The Audit and Regulatory Committee provides oversight through : 

• Review and approval of policies and procedures including an Counter Fraud & Corruption 

Strategy, Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and Whistleblowing Policy; 

• Review of risk management arrangements set out in the risk management policy, strategy and 

process; 

• Review of Internal Audit progress reports; 

• Review of Internal Audit Annual Report, which includes the opinion on the control environment; 

• Receiving periodic updates on the outcome of any fraud investigative work; 

• Receiving updates on actions taken to enhance controls and protect against the risk of fraud e.g. 

procurement arrangements; and 

• Consideration of reports from External Audit and any action plans setting out recommendations 

made. 

Procedures dictate that the Chair of the Audit and Regulatory Committee is informed of any matters 

of actual, suspected or alleged fraud (with notification to the Audit and Regulatory Committee 

subject to confidentiality). 

P
age 50



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Fraud risk assessment 

Question Management response 

How does the Council communicate and encourage ethical 

behaviour of its staff and contractors? 
There are a number of policies and procedures in place which are reviewed and approved by the 

Standards Committee including the Ethical Framework (inc. Code of Corporate Governance), a Staff 

Code of Conduct, Registers for Interests and Gifts & Hospitality. 

Such policies and procedures are the subject of a detailed communications process, which includes 

extensive coverage during induction and training. 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns about fraud? 

Have any significant issues been reported? 
The Council has a well publicised Whistleblowing Policy.  No significant issues have been reported. 

Are you aware of any related party relationships or transactions that 

could give rise to risks of fraud? 
Not aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could give rise to instances of fraud.  

Monitoring and controls in place mitigate the risk. 

Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected or alleged,  

Fraud within the Council as a whole since 1 April 2016? 
Confirmation from the Monitoring Officer, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Audit Manager, Legal & 

Elections Services Manager and Finance and Procurement Manager has been obtained that no 

significant frauds have been identified during 2016/17. 

P
age 51



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Laws and regulations 

Issue 

 

Matters in relation to laws and regulations 

 

ISA (UK&I) 250 requires us to consider the impact  of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements. 

 

Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Regulatory Committee, is responsible for ensuring that the Council's operations are conducted in accordance with laws 

and regulations including those that determine amounts in the financial statements.  

 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error, taking into 

account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make inquiries of management and the Audit  and 

Regulatory Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-

compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect on the financial statements. 

 

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management. 

 

P
age 52



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Impact of  laws and regulations 

Question Management response 

What arrangements does the Council have in place to prevent and detect 

non-compliance  with laws and regulations? 
The operation of the statutory officer roles (Head of Paid Services, Monitoring Officer and 

Chief Financial Officer) help to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. For example, 

the Monitoring Officer has the authority to report to Council if he considers that any 

proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration, thereby 

stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been considered. 

Legal implications are outlined in all committee reports. 

How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations 

have been complied with? 
The operation of the statutory officer roles (Head of Paid Services, Monitoring Officer and 

Chief Financial Officer) help to provide assurance that laws and regulations are complied 

with. 

The Internal Audit service operates to the standards set out in the “Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards” and the Internal Audit Plan specifically considers compliance with laws and 

regulations. 

The Council has a well publicised Whistleblowing Policy. 

How is the Audit and Regulatory Committee provided with assurance that all 

relevant laws and regulations have been complied with? 
The Chief Financial Officer attends Audit and Regulatory committee meetings to respond to 

members enquiries. 

Standard reporting formats requires that legal implications are outlined in all committee 

reports. 

The Audit Manager has a number of alternative reporting lines in the event of breach of law 

or regulation, including a right to meet privately with the Chair of the Audit and Regulatory 

Committee or the Committee in full, should the situation determine such an approach 

necessary. 

P
age 53



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Impact of  laws and regulations 

Question Management response 

Have there been any instances of  non-compliance or suspected non-

compliance with law and regulation since 1 April 2016, or earlier with an on-

going impact on the 2016/17 financial statements? 

Confirmation from the Monitoring Officer, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Audit Manager, 

Legal & Elections Services Manager and Finance and Procurement Manager has been 

obtained that no instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and 

regulations have been identified during 2016/17. 

What arrangements does the Council have in place to identify, evaluate and 

account for litigation or claims? 
The Council has embedded systems and procedures in place to deal with litigation and claims 

as they emerge (e.g. the “Link Officer” in respect of Ombudsman issues). 

At year end, additional procedures ensure that any such items are reflected in the financial 

statements if appropriate. This is incorporated within closedown procedures and includes 

specific enquiries of all senior management with a particular emphasis on the Legal & 

Elections Services Manager, the Insurance Officer and the Head of  Customer Services 

(responsible for the Ombudsman related issues). 

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would affect the 

financial statements? 
Areas of litigation are reported in the Statements where their impact is considered material or 

significant to the readers of the statements and the outturn itself. 

Have there been any reports from other regulatory bodies, such as HM 

Revenues and Customs which indicate non-compliance? 

 

No. 

P
age 54



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Going concern 

Issue 

Matters in relation to going concern 

ISA (UK&I) 570 covers auditor responsibilities in the audit of financial statements relating to management's use of the going concern assumption in the financial 

statements. 

 

The going concern assumption is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial statements. Under this assumption entities are viewed as continuing in business 

for the foreseeable future. Assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that the entity will be able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of 

business. 

 

The code of practice on local authority accounting requires an authority’s financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis. Although the Council is not 

subject to the same future trading uncertainties as private sector entities, consideration of the key features of the going concern provides an indication of the Council's 

financial resilience. 

 

As auditor, we are responsible for considering the appropriateness of use of the going concern assumption in preparing the financial statements and to consider whether 

there are material uncertainties about the Council's ability to continue as a going concern that need to be disclosed in the financial statements. We discuss the going 

concern assumption with management and review the Council's financial and operating performance.  

 

Going concern considerations have been set out below and management has provided its  response. 

 

P
age 55



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Going concern considerations  

Question  Management response 

Does the Council have procedures in place to assess the Council's 

ability to continue as a going concern? 
Yes.  

There is a firmly embedded Financial Planning process, which includes a rolling Medium-Term 

Financial Plan that is updated two times annually. Other features include CFO assessments and 

statements regarding budget estimates and the adequacy of reserves and balances. 

Is management aware of the existence of other events or conditions 

that may cast doubt on the Council's ability to continue as a going 

concern? 

No.  

All such known events are systematically mitigated. For example, budget deficits are primarily 

addressed through a well developed approach towards the achievement of efficiency savings, 

which has a proven track record of success. 

In response to the Government 4 year revenue support grant settlement, we submitted an 

efficiency plan outlining how the Council will be addressing financial pressures in accepting the 

settlement offer (attached to the November 2016 MTFP).  Additionally, we will be presenting a 

new efficiency programme to coincide with the 2017/18 Budget and updated MTFP presented in 

February 2017 to outline plans to meet the budget deficit. 

A review of the Council's HRA business plan is continuing to ensure the impact of the 

Government rent reduction announcement is mitigated over the 30 year plan and a number of 

reports have been presented to the HRA working group throughout 2016/17. 

Are arrangements in place to report the going concern assessment to 

the Audit and Regulatory Committee? 
No explicit statement is presented to Audit and Regulatory Committee, however, the Committee 

scrutinises the treasury function and so is aware of the liquidity and funding position of the 

Authority.  For the 2016/17 presentation of the Statement of Accounts, a going concern 

assessment will be reported with reference to the approved Medium Term Financial Plan.  

Are the financial assumptions  (eg future levels of income and 

expenditure) consistent with the Council's Business Plan and the 

financial information provided to the Council throughout the year?  

Yes. Well established quarterly reporting process to councillors, combined with performance 

reporting against the Council’s corporate plans and targets serves to inform the development of 

the three year Medium term financial plan. 

P
age 56



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Going concern considerations 

Question Management response 

Are the implications of statutory or policy changes appropriately reflected in 

the Business Plan, financial forecasts and report on going concern? 

 

Yes. For example, the Medium-Term Financial Plan specifically includes consideration of 

both national (e.g. statutory) and local (e.g. policy) issues in terms of their potential financial 

impact. 

Have there been any significant issues raised with the Audit and Regulatory 

Committee during the year which could cast doubts on the assumptions 

made? (Examples include adverse comments raised by internal and external 

audit regarding financial performance or significant weaknesses in systems of 

financial control). 

 

No significant issues have been raised. 

Does a review of available financial information identify any adverse financial 

indicators including negative cash flow? 

 

If so, what action is being taken to improve financial performance? 

 

No. Financial information is closely monitored as a matter of routine through firmly 

established processes. 

Does the Council have sufficient staff in post, with the appropriate skills and 

experience, particularly at senior manager level, to ensure the delivery of the 

Council’s objectives? 

 

If not, what action is being taken to obtain those skills? 

 

Yes. A service review process has recently been undertaken, with structures created to ensure 

services can operate effectively whilst achieving efficiency targets.. If and when numbers or 

experience is considered lacking, additional resource is brought in from third parties. 

Organisational Development is a systematic & managed process. 

 

P
age 57



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Estimates 

Issue 

Matters in relation to accounting estimates 

 

ISA (UK&I) 540 covers auditor responsibilities relating to estimates in an audit of financial statements.  

 

Local authorities use estimates in the preparation of their financial statements. We need to obtain an understanding of: 

• how management identifies the transactions, events and conditions that give rise to the need for an accounting estimate. 

• how management actually make the estimates, including the control procedures in place to minimise the risk of misstatement. 

 

We need to be aware of all estimates that the Council use as part of their accounts preparation. These are set out overleaf. P
age 58



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Estimate considerations 

Estimate Method 

Controls used to 

identify estimates Use of an expert 

Underlying assumptions 

 - Assessment of degree of uncertainty 

 - Consideration of alternative estimates 

Change in 

accounting 

method in 

year? 

Property plant & 

equipment 

valuations 

Valuations for land and 

buildings are made by the 

external valuer in line with 

RICS guidance on the basis 

of 5 year valuation with 

interim reviews. The 

Council applies a deminimis 

threshold of £10,000 in 

determining assets to  be 

valued. 

 

Other assets are valued on 

the basis of depreciated 

historic cost as proxy for fair 

value as relatively short asset 

lives before replacement. 

Housing Stock is valued on 

a Beacon basis by annual 

desktop review and then a 

physical valuation every 5 

years. 

Capital Accountant 

notifies the valuer of the 

program of rolling 

valuations or of any 

conditions that warrant 

an interim re-valuation. 

 

The overriding 

requirement is that the 

carrying value is not 

materially different from 

the amount that would 

be determined by 

valuation and so the 

Capital Accountant 

considers factors 

(informed by Property 

Services Manager and 

external valuer) that 

would indicate where a 

valuation is required. 

 

Use of Urban Vision 

augmented with internal 

Property Services (RICS 

valuer) for buildings 

valuations.  

Other assets considered 

by Services Manager and 

capital accountant 

Valuations are made in-line with RICS 

guidance – reliance on expert. Assumptions 

are set out in valuer's report. 

For other assets no revaluations but asset lives 

reviewed based on the operational experience 

of the service areas. 

No 

P
age 59



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Estimate considerations 

Estimate Method 

Controls used to identify 

estimates 

Use of an 

expert 

Underlying assumptions 

 - Assessment of degree of uncertainty 

 - Consideration of alternative estimates 

Change in 

accounting 

method in 

year? 

Estimated 

remaining useful 

lives of PPE 

The following asset categories 

have general asset lives: 

•Buildings range 30 to 70 years 

•Equipment/ vehicles 3 to 15 

years 

•Plant 3 to 15 years 

•Infrastructure 25 years 

Specific asset lives applied to 

buildings. 

Consistent asset lives applied to 

each asset category. 

Use of Urban 

Vision 

augmented 

with internal 

Property 

Services 

(RICS valuer) 

for buildings 

valuations.  

Other assets 

considered by 

Services 

Manager and 

capital 

accountant  

  

The method makes some generalisations. For 

example, building lives would vary depending 

on the construction materials used. This life 

would be recorded in accordance with RICS 

valuation. 

Detailed information is included in the valuers 

report for each asset. The lives used for other 

assets are based on operational experience of 

the service areas. 

The asset live is then recorded in the asset 

register. 

No 

Depreciation & 

Amortisation 

Depreciation is provided for all 

fixed assets with a finite useful 

life on a straight-line basis 

Consistent application of 

depreciation method across all 

assets 

  

No The length of the life is determined at the point 

of acquisition or revaluation. 

Major components are depreciated separately. 

No 

P
age 60



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Estimate considerations 

Estimate Method 

Controls used to 

identify estimates 

Use of an 

expert 

Underlying assumptions 

 - Assessment of degree of uncertainty 

 - Consideration of alternative estimates 

Change in 

accounting 

method in 

year? 

Impairments Assets are assessed at the year-

end for any indication that an 

asset may be impaired. Where 

indications exist and any 

possible differences are 

estimated to be material, the 

recoverable amount of the asset 

is estimated and, where this is 

less than the carrying amount of 

the asset, an impairment loss is 

recognised for the shortfall. 

Assets are assessed 

at each year-end as to 

whether there is any 

indication that an asset 

may be impaired. 

This assessment is made 

by the internal valuer for 

land and buildings and by 

Property Services 

Manager and capital 

accountant (and other 

relevant officers for the 

asset type) for other 

assets 

Use of Urban 

Vision augmented 

with internal 

Property Services 

(RICS valuer) for 

buildings 

valuations.  

Other assets 

considered by 

Services Manager 

and capital 

accountant 

Valuations are made in-line with RICS guidance 

- reliance on expert. 

No 

Finance lease liability At the inception of the lease the 

liability is the lower of the fair 

value of the asset or present 

value of the minimum lease 

payments. Payments are split 

between the finance charge and 

the element that reduces the 

liability. 

Finance review contracts 

and payments over the 

de-minimus level to 

ensure the lease is 

categorised correctly as a 

finance lease or an 

operating lease. 

Calculations supported 

by lease documents. 

May obtain 

guidance to 

support lease 

classifications. 

Assets recognised under finance leases are 

accounted for using the policies applied 

generally to such assets, subject to depreciation 

being charged over the lease term if this is 

shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life 

(where ownership of the asset does not transfer 

to the Council at the end of the lease period). 

No 

P
age 61



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Estimate considerations 

Estimate Method 

Controls used to 

identify estimates Use of an expert 

Underlying assumptions 

 - Assessment of degree of uncertainty 

 - Consideration of alternative estimates 

Change in 

accounting 

method in 

year? 

Pension liability The Council is an admitted 

body to the Derbyshire Local 

Government Pension Scheme. 

The administering authority (the 

County Council) engage the 

Actuary who provides the 

estimate of the pension liability. 

Payroll data is provided 

to the Actuary. 

Management reconcile 

this estimate of 

contributions to the 

actuals paid out in the 

year. 

Consulting actuary As disclosed in the actuary's report. Complex 

judgements including the discount rate used, rate 

at which salaries are projected to increase, 

changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and 

expected returns on pension fund assets. 

No 

Non adjusting 

events - events after 

the BS date 

S151 Officer makes the 

assessment. If the event is 

indicative of conditions that 

arose after the balance sheet 

date then this is an unadjusting 

event. For these events only a 

note to the accounts is included, 

identifying the nature of the 

event and where possible 

estimates of the financial effect 

Managers notify the s151 

officer 

This would be 

considered on 

individual 

circumstance. 

This would be considered on individual 

circumstance. 

N/a 

Allocation of overhead 

costs 

  

The finance team apportion 

central support costs to services 

using specified bases as detailed 

in supporting analysis. 

All support service 

cost centres are allocated 

according to the agreed 

principles. 

No Apportionment bases are reviewed each year to 

ensure that remain appropriate and equitable 

No 

P
age 62



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Estimate considerations 

Estimate Method 

Controls used to 

identify estimates Use of an expert 

Underlying assumptions 

 - Assessment of degree of uncertainty 

 - Consideration of alternative estimates 

Change in 

accounting 

method in 

year? 

Bad Debt 

Provision. 

  

A provision is estimated using a 

proportion basis of an aged debt 

listing. 

  

The finance team obtain 

the aged debt listing 

from the sales ledger,  

local taxation and rental 

systems to calculate the 

provision 

No Consistent proportion used across aged debt as 

per the Code. 

No 

Provisions for 

liabilities. 

  

Provisions are made where an 

event has taken place that gives 

the Council a legal or constructive 

obligation that probably requires 

settlement by a transfer of 

economic benefits, but where the 

timing of the transfer is uncertain. 

Provisions are charged as an 

expense to the appropriate service 

line in the CI&ES in the year that 

the Council becomes aware of the 

obligation, and are measured at 

the best estimate at the balance 

sheet date of the expenditure 

required to settle the obligation, 

taking into account relevant risks 

and uncertainties 

Charged in the year 

that the Council 

becomes aware of the 

obligation.  

No Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end 

of each financial year – where it becomes less 

than probable that a transfer of economic 

benefits will now be required (or a lower 

settlement than anticipated is made), the 

provision is reversed and credited back to the 

relevant service. Where some or all of the 

payment required to settle a provision is 

expected to be recovered from another party 

(e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only 

recognised as income for the relevant service if 

it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 

received by the Council 

No 

P
age 63



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Estimate considerations 

Estimate Method 

Controls used to 

identify estimates 

Use of an 

expert 

Underlying assumptions 

 - Assessment of degree of uncertainty 

 - Consideration of alternative estimates 

Change in 

accounting 

method in 

year? 

Accruals Finance team collate accruals of 

expenditure and income. Activity 

is accounted for in the financial 

year that it takes place, not when 

money is paid or received. 

While processes and procedures 

will be maintained to capture all 

accruals, resources will be focused 

on identifying individual 

transactions of £5,000  and above 

 

An Accumulated Absences 

creditor balance is  at £100,000 to 

reflect the value of time owed to 

employees for accrued holidays, 

TOIL (time off in lieu) and 

flexitime. This balance is based on 

an historic value subject to annual 

review and amendment where 

there have been significant 

changes in staff numbers or 

working patterns 

Review financial systems 

to identify where goods 

have been received but 

not paid for. 

 

Requests of service 

managers to identify any 

other goods or services 

received or provided but 

not paid for , 

concentrating on 

transactions greater than 

£5,000. 

 

Review of circumstances 

that indicate the 

approach to annual leave 

accrual is no longer valid. 

No Accruals for income and expenditure often based 

on known values. 

 

Where accruals are estimated the latest available 

information is used. 

 

The value of the accruals below the threshold of 

£5,000 identified in prior years is not a material 

amount. 

 

The annual leave accrual is based on historic 

records. An annual review will be performed to 

assess whether there any circumstances that mean 

the historic calculation of annual leave is no 

longer a reasonable estimate and whether the 

survey process needs to be performed on a partial 

or complete basis.  Events likely to trigger such a 

decision would be significant changes in staff 

numbers or working patterns. 

 

No 

P
age 64



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Related parties 
Issue 

Matters in relation to related parties 

 

ISA (UK&I) 550 covers auditor responsibilities relating to related party transactions. 

 

Many related party transactions are in the normal course of business and may not carry a higher risk of material misstatement. However in some circumstances the nature 

of the relationships and transaction may give rise to higher risks. 

  

For local government bodies, the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires compliance with IAS 24: related party 

disclosures. The Code identifies the following as related parties to local government bodies: 

• entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by the Council (i.e. subsidiaries) 

• associates 

• joint ventures in which the Council is a venturer 

• an entity that has an interest in the Council that gives it significant influence over the Council 

• key officers, and close members of the family of key officers 

• post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any entity that is a related party of the Council. 

 

The Code notes that, in considering materiality, regard should be had to the definition of materiality, which requires materiality to be judged from the viewpoint of both 

the Council and the related party. 

 

ISA (UK&I) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you have established to 

identify such transactions.  We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the financial statements are complete and 

accurate. 

P
age 65



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

Related party considerations 

Question Management response 

Who are the Council's 

related parties? 
People who are regarded as related parties are: 

• Elected members - Responsible for the direct control of the policies of the authority 

• Chief Executive,  The Executive Directors and other Senior Officers, as key management personnel that have the authority and responsibility 

for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the authority. 

• Members of the families and households of members and officers with the ability to influence members or officers. 

 

Entities that are regarded as related parties are: 

• Central government - Has effective control over local authorities, as authorities are incapable of acting without statutory authority. Able to limit 

possibility of independent action by specifying transactions and the terms on which they are concluded. 

• Other public bodies subject to common control by central government 

• The Council's strategic alliance partner – Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

• Partnerships, companies, trusts or any entities in which the Council or individual members/officers or a member of their close family or the 

same household has a controlling interest. 

NB precepting relationships and the Council's relationship with the pension fund (as an admitted body) are deemed to be agency arrangements 

and so these are not regarded as related parties. 

What are the controls 

in place to identify, 

account for, and 

disclose, related party 

transactions and  

relationships? 

A number of arrangements are in place for identifying the nature of a related party and reported value including: 

• Maintenance of a Register of interests for Members, a register for pecuniary interests in contracts for Officers and Senior Managers requiring 

disclosure of related party transactions. 

• Annual return from senior managers/officers and members requiring confirmation that read and understood the declaration requirements and 

stating details of any known related party interests. 

• Review of in-year income and expenditure transactions with known identified related parties from prior year or known history. 

• Review of related information with subsidiaries, companies and joint ventures, e.g. accounts. 

• Review of the accounts payable and receivable systems and identification of amounts paid to/from assisted or voluntary organisation 

• Review of year end debtor and creditor positions in relation to the related parties identified. 

• Review of minutes of decision making meetings to identify any member declarations and therefore related parties. 

P
age 66



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Informing the risk assessment   |  February 2017 

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  
'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  
Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

Back page 

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

14th February 2017 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 This report seeks approval to make changes to the authority’s accounting 

policies. 
 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Committee approve the changes to accounting policies as detailed in 

the report. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Council accounts for its financial transactions according to a set of 

policies that follow statutory requirements and best practice. They are 
published as an integral part of the Authority’s annual statement of accounts 
and any amendments require member approval. 

 
3.2 The amendments recommended in this report are primarily in response to the 

need to streamline accounting procedures to produce the annual statements 
within a tighter deadline. They also represent a more targeted and effective 
use of resources. 

 
3.3 The Accruals of Income and Expenditure policy is recommended for 

amendment in relation to: 
 

TITLE:   Amendments to Accounting Policies 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:    Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 

Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 

Manager 
Stephen Robinson – Principal Finance Officer 
(Financial Reporting) 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific 
 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



• Accumulated Absences: where an annual full service review and 
measurement is to be replaced by the reporting of a set creditor £100,000 
balance.  This is based on historic levels of liability. It will be subject to 
review but re-measurement will only be applied to those services where 
there has been a significant change in workforce or work patterns. 

• Transaction Accruals: where resources used identifying accruals are to be 
targeted at transactions of £5,000 or above. 

 
3.4 The Property Plant and Equipment policy is recommended for amendment 

in relation to: 
 

• De-minimis: where assets of £10,000 or below are to be carried on the 
Balance Sheet at existing values without future revaluation, depreciation or 
impairment being applied. These assets will be subject to an annual 
internal review. If this identifies a change in circumstances making it 
probable that an asset’s valuation would be significantly increased then a 
formal revaluation will be sought. 

 
 
4. How this report links with Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Options 
 
4.1 If the amendments are not approved the existing policies will continue to be 

applied. 
 
 

6. Implications 
 
6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)    
 None 
 
6.2 Workforce    
 None 
 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment 
 This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 

Diversity policies. 
 
6.4 Financial 
 This report relates to the statement of the Council’s accounts 
 
6.5 Legal 
 None 
 
6.6 Sustainability 
 None 

Page 70



 
6.7 Internal and External Consultation:  
 None 
 
6.8 Risk Assessment:     
 Not applicable 
 

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
 

Background Papers Location Contact 

Accounting Policies Finance and Performance  
Moorlands House 

Claire Hazeldene 
Finance and Procurement 
Manager 
Tel:  (01538) 395400  
Ext. 5466 
 
Stephen Robinson 
Principal Finance Officer 
(Financial Reporting) 
Tel: (01538) 395400 
Ext. 4194 

 

Page 71



7. Background and Introduction 
 
7.1 Accounting policies set out the basis used to recognise, measure and disclose 

financial transactions and other events in the Authority’s accounts.  They are 
based on best practice and legislative requirements and are published 
annually in the Council’s statement of accounts.   

 
7.2 As these policies impact directly on the way that financial information is 

reported they are subject to member scrutiny and approval. 
 
7.3 While much of the substance of individual policies is dictated by statute each 

Authority has scope to design them to fit their particular circumstances.  From 
financial year end 2017/18, the Council will need to produce the draft set of 
accounts by 31st May – a month earlier than the current deadline of 30th 
June. If this deadline is to be achieved within existing resources it has been 
recognised by Councils and their external auditors that greater emphasis must 
be put on materiality and using estimation techniques. 

 
7.4 A review of the Authority’s existing accounting policies has identified a number 

of amendments that could help focus resources without materially reducing 
the accuracy of the statements produced. 

 
 
8. Accruals of Income and Expenditure   
 
8.1 In accordance with accounting best practice the Authority seeks to match 

financial transactions to the correct accounting period. This accrual process is 
constrained by the resources available and the tight deadlines for producing 
financial statements. In order to maximise the effectiveness of the process it is 
deemed necessary to target resources at those areas which may produce 
significant changes in the financial figures being reported. To this end 
changes in accrual policy are proposed in regard to accounting for 
accumulated absences and individual transactions. 

 
 Accumulated Absences 
 
8.2 Siince 2010/11 the Authority has completed a survey of all staff at the financial 

year end to measure the untaken hours of leave, TOIL (time off in lieu) and 
flexitime that they have accrued in line with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS). These hours are then converted to a monetary value based 
on the amount that would have to be paid to the individual to clear this liability 
on the 31st March. The accumulated value of these calculations for all staff is 
carried as a creditor balance in the Authority’s accounts. This exercise is 
repeated each year with the change in the calculated balance forming a 
charge to or from the individual services. 

 
8.3 The table below sets out the annual accumulated absences balances and 

charges to or from services since 2010/11; 
 
 

Page 72



 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Average 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Balance 104 135 134 112 87 100 112 
Service Charge (Credit) 104 (31) (1) (22) (25) 13 18 
 
 
8.4 The average annual change in the balance, since 2010/11, is only £18,000 

and in no year has the charge or credit to services been considered 
significant.  It is proposed that, to save time and resources, the annual survey 
and calculations are no longer routinely performed.  Instead the accumulated 
absences creditor balance will continue to be carried forward at the 2015/16 
level of £100,000. This value has been chosen as opposed to the higher 
average figure of £112,000 to acknowledge the reduction in staff numbers 
over recent years. 

 
8.5 An annual review will be performed to assess whether the process should be 

performed on a partial or complete basis. Events likely to trigger such a 
decision would be significant changes in staff numbers or working patterns. 

 
8.6 The proposed addition to the Authority’s Accrual of Income and Expenditure 

policy is: 
 

An Accumulated Absences creditor balance is maintained to reflect the value 
of time owed to employees for accrued holidays, TOIL (time off in lieu) and 
flexitime. This balance is based on an historic value subject to annual review 
and amendment where there have been significant changes in staff numbers 
or working patterns. 
 
Individual Transactions 

 
8.7 As part of the closedown process each year the Authority commits 

considerable resources to identifying into which period financial transactions 
fall and ensuring that they are accrued to the correct financial year. These 
transactions can range in value from pence to tens of thousands of pounds.  
In prior years the Authority has sought to ensure that all transactions have 
been correctly accrued irrespective of their value. 

 
8.8 A June deadline for production of the statements allowed for a thorough 

review of transactions up to two months into the new financial year. The 
deadline for the 2017/18 statements is the end of May which effectively halves 
the time available for the accrual process.   

 
8.9 In light of this the Authority will need to direct its resources at those 

transactions whose accrual would have the potential to materially impact the 
statement of accounts. By definition these will be the higher value 
transactions though it is acknowledged that large numbers of small items can 
similarly impact the statements.  It is therefore proposed that while processes 
and procedures will be maintained to capture all accruals, resources will be 
focused on individual transactions of £5,000 and above. 

 

Page 73



8.10 The proposed addition to the Authority’s Accrual of Income and Expenditure 
policy is: 

 
The resources available are concentrated on identifying and accruing 
individual transactions of £5,000 and above.  

 
 
9. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
9.1 The Authority recognises property assets on its balance sheet in accordance 

with accounting best practice in regard to valuation, depreciation and 
impairment. These processes are particularly resource intensive involving 
staff time as well as bought in services from external valuers. Whilst a number 
of the assets involved, such as office accommodation or leisure centres, are 
of considerable value there are others, usually small parcels of land, which 
are not. There is negligible impact on the financial statements of applying 
proper accounting processes to the smaller value assets. 

 
9.2 In order to save resources and to speed up the year end procedure it is 

proposed that property assets below a certain value are excluded from the 
process.  They would continue to be included on the Balance Sheet at their 
current value but no longer be routinely subject to revaluation or, where 
applicable, the calculation of depreciation and impairment. 

 
9.3 A de-minimis of £10,000 is considered appropriate to capture those property 

assets that are unlikely to show significant changes in valuation each year.  
Based on the 2015/16 year end valuations the assets captured by this de-
minimis would comprise; 

 
 Number Value Average 
  £ £ 
Land Parcels 128 7,657 60 
Properties 1 7,500 7,500 
Total 129 15,157 117 

 
9.4 It is acknowledged that the value of any of these assets may be impacted 

disproportionately by neighbouring developments or changes in designated 
use.  It will be necessary therefore to carry out annually an internal review of 
all the de-minimis assets to identify those where a material increase in value 
is considered likely and thereby trigger a formal revaluation. 

 
9.5 It is proposed that the Authority’s property, plant and equipment policy has the 

following de-minimis section added to it: 
 
De-minimis 
Where the gross value of a Property asset is £10,000 or less it is included on 
the Balance Sheet at its carrying value without further revaluation, 
depreciation or impairment.  These assets are subjected to an annual internal 
review. Where this identifies the potential for a significant increase that would 
take carrying values above £10,000, a formal valuation will be triggered. 

Page 74



 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 

 
14th February 2017 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached 
Appendix 1 Opt-in Letter and Appendix: Appointing an External Auditor – 

Information on the National Scheme 
Appendix 2 Appointing Person: Frequently Asked Questions 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 Following the demise of the Audit Commission new arrangements are needed 

for the appointment of external auditors. The Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 requires authorities to either opt in to the appointing person regime 
or to establish an Auditor Panel and conduct their own procurement exercise. 
The Council will need to consider the options available and put in place new 
arrangements in time to make a first appointment by 31 December 2017. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 That the Committee recommends to Council that the Authority opts in to the 

appointing person arrangements made by Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) for the appointment of external auditors. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 brought to a close the Audit 

Commission and established transitional arrangements for the appointment of 
external auditors and the setting of audit fees for all local government and 
NHS bodies in England. On 5th October 2015 the Secretary of State 
Communities and Local Government (CLG) determined that the transitional 

TITLE: Appointment of External Auditors - Public 
Sector Audit Appointments Opt-in 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 
    Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes – Executive Director 

(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



arrangements for local government bodies would be extended by one year to 
also include the audit of the accounts for 2017/18. 

 
3.2 When the current transitional arrangements come to an end on 31st March 

2018 the Council will be able to move to local appointment of the auditor. 
There are three broad options open to the Council under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 (the Act); to opt-in to an approved sector led body; 
establish an independent audit panel; or establish Joint Auditor Panel / local 
joint procurement arrangements. 
 

3.3 In response to the consultation on the new arrangement, the LGA successfully 
lobbied for Councils to be able to ‘opt-in’ to a Sector Led Body (SLB) 
appointed by the Secretary of State under the Act. An SLB would have the 
ability to negotiate contracts with the firms nationally, maximising the 
opportunities for the most economic and efficient approach to procurement of 
external audit on behalf of the whole sector. A non-binding expression of 
interest in opting-in to a SLB was submitted to the LGA in April 2016, which 
was noted by this committee at the 25th May 2016 meeting. 
 

3.4 In July 2016 PSAA were specified by the Secretary of State as an appointing 
person under regulation 3 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 
2015. The appointing person is sometimes referred to as the sector led body 
and PSAA has wide support across most of local government. 
 

3.5 The date by which authorities will need to opt in to the appointing person 
arrangements is 9th March 2017. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015 requires that a decision to opt in must be made by 
Full Council (authority meeting as a whole). To comply with this regulation this 
Committee is asked to make the recommendation to Council. 
 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The most economic and efficient approach to procurement of external audit 

contributes to the effective use of financial and other resources to ensure 
value for money.  

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 To approve the Council opt-in to the appointing person arrangements made by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of external 
auditors (Recommended). Opting-in will ensure the most efficient, timely and 
cost effective procurement of external audit. 

 
5.2 Do not approve the Council opt-in to the appointing person arrangements 

made by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of 
external auditors (Not Recommended). The Council will have to establish an 
independent audit panel which will be a more resource intensive and costly 
process. 
 

Page 76



 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
Current external fees levels are likely to increase when the current 
contracts end in 2018. Opting-in to a national SLB provides maximum 
opportunity to limit the extent of any increases by entering in to a large 
scale collective procurement arrangement and would remove the costs 
of establishing an auditor panel. 
 

6.5 Legal 
Opting in to the appointing person arrangements made by Public 
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of external 
auditors will ensure compliance with the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
Opting in to the appointing person arrangements made by Public Sector 
Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of external auditors by 
the opt-in deadline will enable successful transition to the new 
arrangement in a timely and efficient manner. Failing to meet this 
deadline will result in the far more resource intensive and costly process 
of establishing an independent Audit Panel. 
 
 

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
 

Page 77



 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 
 
PSAA  Invitation to opt 
into the national scheme 
for auditor appointments 
October 2016 
 
PSAA Prospectus 
August 2016 
 

Buxton Town Hall Andrew P Stokes 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief 
Finance Officer 
Tel: (01538) 395622 
e-mail: 
andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Page 78

mailto:andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


7. Background and Detail 
 
7.1 As part of closing the Audit Commission the Government novated external 

audit contracts to PSAA on 1 April 2015. The audits were due to expire 
following conclusion of the audits of the 2016/17 accounts, but could be 
extended for a period of up to three years by PSAA, subject to approval from 
the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG). 

 
7.2 In October 2015 the Secretary of State confirmed that the transitional 

provisions would be amended to allow an extension of the contracts for a 
period of one year. This meant that for the audit of the 2018/19 accounts it 
would be necessary for authorities to either undertake their own procurements 
or to opt in to the appointed person regime. 

 
7.3 There was a degree of uncertainty around the appointed person regime until 

July 2016 when PSAA were specified by the Secretary of State as an 
appointing person under regulation 3 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015. The appointing person is sometimes referred to as the 
sector led body and PSAA has wide support across most of local government. 
PSAA was originally established to operate the transitional arrangements 
following the closure of the Audit Commission and is a company owned by the 
Local Government Association’s Improvement and Development Agency 
(IDeA). 

 
 

8. Options for local appointment of External Auditors 
 

8.1 Under the legislation each Local Authority has 3 options: 
 

• Option 1 - Opt in to an approved sector led body (SLB) to be specified by 
DCLG to act as the Appointing Person on behalf of opted in Local 
Authorities. 

• Option 2 - To establish an independent Audit Panel. The Panel must be 
made up of a majority of wholly independent members and must be 
chaired by an independent member. 

• Option 3 - Establish a joint Auditor Panel to carry out the function on 
behalf of two or more bodies. 

 
8.2 Councillors will recall that a report was submitted to this Committee at the 25th 

May 2016 meeting which set out the advantages and disadvantages of these 3 
options. The Committee noted the decision to submit a non-binding expression 
of interest in opting-in to the Local Government Association (LGA) sector-led 
body approach to the procurement of future external audit contracts (Option 
1). 
 

8.3 The main advantages under Option 1 of using PSAA are set out in its 
prospectus and are copied below; these can also be viewed as the 
disadvantages if the Council was to decide to undertake its own procurement. 
Further information is contained within the Opt-in Letter and Appendix 
(Appendix 1). 
 

Page 79



• Assure timely auditor appointments 
• Manage independence of auditors 
• Secure highly competitive prices 
• Save on procurement costs 
• Focus on audit quality 
• Operate on a not for profit basis and distribute any surplus funds to 

scheme members. 
 

8.4 It is likely that a sector wide procurement conducted by PSAA will produce 
better outcomes for the Council than any procurement undertaken by this 
Council or with a limited number of partners. Use of the PSAA will also be less 
resource intensive than establishing an Auditor Panel and conducting our own 
procurement. Further information is contained within the Appointing Person 
FAQ’s (Appendix 2). 
 

8.5 The other Options have been considered and these are shown below:  
 
• Option 2 - To establish an Auditor Panel and conduct own procurement – 

this is not recommended as it will be a far more resource intensive 
process and without the economies of scale of the sector led procurement 
and would likely to result in a more costly service.  

 
• Option 3 - To establish a joint Auditor Panel to carry out the function on 

behalf of 2 or more bodies – this is not recommended because there is 
little appetite for a joint procurement.  

 
8.6 The date by which authorities will need to opt in to the appointing person 

arrangements is 9 March 2017. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015 requires that a decision to opt in must be made by 
Full Council (authority meeting as a whole). To comply with this regulation this 
Committee is asked to make the recommendation to Council. 
 

Page 80



 

 
 

 
PSAA, 3rd floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ 
T 020 7072 7445 www.psaa.co.uk   Company number: 09178094 

 

 

27 October 2016 

[Chief Executive Name] 
[Authority name] 
[Address] 
 

     
Email: appointingperson@psaa.co.uk 
   
  

Copied to: [Director of Finance name], [Job title], [Authority name] 
  [Monitoring officer name], [Job title], [Authority name] 

 
Dear [Salutation] 

Invitation to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments 
As you know the external auditor for the audit of the accounts for 2018/19 has to be appointed 
before the end of 2017. That may seem a long way away, but as there is now a choice about 
how to make that appointment, a decision on your authority’s approach will be needed soon. 

We are pleased that the Secretary of State has expressed his confidence in us by giving us the 
role of appointing local auditors under a national scheme. This is one choice open to your 
authority. We issued a prospectus about the scheme in July 2016, available to download on the 
appointing person page of our website, with other information you may find helpful. 

The timetable we have outlined for appointing auditors under the scheme means we now need 
to issue a formal invitation to opt into these arrangements. The covering email provides the 
formal invitation, along with a form of acceptance of our invitation for you to use if your authority 
decides to join the national scheme. We believe the case for doing so is compelling. To help 
with your decision we have prepared the additional information attached to this letter.  

I need to highlight two things: 

x we need to receive your formal acceptance of this invitation by 9 March 2017; and 
x the relevant regulations require that, except for a body that is a corporation sole (a police 

and crime commissioner), the decision to accept the invitation and to opt in needs to be 
made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole. We appreciate this will need to 
be built into your decision making timetable. 

If you have any other questions not covered by our information, do not hesitate to contact us by 
email at appointingperson@psaa.co.uk. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Jon Hayes 
Chief Officer 

Page 81

http://www.psaa.co.uk/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/
mailto:appointingperson@psaa.co.uk


 
 

 
2 

 

Appointing an external auditor 

Information on the national scheme 
 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) 

We are a not-for-profit company established by the Local Government Association (LGA). We 
administer the current audit contracts, let by the Audit Commission before it closed.  

We have the support of the LGA, which has worked to secure the option for principal local 
government and police bodies to appoint auditors through a dedicated sector-led national 
procurement body. We have established an advisory panel, drawn from representative groups 
of local government and police bodies, to give access to your views on the design and operation 
of the scheme.  

The national scheme for appointing local auditors 

We have been specified by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government as 
the appointing person for principal local government bodies. This means that we will make 
auditor appointments to principal local government bodies that choose to opt into the national 
appointment arrangements we will operate for audits of the accounts from 2018/19. These 
arrangements are sometimes described as the ‘sector-led body’ option, and our thinking for this 
scheme was set out in a prospectus circulated to you in July. The prospectus is available on the 
appointing person page of our website. 

We will appoint an auditor for all opted-in authorities for each of the five financial years 
beginning from 1 April 2018, unless the Secretary of State chooses to terminate our role as the 
appointing person beforehand. He or she may only do so after first consulting opted-in 
authorities and the LGA. 

What the appointing person scheme will offer 

We are committed to making sure the national scheme will be an excellent option for auditor 
appointments for you.  

We intend to run the scheme in a way that will save time and resources for local government 
bodies. We think that a collective procurement, which we will carry out on behalf of all opted-in 
authorities, will enable us to secure the best prices, keeping the cost of audit as low as possible 
for the bodies who choose to opt in, without compromising on audit quality.  
Our current role means we have a unique experience and understanding of auditor procurement 
and the local public audit market. 
Using the scheme will avoid the need for you to: 

x establish an audit panel with independent members; 
x manage your own auditor procurement and cover its costs; 
x monitor the independence of your appointed auditor for the duration of the appointment;  
x deal with the replacement of any auditor if required; and 
x manage the contract with your auditor. 

Our scheme will endeavour to appoint the same auditors to other opted-in bodies that are 
involved in formal collaboration or joint working initiatives, if you consider that a common auditor 
will enhance efficiency and value for money. 

Page 82

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/


 
 

 
3 

 

We will also try to be flexible about changing your auditor during the five-year appointing period 
if there is good reason, for example where new joint working arrangements are put in place. 

Securing a high level of acceptances to the opt-in invitation will provide the best opportunity for 
us to achieve the most competitive prices from audit firms. The LGA has previously sought 
expressions of interest in the appointing person arrangements, and received positive responses 
from over 270 relevant authorities. We ultimately hope to achieve participation from the vast 
majority of eligible authorities.  

High quality audits 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 provides that firms must be registered as local 
public auditors with one of the chartered accountancy institutes acting in the capacity of a 
Recognised Supervisory Body (RSB). The quality of registered firms’ work will be subject to 
scrutiny by both the RSB and the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), under arrangements set 
out in the Act. 

We will: 

x only contract with audit firms that have a proven track record in undertaking public audit 
work; 

x include obligations in relation to maintaining and continuously improving quality in our 
contract terms and in the quality criteria in our tender evaluation; 

x ensure that firms maintain the appropriate registration and will liaise closely with RSBs and 
the FRC to ensure that any quality concerns are detected at an early stage; and 

x take a close interest in your feedback and in the rigour and effectiveness of firms’ own 
quality assurance arrangements.  

We will also liaise with the National Audit Office to help ensure that guidance to auditors is 
updated as necessary.  

Procurement strategy 

In developing our procurement strategy for the contracts with audit firms, we will have input from 
the advisory panel we have established. The panel will assist PSAA in developing 
arrangements for the national scheme, provide feedback to us on proposals as they develop, 
and helping us maintain effective channels of communication. We think it is particularly 
important to understand your preferences and priorities, to ensure we develop a strategy that 
reflects your needs within the constraints set out in legislation and in professional requirements. 

In order to secure the best prices we are minded to let audit contracts: 

x for 5 years; 
x in 2 large contract areas nationally, with 3 or 4 contract lots per area, depending on the 

number of bodies that opt in; and 
x to a number of firms in each contract area to help us manage independence issues. 

 
The value of each contract will depend on the prices bid, with the firms offering the best value 
being awarded larger amounts of work. By having contracts with a number of firms, we will be 
able to manage issues of independence and avoid dominance of the market by one or two 
firms. Limiting the national volume of work available to any one firm will encourage competition 
and ensure the plurality of provision. 

Page 83



 
 

 
4 

 

Auditor appointments and independence 

Auditors must be independent of the bodies they audit, to enable them to carry out their work 
with objectivity and credibility, and in a way that commands public confidence.  

We plan to take great care to ensure that every auditor appointment passes this test. We will 
also monitor significant proposals for auditors to carry out consultancy or other non-audit work, 
to protect the independence of auditor appointments. 

We will consult you on the appointment of your auditor, most likely from September 2017. To 
make the most effective allocation of appointments, it will help us to know about: 

x any potential constraints on the appointment of your auditor because of a lack of 
independence, for example as a result of consultancy work awarded to a particular firm; 

x any joint working or collaboration arrangements that you think should influence the 
appointment; and 

x other local factors you think are relevant to making the appointment. 

We will ask you for this information after you have opted in. 

Auditor appointments for the audit of the accounts of the 2018/19 financial year must be made 
by 31 December 2017. 

Fee scales 

We will ensure that fee levels are carefully managed by securing competitive prices from firms 
and by minimising our own costs. Any surplus funds will be returned to scheme members under 
our articles of association and our memorandum of understanding with the Department for 
Communities and Local Government and the LGA.  

Our costs for setting up and managing the scheme will need to be covered by audit fees. We 
expect our annual operating costs will be lower than our current costs because we expect to 
employ a smaller team to manage the scheme. We are intending to fund an element of the 
costs of establishing the scheme, including the costs of procuring audit contracts, from local 
government’s share of our current deferred income. We think this is appropriate because the 
new scheme will be available to all relevant principal local government bodies. 

PSAA will pool scheme costs and charge fees to audited bodies in accordance with a fair scale 
of fees which has regard to size, complexity and audit risk, most likely as evidenced by audit 
fees for 2016/17. Pooling means that everyone in the scheme will benefit from the most 
competitive prices. Fees will reflect the number of scheme participants – the greater the level of 
participation, the better the value represented by our scale fees.  

Scale fees will be determined by the prices achieved in the auditor procurement that PSAA will 
need to undertake during the early part of 2017. Contracts are likely to be awarded at the end of 
June 2017, and at this point the overall cost and therefore the level of fees required will be 
clear. We expect to consult on the proposed scale of fees in autumn 2017 and to publish the 
fees applicable for 2018/19 in March 2018.  

Page 84



 
 

 
5 

 

Opting in 

The closing date for opting in is 9 March 2017. We have allowed more than the minimum eight 
week notice period required, because the formal approval process for most eligible bodies, 
except police and crime commissioners, is a decision made by the members of an authority 
meeting as a whole.  

We will confirm receipt of all opt-in notices. A full list of authorities who opt in will be published 
on our website. Once we have received an opt-in notice, we will write to you to request 
information on any joint working arrangements relevant to your auditor appointment, and any 
potential independence matters that would prevent us appointing a particular firm. 

If you decide not to accept the invitation to opt in by the closing date, you may subsequently 
make a request to opt in, but only after 1 April 2018. The earliest an auditor appointment can be 
made for authorities that opt in after the closing date is therefore for the audit of the accounts for 
2019/20. We are required to consider such requests, and agree to them unless there are 
reasonable grounds for their refusal. 

Timetable 

In summary, we expect the timetable for the new arrangements to be: 

x Invitation to opt in issued 27 October 2016 

x Closing date for receipt of notices to opt in 9 March 2017 

x Contract notice published 20 February 2017 

x Award audit contracts By end of June 2017 

x Consult on and make auditor appointments By end of December 2017 

x Consult on and publish scale fees By end of March 2018 

 
Enquiries 

We publish frequently asked questions on our website. We are keen to receive feedback from 
local bodies on our plans. Please email your feedback or questions to: 
appointingperson@psaa.co.uk.  

If you would like to discuss a particular issue with us, please send an email to the above 
address, and we will make arrangements either to telephone or meet you. 

 

Page 85

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/
mailto:appointingperson@psaa.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

Appointing person: Frequently asked questions (updated 1 December 2016) 

 
Index to questions         Page       
The appointing person scheme and eligible bodies   (questions 1-6) .................. 2 

The opt-in process   (questions 7-11) ...................................................................... 5 

PSAA’s audit procurement  (questions 12-19) ....................................................... 8 

Auditor appointments  (questions 20-21) ............................................................. 11 

Scale audit fees   (question 22) .............................................................................. 13 

Contract management   (questions 23-25) ............................................................ 14 

Non-audit work   (questions 26-27) ........................................................................ 16 

Appointment requirements for authorities that do not opt in  (question 28) ..... 18 

 

  

P
age 87



 
 

2 
 

The appointing person scheme and eligible bodies   (questions 1-6) 

Question Response 
1. What is an appointing person and which bodies are eligible 

to opt in? 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) has been 
specified as an appointing person under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015, and has the power to make auditor appointments 
for audits of the accounts from 2018/19 on behalf of principal local 
government bodies that opt in, in accordance with the Regulations. 
PSAA is a not-for-profit company owned by the LGA’s Improvement 
and Development Agency (IDeA) and was established to operate 
the transitional arrangements following closure of the Audit 
Commission. The ‘appointing person’ is sometimes referred to as 
the sector-led body. 
Eligible bodies are only those principal local government bodies 
listed in schedule 2 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 
This includes county councils, district councils, London borough 
councils, unitary authorities, metropolitan councils, police bodies, 
fire and rescue authorities, joint authorities, combined authorities 
(covering elected regional mayors), national park authorities, 
conservation boards, passenger transport executives, waste 
authorities, and the GLA and its functional bodies. Smaller 
authorities (such as parish councils) and NHS bodies, including 
accountable care organisations, are not eligible to opt in.  
A list of the 493 local government bodies currently eligible for the 
appointing person scheme is available on the appointing person 
page of our website (http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-
transition/appointing-person/).  

2. What are the terms of reference of the appointing person? PSAA is a not-for-profit company wholly owned by the IDeA (the 
IDeA is wholly owned by the LGA). PSAA will continue to operate as 
an independent company, although there will be changes to its 
governance arrangements and its founding documents to reflect the 

P
age 88

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/appointing-person/


 
 

3 
 

Question Response 
fact that it will be an appointing person going forward rather than a 
transitional body.  

3. In addition to the Code of Audit Practice requirements set 
out by the NAO, will the contracts include the audit of wholly 
owned companies and group accounts? 

Local authority group accounts are part of the accounts produced 
under the CIPFA SORP and are subject to audit in line with the 
NAO Code of Audit Practice. They will continue to be part of the 
statutory audit for which PSAA will make an auditor appointment for 
opted-in bodies.  
Local authority companies are not listed in the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act as bodies subject to audit under that act. 
Company audits are subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 
2006 and are not covered by the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015 or the scope of PSAA’s specification as the 
appointing person.  
Local authority companies must appoint an auditor themselves in 
accordance with Companies Act legislation. They are able to 
appoint the same audit firm as PSAA appoints to undertake the 
principal body audit, should they so wish, for example where this 
could support an efficient audit process. 

4. Will the appointing person arrangements cover the audit of 
an authority’s pension fund where it is the administrative 
body responsible for preparing the pension fund accounts? 

Pension funds are not separate legal entities from their 
administering local authority, and are therefore not listed as relevant 
authorities in schedule 2 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014. The auditor appointment to an opted-in local authority will 
include the audit of the pension fund where the authority is the 
administering body. As is currently the case, the pension fund audit 
will be subject to a separate engagement and scale audit fee, but 
the auditor appointment will cover both the local authority and the 
pension fund. 

5. We have a joint committee which no longer has a statutory 
requirement to have an external auditor but has agreed in 
the interests of all parties to continue to engage one. Is it 

The requirement for joint committees to produce statutory accounts 
ceased after production of the 2014/15 accounts and they are 
therefore not listed in Schedule 2. Joint committees that have opted 

P
age 89



 
 

4 
 

Question Response 
possible to use this process as an option to procure the 
external auditor for the joint committee? 

to produce accounts voluntarily and obtain non-statutory assurance 
on them will need to make their own local arrangements. 

6. Will membership be free for existing members of the LGA? 
 

The option to join the appointing person scheme will be open to all 
principal local government authorities listed under Schedule 2 of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. There will not be a fee to 
join the sector-led arrangements. The audit fees that opted-in 
bodies will be charged will cover the costs to PSAA of appointing 
auditors and managing the arrangements. We believe that audit 
fees achieved through large contracts will be lower than the costs 
that individual authorities will be able to negotiate. In addition, by 
opting into the PSAA offer, authorities will avoid the costs of their 
own procurement and management of contracts and also the 
requirement to set up an auditor panel with independent members. 

 

  

P
age 90



 
 

5 
 

The opt-in process   (questions 7-11) 

Question Response 
7. When will invitations to opt in be issued? The invitation to opt in was issued on 27 October 2016 with a 

closing date for acceptance of 9 March 2017. This allows 
considerably longer than the statutory minimum period of eight 
weeks, for the requirement under the regulations that authorities 
must make the decision to opt in at a full authority meeting. As 
corporations sole, the full authority requirement does not apply to 
police and crime commissioners. 
The aim is to award contracts to audit firms by June 2017, giving six 
months to consult with authorities and confirm appointments before 
the 31 December 2017 deadline to appoint auditors for the following 
financial year. 
In order to maximise the potential economies of scale from agreeing 
large contracts with firms, and to manage any auditor independence 
issues, PSAA needs as much certainty as possible about the 
volume and location of work it is able to offer to firms. Our timetable 
means that we will need to start preparing tender documentation 
early in 2017, so we will need to know which authorities have opted 
in. 

8. How do we have to make the decision to accept the 
invitation to opt in? 

In accordance with Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015, a principal authority will need to make 
the decision to opt in at full authority (authority meeting as a whole), 
except where the authority is a corporation sole (such as a police 
and crime commissioner), in which case the function must be 
exercised by the holder of the office. 

9. Can we join after it has been set up or do we have to join at 
the beginning? 

One of the main benefits of an appointing person approach is the 
ability to achieve economies of scale as a result of being able to 
offer larger volumes of work. The greater the number of participants 
we have signed up at the outset, the better the economies of scale 

P
age 91



 
 

6 
 

Question Response 
we are likely to achieve. This will not prevent authorities from 
applying to join the appointing person scheme in later years (and 
PSAA must agree to the request unless there are reasonable 
grounds to refuse), but they will need to make their own 
arrangements to appoint an auditor in the interim, which will include 
establishing an auditor panel. In order to be in the best position we 
would encourage as many authorities as possible to commit by 
accepting the invitation within the specified timeframe, that is by 9 
March 2017. 

10. Will the appointing person take on all auditor panel roles 
and therefore mitigate the need for there to be one in each 
individual authority? 

Opting into the appointing person scheme will remove the need to 
set up an auditor panel. This is set out in the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015. 

11. How does the opt-in process work for police and crime 
commissioners and chief constables, given that chief 
constables cannot appoint their own auditor? 

PSAA has issued the opt-in invitation to chief constables as well as 
police and crime commissioners because the Local Audit 
(Appointing Person) Regulations 2015, issued under the provisions 
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, require the 
appointing person to issue an invitation to “all principal authorities 
which fall within the class of authorities in relation to which the 
person has been specified” (Regulation 8). PSAA’s specification as 
an appointing person covers all relevant local government 
authorities that are principal bodies, as listed in Schedule 2 of the 
2014 Act. Chief constables and police and crime commissioners are 
listed separately as relevant authorities.  
While the responsibility for the decision about appointing an auditor 
for the chief constable is reserved to the police and crime 
commissioner for a police area (under schedule 3 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014), the police and crime commissioner 
will need to consider this decision with the chief constable. The opt-
in invitation information sent by PSAA provides chief constables with 
essential information about the appointing person arrangements, 

P
age 92



 
 

7 
 

Question Response 
including the timetable for the opt-in process. This should enable 
chief constables to engage with police and crime commissioners on 
this decision. 
Where a police and crime commissioner makes a decision to opt 
into PSAA’s national auditor appointment arrangements and 
submits a notice of acceptance of the invitation, this notice must 
cover the chief constable as well. PSAA will need to confirm that the 
notice covers the chief constable if this is not explicitly stated. As 
separate legal entities, PSAA will subsequently need to make 
separate auditor appointments, albeit of the same audit firm, to the 
opted-in police and crime commissioner and chief constable for a 
police area. 

 

  

P
age 93



 
 

8 
 

PSAA’s audit procurement  (questions 12-19) 

Question Response 
12. How will we be able to influence the development of the 

appointing person scheme and associated contracts with 
audit firms? 

We have established a stakeholder advisory panel which will 
comment on our proposals. Members of the panel are drawn from 
representative organisations for councils, police and fire bodies. The 
first meeting of the group was held on 30 September 2016. Further 
meetings are scheduled for 23 November 2016, 26 January 2017 
and 25 May 2017. 
PSAA continues to work in partnership with the LGA in setting up 
the appointing person scheme and you can feed in comments and 
observations to PSAA by emailing appointingperson@psaa.co.uk 
and via the LGA and their principal advisors. 

13. Will there be standard contract terms and conditions? The audit contracts between PSAA and the audit firms will require 
firms to deliver audits compliant with the National Audit Office (NAO) 
Code of Audit Practice. We are aware that authorities would like to 
understand how performance and delivery will be monitored and 
managed. This is one of the issues that could be discussed with the 
stakeholder advisory panel. 

14. What will be the length of the contracts? The length of contract between PSAA and firms will be five years. 

15. Will bodies that opt in be able to seek information from 
potential suppliers and undertake some form of evaluation 
to choose a supplier? 

PSAA will run the tendering exercise, and will evaluate bids and 
award contracts. PSAA will consult authorities on individual auditor 
appointments. The appointment of an auditor independently of the 
body to be audited is an important feature of the appointing person 
arrangements and will continue to underpin strong corporate 
governance in the public sector. 

16. Will the price be fixed or will there be a range of prices? The fee for the audit of a body that opts in will reflect the size, audit 
risk and complexity of the work required. PSAA will establish a 
system for setting the fee which is fair to all opted-in authorities. As 

P
age 94

mailto:appointingperson@psaa.co.uk


 
 

9 
 

Question Response 
a not-for-profit organisation, PSAA will be able to return any 
surpluses to opted-in authorities after all costs have been met. 

17. How will the appointing person scheme ensure audit firms 
are not over-stretched and that the competition in the 
market place is increased? 

The number of firms eligible to undertake local public audit is 
regulated through the Financial Reporting Council and the 
recognised Supervisory Bodies (RSBs). Only appropriately 
accredited firms will be able to bid for appointments whether that is 
through PSAA or an auditor panel. 
PSAA is developing a procurement strategy which may include a 
limit on the total business available to any one firm.  
One of the advantages of the appointing person option is to make 
appointments that help to ensure that each successful firm has a 
sufficient quantum of work to make it possible for them to invest in 
public sector specific training, maintain a centre of excellence or hub 
that will mean: 

x firms have a regional presence; 
x greater continuity of staff input; and 
x a better understanding the local political, economic and social 

environment. 

18. Will the appointing person scheme contract with a number 
of different audit firms and how will they be allocated to 
authorities? 

PSAA will organise the contracts to maximise the number of firms 
appointed nationally. The minimum number of audit firms is 
probably four or five (depending on the number of bodies that opt 
in). This is required, not just to ensure competition and capacity, but 
because each firm is required to comply with the FRC’s ethical 
standards. This means that an individual firm may not be 
appointable for ‘independence’ reasons, for example, because they 
have undertaken consultancy work at an audited body. PSAA will 
consult on appointments that allow each firm a balanced portfolio of 
work subject to independence considerations. 

P
age 95



 
 

10 
 

Question Response 
19. What is the timetable for set up and key decisions? We expect the key points in the timetable to be broadly: 

x establish an overall strategy for procurement - by November 
2016; 

x achieve ‘sign-up’ of opted-in authorities - by 9 March 2017; 
x invite tenders from audit firms - by April 2017; 
x award contracts - by 30 June 2017; 
x consult on and make final auditor appointments - by 31 

December 2017; and 
x consult on, propose audit fees and publish fees - by 31 March 

2018. 
 

  

P
age 96



 
 

11 
 

Auditor appointments  (questions 20-21) 

Question Response 
20. We have shared service arrangements with our 

neighbouring bodies and we are looking to ensure that we 
share the same auditor. Will the appointing person scheme 
allow for this? 

PSAA will be able to make appointments to all principal local 
government bodies listed in Schedule 2 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 that are ‘relevant authorities’ and not 
excluded as a result of being smaller authorities, for example parish 
councils.  
In setting up the new arrangements, one of our aims is to make 
auditor appointments that take account of joint working and shared 
service arrangements. Requests for the same auditor as other 
authorities will need to be balanced with auditor independence 
considerations. As we have set out in our prospectus, auditors must 
be independent of the bodies they audit. PSAA will have an 
obligation under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 to ensure that every auditor appointment it makes passes 
this test and auditors must comply with the requirements of the 
Ethical Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council.  
We will need information from opted-in authorities on potential 
independence considerations and joint working arrangements, and 
will also need information on independence issues from the audit 
firms. Risks to auditor independence include, for example, an audit 
firm having previously been engaged to advise on a major 
procurement which could, of course, later be subject to audit.  

21. In what circumstances can an auditor be changed during 
the five year opt-in period, and how does this differ from 
locally procured arrangements? 

The main circumstances in which PSAA will consider changing an 
auditor appointment during the five year compulsory appointing 
period are either for independence reasons, for example the 
identification of a conflict of interest involving the existing audit firm, 
or because of the emergence of new joint working arrangements. 
An authority appointing its own auditor will find it more difficult to 
change their auditor appointment during the contracted period, as 

P
age 97



 
 

12 
 

Question Response 
this would require the authority to conduct a new selection and 
procurement exercise. The appointing person scheme will therefore 
provide more flexibility for opted-in bodies. 

  

P
age 98



 
 

13 
 

Scale audit fees   (question 22) 

Question Response 
22. How will audit fee levels be set for each individual body with 

the objective of recovering PSAA costs at the aggregate 
level? 

PSAA will pool scheme costs and charge fees to audited bodies in 
accordance with a fair scale of fees which has regard to size, 
complexity and audit risk, most likely as currently evidenced by audit 
fees for 2016/17. Pooling means that everyone in the scheme will 
benefit from the most competitive prices. Fees will reflect the 
number of scheme participants – the greater the level of 
participation, the better the value represented by our scale fees. 
2018/19 scale fees will be determined by the prices achieved in the 
auditor procurement that PSAA will undertake during the early part 
of 2017. We expect to consult on the proposed scale of fees in 
autumn 2017 and to publish the fees applicable in March 2018. 
Where more or less work is required than is envisaged in the scale 
fee, a fee variation process will apply. The variations process will 
ensure that fees for additional work cannot be invoiced until agreed 
with the audited body and approved by PSAA. 

 

  

P
age 99



 
 

14 
 

Contract management   (questions 23-25) 

Question Response 
23. What will be the process to feed in opinions of current 

auditors if there are issues? 
PSAA will seek feedback on its auditors as part of its engagement 
with the sector. PSAA will continue to have a clear complaints 
process and will also undertake contract monitoring of the firms it 
appoints. 

24. What will be the arrangements for overseeing the quality of 
audit work undertaken by the audit firms appointed by the 
appointing person? 

PSAA will only contract with firms which have a proven track record 
in undertaking public audit work. In accordance with the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014, firms must be registered with one of 
the chartered accountancy institutes acting in the capacity of a 
Recognised Supervisory Body (RSB). The quality of the firms’ work 
will be subject to scrutiny by both the RSB and the Financial 
Reporting Council (FRC). Current indications are that fewer than ten 
large firms will register, meaning that small local firms will not be 
eligible to be appointed to local public audit roles. 
PSAA will ensure that firms maintain the appropriate registration 
and will liaise closely with RSBs and the FRC to ensure that any 
concerns are detected at an early stage and addressed effectively in 
the new regime. PSAA will take a close interest in feedback from 
opted-in bodies and in the rigour and effectiveness of firms’ own 
quality assurance arrangements, recognising that these represent 
some of the earliest and most important safety nets for identifying 
and remedying any problems. We will liaise with the NAO to help 
ensure that guidance to auditors is updated when necessary. 

25. How will the appointing person scheme deal with an 
authority that is dissatisfied with its auditor and wants a 
change (e.g. because of quality, relationships, or a conflict 
of interest)? 

As with the current arrangements, where an authority is dissatisfied 
with its auditor, concerns should be raised in the first instance with 
the firm’s Engagement Lead and subsequently with the firm’s PSAA 
Contact Partner (as indicated on communications between the firm 
and the authority).  

P
age 100



 
 

15 
 

Question Response 
If the authority is not satisfied with the response of the firm, then the 
matter should be raised with PSAA.  
As appointing person, PSAA appoints a firm as auditor to an 
authority. The firm is responsible for nominating an individual to act 
as the Engagement Leader on the audit of an authority. 
PSAA will consider changing an auditor appointment in extremis if 
an authority is dissatisfied, but would expect the authority and the 
firm to have exhausted all avenues for resolution before doing so. 
Maintaining the independence of the auditor is an important part of 
this consideration. 
PSAA will consider changing an auditor appointment during the five 
year compulsory appointing periods, if a conflict of interest involving 
the existing audit firm is identified, or because of the emergence of 
new joint working arrangements. 
The appointing person scheme will have the flexibility to provide an 
audit alternative if required in these cases.  
PSAA will be monitoring the quality of audit services provided as 
part of the contractual terms of appointment to be agreed with firms. 

 

  

P
age 101



 
 

16 
 

Non-audit work   (questions 26-27) 

Question Response 
26. Will an auditor be able to provide my authority with non-

audit consultancy services? 
The independence requirements for all auditors within the local 
public audit regime are the same whether locally appointed, or part 
of the appointing person regime. These requirements are specified 
by the Financial Reporting Council in the Ethical Standard and 
applied to local public audit as determined by the NAO. 
The services that an auditor can provide are the same, whatever the 
appointment method. 
As the Appointing Person, PSAA will perform the role otherwise 
required of an auditor panel to advise the authority on the 
maintenance of the independence of the auditor [Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 section 10(1)]. 
PSAA will consider changing an auditor appointment during the five-
year compulsory appointing period for independence reasons, if for 
example the identification of a conflict of interest involving the 
existing audit firm, or because of the emergence of new joint 
working arrangements. 

27. What will be the future arrangements under the appointing 
person scheme for certifying grant claims?  

PSAA’s audit contracts from 2018/19 will not cover certification 
work. PSAA has no power under the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 to make certification arrangements, and its arrangements 
will apply only to opted-in bodies. Any certification work required by 
grant paying government departments will need to be undertaken 
using a tripartite agreement between an audited body, an audit firm 
and the grant paying body, under instructions prepared by the grant 
paying body.  
The Department for Work and Pensions is developing its 
arrangements for housing benefit subsidy claim certification from 
2018/19 on this basis. Where applicable, local authorities will 
appoint an auditor for this certification work (for which an auditor 

P
age 102



 
 

17 
 

Question Response 
panel is not required) and may choose to use the same auditor 
appointed by PSAA for the audit of the accounts, if they are opted-in 
bodies. 

 

  

P
age 103



 
 

18 
 

Appointment requirements for authorities that do not opt in  (question 28) 

Question Response 
28. If an authority chooses not to opt in to the appointing person 

arrangements, what local arrangements will they need to 
put in place? 

All relevant authorities listed in schedule 2 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 (the Act), whether they opt in or not, are 
required to comply with Part 3 of the Act in relation to the 
appointment of local auditors. Section 7 of the Act requires a 
relevant authority to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a 
financial year not later than 31 December in the preceding financial 
year. For the 2018/19 accounts, a local auditor must be appointed 
by 31 December 2017. 
For authorities that choose to opt into the appointing person 
arrangements, PSAA will appoint their auditor for them by 31 
December 2017, having consulted the authority about the proposed 
appointment. 
For authorities that choose not to opt into the appointing person 
arrangements, there are two options available for appointing their 
own auditor. These are to: 

x  undertake an individual auditor procurement and appointment 
exercise; or 

x  undertake a joint audit procurement and appointing exercise 
with other bodies, those in the same locality for example. 

Both these options require the authority to consult and take into 
account the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and 
appointment of a local auditor. Section 9 of the Act requires a 
relevant authority to establish an auditor panel, section 10 sets out 
the functions of an auditor panel, and schedule 4 sets out provisions 
applying to auditor panels. An auditor panel must consist of a 
majority of independent members (or wholly of independent 
members), and must be chaired by an independent member. 

P
age 104



 
 

19 
 

Question Response 
A guide to auditor panels for local government authorities has been 
issued by CIPFA. 
Within the period of 28 days beginning with the day on which the 
auditor appointment is made, section 8 of the Act requires an 
authority that has not opted into the national appointing person 
arrangements to publish a notice that:  
a) states that it has made the appointment, 
b) identifies the local auditor that has been appointed,  
c) specifies the period for which the local auditor has been 

appointed,  
d) sets out the advice, or a summary of the advice, of its auditor 

panel about the selection and appointment of a local auditor, and  
e) if it has not followed that advice, sets out the reasons why it has 

not done so.  
The notice must be published, if the authority has a website, on its 
website or in such manner as the authority thinks is likely to bring 
the notice to the attention of service users. 
Authorities that opt into the appointing person arrangements are not 
required to establish an auditor panel or to publish a notice under 
section 8 of the Act. 

 

P
age 105

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

AGENDA ITEM  
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

14th February 2017 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Appendices Attached 
Appendix 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2015-16 Action Plan Update 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report 

 
1.1 Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council 

to conduct a review each financial year of the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control and approve an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

 
1.2 The statement needs to be prepared in accordance with proper practices in 

relation to accounts and must be approved in advance of the Council 
approving the statement of accounts. ‘Proper practices in relation to accounts’ 
relates to those accounting practices which are contained in a code of practice 
or other document which is identified for the purposes of this provision by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State. Such guidance is contained in the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework and guidance on ‘Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government’. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee note the progress information contained within this report. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The production of the 2015/16 AGS was undertaken in line with CIPFA 

guidance. The process was co-ordinated through a Corporate Governance 
Management Group containing the key officers who are given ultimate 

TITLE: Annual Governance Statement - Progress 
against 2015/16 Action Plan 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive  

  Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes – Executive Director 

(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 107

Agenda Item 10



  

responsibility for drafting the AGS, evaluating assurances and the supporting 
evidence. Once the AGS has been produced it is required to be considered 
and approved by a committee of the Council. Councillors will recall that this 
was undertaken by the Audit & Regulatory Committee on 27th July 2016. 

 
3.2 In essence, the AGS is the formal statement that recognises, records and 

publishes our governance arrangements as defined in the CIPFA/SOLACE 
framework ‘Delivering Good Governance In Local Government’. It is also 
important to recognise that the purpose of the AGS is not just to be 
‘compliant’, but also to provide an accurate representation of the 
arrangements in place during the year and to highlight those areas where 
improvement is required. This will also demonstrate to stakeholders what 
those arrangements are. An action plan containing all of the required actions 
to address identified weaknesses, including the significant issues detailed in 
the AGS, was therefore created. 

 
3.3 Progress against the required actions is monitored by the Corporate 

Governance Management Group during the following financial year and 
details fed into the evidence gathering process for the production of the 
following years Annual Governance Statement. The actions identified for each 
issue will, if implemented, minimise the risks faced by the Council. No system 
of review can give full assurance that all risks have been minimised and all 
controls have been operating effectively throughout the year, only reasonable 
assurance can be given. 

 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The Annual Governance Statement is the formal statement that recognises, 

records and publishes the Council’s governance arrangements as defined in 
the CIPFA/SOLACE framework and therefore helps to confirm effective use of 
financial and other resources to ensure value for money. 

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity 
and Equality Policies. 
 

Page 108



  

6.4 Financial Considerations 
In resolving any issues that have arisen from the outcome of the AGS, it 
is anticipated that corrective action will be implemented within existing 
budgetary provision. 
 

6.5 Legal 
Inadequacies in governance arrangements, if not addressed, pose a 
litigation risk. The extent and nature of such risks will vary depending on 
the nature and extent of the deficiency and the resulting damage/loss (if 
relevant). However, the suggested action to be taken to address the 
governance weaknesses will assist greatly in minimising the risks and 
potential legal implications identified. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None. 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
None. 
 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

CIPFA/SOLACE Publication – 
Delivering Good Governance In 
Local Government: Framework, 
Addendum to Framework and 
Guidance Note for English 
Authorities 
 
CIPFA FAN Publication – The Annual 
Governance Statement…Rough 
Guide for Practitioners 

Buxton Town Hall Andrew P Stokes 
Executive Director (Transformation) & 
Chief Finance Officer 
Tel: (01538) 395622 
e-mail: 
andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk  

 

Page 109

mailto:andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


  

7. Background and Introduction 
 
7.1 The AGS is a key corporate document. The most senior officer and the most 

senior member have joint responsibility as signatories for the accuracy and 
completeness of the AGS. The signatories need to ensure that the AGS 
accurately reflects the governance framework for which they are responsible. 
In order to achieve this they are likely to rely on many sources of assurance, 
such as: 

 
• The Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer - the statutory 

functions undertaken by these two officers provide a key source of 
assurance that the systems and procedures of internal control that are in 
operation are effective, efficient and are being complied with on a routine 
basis. Both officers are involved in the production of the AGS. 

 
• Management – Senior managers are charged with the responsibility of 

ensuring that policies within their service area are complied with and are 
held accountable for their actions/operations in delivering the service and 
achieving objectives. All Directors, Heads of Service and Service 
Managers were asked to complete and sign a Managers Assurance 
Statement to document the level of assurance that they could give for the 
internal controls in place in their service area and their effectiveness with 
regard to ensuring accountability, prudence, VFM, data quality, compliance 
with policy, Financial Procedure Rules, Contract Procedure Rules and 
delivery of the Council’s objectives. In providing this assurance, Directors, 
Heads of Service and Service Managers were asked to identify any 
material issues where they consider the controls are not adequate or are 
absent. In providing such assurance statements it is accepted that 
Managers can only be expected to give reasonable assurance for their 
service area of activity and not a full guarantee. 

 
• Internal Audit - The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards defines 

Internal Audit as “an independent, objective assurance and consulting 
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It 
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.” Internal Audit produces 
an annual report that gives a summary of its work and provides an 
independent and objective opinion on the authority’s activities. The annual 
report and the work of Internal Audit have been used to inform the AGS. A 
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit has been 
undertaken to ensure that reliance can be placed on the work of internal 
audit and its contribution to the AGS. 

 
• Risk Management – the Council’s strategic risk register details those 

issues considered to be a risk which may prevent the Council from 
achieving its corporate objectives and outlines the controls in place to 
mitigate those risks. This source of assurance has been used to inform the 
AGS. 

 

Page 110



  

• External Audit and Other Review Agencies – assurance can be taken 
from the work of external bodies such as the Council’s external auditors. 
Work undertaken by the external auditors has been used to inform the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 
7.2 At the centre of the production of the 2015/16 statement is a Corporate 

Governance Management Group who are given ultimate responsibility for 
drafting the AGS, evaluating assurances and the supporting evidence and this 
group has been established for a number of years. Each member of the group 
has supplied assurances and evidence to support the various elements of the 
AGS and action points to address weaknesses, some of which are significant 
and warrant specific mention in the AGS itself, have been drawn up in an AGS 
Action Plan. 
 
 

8. Progress with the Actions Identified in the AGS 
 

8.1 The attached AGS Action Plan (Appendix 1) outlines the progress made 
against the required actions as at the end of December 2016. The main 
actions that have been completed are summarised below: 
 
• The Corporate Plan was reviewed in April 2016 and has been 

communicated to all staff through ‘Keeping You Informed’ and is available 
on the Intranet. 

 
• A corporate review of partnerships has commenced. 

 
• An annual review of the complaints procedures was undertaken confirming 

that the procedure is still appropriate. 
 

• An updated Alliance Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy was approved 
by Audit & Regulatory Committee in September 2016 and publicised in 
Alliance on-line. 

 
• A review of consultation activity and policy is complete and a revised 

consultation policy drafted for decision. 
 

• Engagement work with ‘protected groups’ (Equality Act) to gain insight into 
their views was undertaken and a report produced. 

 
• The action plan from Emergency Planning Compliance Group meeting 

which identifies tasks to achieve improvement or apply best practice along 
with timescales has been progressed. 

 
• The Asbestos and Legionella policies are being compiled on a phased 

basis as immediate risks are aligned against longer term priorities. 
 
• There has been progress through the Asset Management Health & Safety 

compliance action plan and the outcomes have been subject to a further 
review by Zurich in January 2017. 

 

Page 111



  

• Outstanding Health & Safety works have been reviewed and ordered, with 
a large scale delivery programme to commence in February 2017 to 
correct those actions where practical and affordable. 

 
• A number of reports have been presented to the HRA working group 

identifying potential areas of savings/income generation, through 
amending policies and reviewing/streamlining service areas. 

 
• A MTFP has now been drafted and presented for approval which sets out 

the Council’s assets investment strategy based on risk, operational 
requirements, future use and affordability. 

 
8.2 The actions that are still being progressed are summarised below: 

 
• The corporate review of partnerships is due for completion in March 2017. 

 
• The action plan from Emergency Planning Compliance Group meeting 

which identifies tasks to achieve improvement or apply best practice along 
with timescales will be further progressed. 

 
• The Council is undertaking a series of interventions across a number of 

risk management areas as it seeks to adhere to necessary legal 
requirements regarding asbestos and legionella. 

 
• The Asset Management Health & Safety compliance action plan will be 

further progressed. 
 

• The large scale delivery programme to progress outstanding Health & 
Safety works where practical and affordable is to commence in February 
2017. 

 
• A full housing stock condition survey is being undertaken to identify the 

cost of maintaining stock over a 30 year period.  A rent policy will also be 
presented during 2017/18. 

 
• The 2016/17 annual internal audit plan is in progress and will provide 

further assurances about the Council’s internal control environment. 
 
8.3 Councillors are requested therefore to note the content of the attached Action 

Plan. 
 

Page 112



APPENDIX 1 
 

HPBC ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2015/16 – ACTION PLAN 
 

Ref. Assurance Evidence Required Action Responsibility Timescale / 
Priority 

Position @ 31/12/16 

1.2.3 Priorities and objectives are 
aligned to principal statutory 
obligations and relate to 
available funding 

• Corporate priorities and 
objectives are clearly set 
out in the strategic plan 

• Strategic plan takes 
account of annual budget 
and medium term financial 
plan 

• Financial plans take 
account of strategic 
partnership contributions 
and income streams 

The corporate plan will be 
refreshed annually in line 
with the Council’s 
Performance Framework 
process taking into account 
new performance measures 
and actions.  When agreed 
this will be communicated to 
all stakeholders. 

Information 
Business Partner 

31/10/16 Last review took place in 
April 2016. Next review is 
due April 2017. 

Cipfa 
Solace 
Step 
1.3 

Ensure that partnerships are 
underpinned by a common 
vision of their work that is 
understood and agreed by all 
partners 

• Partnership protocol 
including an agreement on 
the role and scope of each 
partner’s contribution 

• Strategic partnership 
Priorities 

• Partnership arrangements 

Undertake a review of 
partnerships. 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

31/03/17 The review is underway and 
due for completion by the 
end of March 2017. 

Cipfa 
Solace 
Step 
1.6 

Put in place effective 
arrangements to identify and 
deal with failure in service 
delivery 
 

 Regular reports on the 
progress of service 
delivery 

 Performance trends are 
established and reported 
upon 

 Formal complaints policy 
and procedures exist and 
are operating effectively 

 Evidence that complaints 
have informed positive 
service improvement 

An annual review of the 
complaints procedure will be 
undertaken to ensure the 
procedure is customer 
focussed and appropriate 
 

Head of Customer 
Services 

31/12/16 Reviewed October 2016 , 
presentation on customer 
feedback held at Managers 
Forum October 2016. 
Complaint Handling Training 
days for officers responsible 
for responding to complaints 
taking place in house March 
2017 facilitated by LGO. 
 
Customer Feedback page on 
the new website updated to 
provide information / 
guidance on the complaints 
procedure and a customer 
feedback form to provide 
feedback. 

 
 
 
 

Ref. Assurance Evidence Required Action Responsibility Timescale / Position @ 31/12/16 

P
age 113



Priority 
Cipfa 
Solace 
Step 
2.12 
 

- when working in 
partnership ensure that 
members are clear about 
their roles and 
responsibilities both 
individually and 
collectively in relation to 
the partnership and to 
the authority 
 
- ensure that there is 

clarity about the legal 
status of the partnership 
 

- ensure that representatives 
or organisations both 
understand and make clear 
to all other partners the 
extent of their authority to 
bind their organisation to 
partner decisions. 

Protocols for partnership 
working 
mean that for each 
partnership 
there is: 
 a clear statement of the 
partnership principles and 
objectives 
 clarity of each partner’s 

role 
within the partnership 
 definition of roles of 
partnership board members 
 line management 
responsibilities for staff who 
support the partnership 
 a statement of funding 
sources for joint projects 
and 
clear accountability for 
proper 
financial administration 
 a protocol for dispute 
resolution within the 

partnership 

Undertake a review of 
partnerships. 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

31/03/17 The review is underway and 
due for completion by the 
end of March 2017. 

Cipfa 
Solace 
Step 
3.2 
 

ensure that standards of 
conduct and personal 
behaviour expected of 
members and staff, of work 
between members and staff 
and between the authority, 
its partners and the 
community are defined and 
communicated through codes 
of conduct and protocols 

 Members’/officers’ 
code of conduct which 
acknowledges professional 
bodies’ codes of conduct 
 Performance appraisal 
 Complaints procedures 
 Anti-fraud and 

anticorruption 
policies are up to date and 
working 
effectively 
 Induction for new 

members 
and staff on standard of 
behaviour expected 

Anti-Fraud & Corruption 
policy to be reviewed and 
updated. 

Audit Manager 31/12/16 Updated Alliance Counter 
Fraud & Corruption Strategy 
approved by Audit & 
Regulatory Committee in 
September 2016 and 
publicised in Alliance on-
line. 

 
 
 
 

Ref. Assurance Evidence Required Action Responsibility Timescale / 
Priority 

Position @ 31/12/16 

P
age 114



Cipfa 
Solace 
Step 
3.8 
 

in pursuing the vision of a 
partnership, agree a set of 
values against which decision 
making and actions can be 
judged. Such values must be 
demonstrated by partners’ 
behaviour both individually 
and collectively. 

 Protocols for partnership 
Working 
 Evidence of agreed 

values 

Undertake a review of 
partnerships. 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

31/03/17 The review is underway and 
due for completion by the 
end of March 2017. 

Cipfa 
Solace 
Step 
5.6 
 

ensure that effective 
arrangements are in place 
designed to encourage 
individuals from all sections 
of the community to engage 
with, contribute to and 
participate in the work of the 
authority 

 Strategic partnership 
Frameworks 
 Stakeholders’ forums’ 

terms of 
Reference 
 Area forums’ roles and 

Responsibilities 
 Residents’ panel 

structure 

Undertake a review of 
consultation activity and 
policy. 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

31/03/17 The review is complete and 
a revised consultation policy 
drafted for decision. 

Cipfa 
Solace 
Step 
6.2 
 

consider those institutional 
stakeholders to whom the 
authority is accountable and 
assess the effectiveness of 
the relationships and any 
changes required 
 

 Establish a database of 
stakeholders with whom the 
authority should engage 
and for what purpose and a 
record of an assessment of 
the 
effectiveness of any changes 

Undertake a review of 
partnerships 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

31/03/17 The review is underway and 
due for completion by the 
end of March 2017. 

Cipfa 
Solace 
Step 
6.4 
 

ensure clear channels of 
communication are in place 
with all sections of the 
community and other 
stakeholders including 
monitoring arrangements, 
and ensure that they operate 
effectively 
 

 Community strategy 
 Citizen survey 
 

Undertake engagement work 
with ‘protected groups’ 
(Equality Act) to gain insight 
into their views. 
 
Undertake a review of 
consultation activity and 
policy. 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

31/03/17 Engagement work 
undertaken and a report 
produced. 
 
The review is complete and 
a revised consultation policy 
drafted for decision. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ref. Assurance Evidence Required Action Responsibility Timescale / 
Priority 

Position @ 31/12/16 

Cipfa 
Solace 

ensure arrangements are in 
place  to enable the authority 

 Record of public 
consultations 

Undertake a review of 
consultation activity and 

Democratic & 
Community 

31/03/17 The review is complete and 
a revised consultation policy 

P
age 115



Step 
6.5 
 

to engage with all sections of 
the community effectively. 
These arrangements should 
recognise that different 
sections of the community 
have different priorities and 
establish explicit processes 
for dealing with these 
competing demands 

 Processes for dealing 
with 

competing demands within 
the 
community 

policy. Services 
Manager 

drafted for decision. 

Cipfa 
Solace 
Step 
6.6 
 

Establish a clear policy on the 
types of issue on which they 
will meaningfully consult on 
or engage with the public and 
service users including a 
feedback mechanism for 
those consultees to 
demonstrate what has 
changed as a result 

 Partnership framework 
 communication strategy 
 

Undertake a review of 
consultation activity and 
policy. 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services Manager 

31/03/17 The review is complete and 
a revised consultation policy 
drafted for decision. 

3.1.9 Business/service continuity 
plans have been drawn up for 
all critical service areas and 
the plans:  
• Are subject to regular 

testing 
 
 

• Current business/service 
continuity plans exist 
covering all critical service 
areas and are readily 
accessible 

• Evidence of regular testing 
• Evidence of regular review 

in the light of the results of 
testing and for changes in 
structures, procedures, 
information systems, 
responsibilities etc 

See action plan from EPCG 
meeting which identifies 
tasks to achieve 
improvement or apply best 
practice along with 
timescales. 

Corporate Health & 
Safety Advisor 

31/03/17 HPBC emergency plan - 
converted to new style and 
information updated. 
Alliance BCP converted to 
new style and information 
updated. 
Universal Contact List – 
updated and reissued. 
Self teach PPT “Your role in 
an Emergency” produced 
and issued to all staff who 
are listed in the UCL and 
those on-call in other roles. 
Resilience governance 
arrangements proving 
effective. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ref. Assurance Evidence Required Action Responsibility Timescale / 
Priority 

Position @ 31/12/16 

3.1.13 A corporate health and safety 
policy has been drawn up, 
formally approved, is subject 
to regular review and has 

• Health & safety policy 
exists and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly 

The asbestos, legionella 
policies are with the Assets 
Manager who is apportioning 
responsibilities to the various 

Asset Manager 31/03/17 The polices are being 
compiled on a phased basis 
as we align immediate risks 
against longer term 

P
age 116



been communicated to all 
relevant staff 

• Policy covers 
partnerships 

• Evidence of formal 
approval 

• Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
inclusion of policy on 
website and intranet site 

• Evidence of effectiveness 
of policy e.g. number of 
cases investigated by 
Health & Safety 
Executive – and the 
number of cases proven 

• Review of number of 
reported incidences and 
‘near misses’ 

roles contained within these 
documents. 

priorities. The Council is 
undertaking a series of 
interventions across a 
number of risk management 
areas as it seeks to adhere 
to necessary legal 
requirements. 

3.1.14 A corporate complaints 
policy/procedure has been 
drawn up, formally approved, 
communicated to all relevant 
staff, the public and other 
stakeholders is regularly 
reviewed 

• Complaints policy / 
procedure exists and has 
been reviewed and updated 
regularly 

• Procedure is compliant with 
all relevant statutory 
requirements 

• Evidence of formal approval 
• Examples of dissemination 

e.g. induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
inclusion of policy on 
website and intranet site 

• Leaflets / posters 
highlighting complaints 
procedure 

• Complaints files 
• Committee reports 

summarising complaints 
dealt with analysed by 
outcome 

An annual review of the 
complaints procedure will be 
undertaken to ensure the 
procedure is customer 
focussed and appropriate 

Head of Customer 
Services 

31/12/16 Reviewed October 2016 , 
presentation on customer 
feedback held at Managers 
Forum October 2016. 
Complaint Handling Training 
days for officers responsible 
for responding to complaints 
taking place in house March 
2017 facilitated by LGO. 
 
Customer Feedback page on 
the new website updated to 
provide information / 
guidance on the complaints 
procedure and a customer 
feedback form to provide 
feedback. 

 
Ref. Assurance Evidence Required Action Responsibility Timescale / 

Priority 
Position @ 31/12/16 

4.1.3 Departmental assurances are 
provided 

• Departmental heads sign 
off on adequacy of controls 
(i.e. provide annual 
governance assurance 
statements) 

• Supporting documentation 

Issues arising from MAS: 
 
Asset management Health and 
Safety compliance actions are 
within an action plan which is 
progressing through the 
activities in a priority order. 

 
 
Asset Manager 
 
 
 
 

 
 
31/03/17 
 
 
 
 

 
 
There has been progress 
through the H&S plan and the 
outcomes have been subject 
to a further review by Zurich 
in Jan 17. 

P
age 117



provided by departmental 
heads re review and 
monitoring arrangements 
that key controls have 
been in operation for the 
period and will continue to 
operate until accounts 
signed off. 

 

 
A fund has been established to 
progress the outstanding H&S 
actions identified by the 
corporate health and safety 
advisor. 
 
 
 
The Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan Working Group 
has established a programme 
of work which will ensure a 
balanced Housing Revenue 
Account business plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A strategic plan covering all of 
the Council’s assets will be 
developed and implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
Assurance is required that the 
Council’s systems of internal 
control continue to operate 
adequately and effectively 
following the implementation of 
service review outcomes. 

 
Asset Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Finance & 
Procurement 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Asset Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Audit Manager 

 
31/03/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/17 

 
The works have been 
reviewed and ordered, with a 
large scale delivery 
programme to commence in 
Feb 17 to correct those H&S 
where practical and 
affordable. 
 
A number of reports have 
already been presented to the 
HRA working group identifying 
potential areas of 
savings/income generation, 
through amending policies 
and reviewing/streamlining 
service areas. A full stock 
condition survey is being 
undertaken to identify the 
cost of maintaining stock over 
a 30 year period.  A rent 
policy will also be presented 
during 2017/18. 
 
A MTFP has now been drafted 
and presented for approval 
which sets out the investment 
strategy based on risk, 
operational requirements, 
future use and affordability. 
 
 
The 2016/17 annual Audit 
Plan is in progress and will 
provide further assurances 
about the internal control 
environment. 

 

P
age 118



 
 

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

14th February 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix A - Treasury Management Mid-Year Update Report – 31st 
December 2016) 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 
1.1. The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s 

treasury management performance in 2016/17 in compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management 2009 and generally accepted good 
practice. 
 
 

2. Recommendation 
 

2.1. That the Committee note the current treasury management position (as at 
31st December 2016). 
 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code 
of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 was adopted by the Council in 
March 2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements, one of which 
is to produce at least one mid-year operational report. 

TITLE:   Treasury Management Update:  Mid-Year 
Report  2016/17 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:  Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 

Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 

Manager 
 Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner 

 
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-specific 

Page 119

Agenda Item 11



 
 

 
3.2. This report comprises the following: 
 

• The latest interest rate forecast; 
• Investment income earned to date and projected for 2016/17; 
• The current investment portfolio; 
• The borrowing portfolio with projected borrowing costs for 2016/17 and 

debt rescheduling options; and 
• Compliance against the prudential and treasury indicators set in the 

Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17. 
 

3.3. The main headlines include: 
 

• The Bank of England base rate remained unchanged at 0.25% 
contrary to expectations of a decrease in the Monetary Policy 
Committee’s previous quarterly inflation report. 

• A shortfall of £20,000 is anticipated on the investment income budget 
following the reduction in the Bank of England base rate. 

• The borrowing costs budget is currently expected to be underspent by 
£50,000 due to the the later than anticipated potential refinancing of 
maturing loans. 

• The average return on investments achieved by the Council during the 
period to 1st September to 31st December was 0.49%. This compares 
favorably to short-term industry benchmarks. 

• The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £28,234,000 spread across 
eleven separate institutions as at 31st December 2016. 

• The Council’s total level of debt as at 31st December 2016 was 
£78,129,746 (including finance leases) and the average rate of 
borrowing is 3.74%.   

 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

 
4.1. An effective treasury management function is critical in safeguarding and 

effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. 
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the 
Council’s main priorities. 
 
 

5. Evaluation of Options 
 

5.1. This report sets out the treasury management position for High Peak 
Borough Council for 2016/17 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is 
a statement of fact and there are no options. 

 
  

Page 120



 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
 None 

 
6.2. Workforce  

None 
 

6.3. Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment  
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies. 

 
6.4. Financial Considerations 

 Financial considerations are embedded throughout the report.  
  

6.5. Legal      
None 
 

6.6. Sustainability    
None 

 
6.7. Internal and External Consultation 

None 
 

6.8. Risk Assessment 
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with Treasury 
Management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or 
deposits. For this reason, the Council engages the services of external 
treasury management advisors, Capita Asset Services (‘Capita’). 
 
Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the 
Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. This strategy 
includes a number of risk management features such as the overriding 
priority that security of deposit takes precedence over return on investment. 

 
 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
Background Papers Location Contacts 

‘Treasury Management – Governance 
and Scrutiny Arrangements’                           
(Audit & Regulatory Committee Sep 
09) 
 

‘Treasury Management Strategy 
2016/17 
(Audit & Regulatory Committee 
February 2016) 

Finance & Performance,  
Town Hall, Buxton 

Claire Hazeldene 
Finance & Procurement Manager 
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4191 
 
Emily Bennetts 
Finance Business Partner 
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4186 
 
 

Page 121



 
 

APPENDIX A 
          
            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Treasury Management Update  
31st December 2016 

 
 

 
1. Introduction  
 
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
3. Investment Income 

 
4. Investment Portfolio 

 
5. Borrowing Position 

 
6. Prudential Indicators 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

High Peak Borough Council 
 

Working for our community 

Page 122



 
 

1. Introduction  
 

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks”. 
 

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management (2009) which recommends that members should be briefed on 
treasury management activities at least twice a year. 

 
1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for 

scrutinising the treasury function. The Committee’s role includes approval of 
the annual treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational 
treasury management reports. Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee are reported to full Council. 

 
1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2016/17 was 

approved by Council on 25th February 2016.  This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 31st December 2016 and projects 
forward for the remainder of the financial year. 

 
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
2.1. The latest base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast from 

the Council’s treasury advisers, Capita Asset Services (‘Capita’), is shown 
below: 

 
% Mar-

17 
Jun-
17 

Sep-
17 

Dec-
17 

Mar-
18 

Jun-
18 

Sep-
18 

Dec-
18 

Mar-
19 

Jun-
19 

Sep-
19 

Dec-
19 

Mar-
20 

Bank 
Rate 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 

5yr 
PWLB 
rate 

1.60 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 

10r 
PWLB 
rate 

2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.70 

25yr 
PWLB 
rate 

2.90 2.90 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.20 3.20 3.30 3.30 3.40 

50yr 
PWLB 
rate 

2.70 2.70 2.70 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.90 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.20 

 
2.2. Capita have updated their interest rate forecasts to take into account the 

Bank of England quarterly inflation report for November 2016, the decision 
of the MPC (Monetary Policy Committee) meeting of 3rd November, and the 
US Presidential election of 8th November.  
 
 

Page 123



 
 

2.3. The bank rate has remained unchanged at 0.25% at the November MPC 
meeting contrary to expectations of a decrease in the MPC’s previous 
quarterly inflation report, but in line with market expectations at the time. 
MPC forward views are that the bank rate could still go up or down 
depending on how economic data evolve in the coming months. Capita are 
forecasting the rate to remain at 0.25% with the first increase to 0.50% in 
June 2019. 
 

2.4. Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences 
weighing on the UK. Capita’s bank rate forecasts will be liable to further 
amendment depending on how economic data and developments in 
financial markets transpire over the next year.  

 
3. Investment Income  

 
3.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 31st December 2016 totalled 

£93,450. The Council has budgeted to receive £130,660 in investment 
income in 2016/17. The interest which can be earned on investments for the 
remainder of the year has been adversely affected by the reduction in the 
base rate at the Bank of England to 0.25% on 4th August. Therefore, it is 
anticipated that there will be a shortfall of £20,000 on this budget at the end 
of the year. 
 

3.2. Average interest rates achieved on the Council’s investments are shown in 
the table below; these compare favourably to the LIBID rates, the 
recognised industry benchmark rates: 

 

Comparator Average 
Rate Q1 

Average 
Rate Q2 

Average 
Rate Q3 

HPBC Total 
 

HPBC Long-term fixed (>364 days) 
 

HPBC Short-term fixed (<364 days) 
 

HPBC Short-term instant access  
 

Benchmarks (Capita) 
 

*LIBID 7 Day Rate 
 

*LIBID 3 Month Rate 
 

*LIBID 6 Month Rate 
 

*LIBID 12 Month Rate 
 

Current Base Rate 
 

0.61% 
 

0.94% 
 

0.80% 
 

0.41% 
 

 
 

0.36% 
 

0.46% 
 

0.60% 
 

0.87% 
 

0.50% 
 

0.53% 
 

0.95% 
 

0.67% 
 

0.38% 
 

 
 

0.20% 
 

0.31% 
 

0.43% 
 

0.65% 
 

0.25% 
 

0.48% 
 

- 
 

0.58% 
 

0.31% 
 

 
 

0.12% 
 

0.26% 
 

0.43% 
 

0.67% 
 

0.25% 
 

*LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate 
 
 

3.3. The table below highlights the level of investment activity and the rates 
obtained in the period from 1st September to 31st December 2016.  
Investments are made in line with Capita’s creditworthiness guidance and 
the duration limits applied to each colour banding. 

Page 124



 
 

 
Institution Country of 

Domicile Amount Length Rate 

Goldman Sachs UK £2,000,000 6 months 0.62% 
Lloyds Bank Plc UK £1,000,000 3 months 0.50% 
Nationwide Building Society UK £1,000,000 5 months 0.36% 
Lloyds Bank Plc UK £1,150,000 6 months 0.60% 
Nationwide Building Society UK £1,300,000 4 months 0.32% 
Eastleigh Borough Council UK £1,000,000 3 months 0.30% 
Surrey County Council UK £5,000,000 2 months 0.30% 
Instant Access Cash 
(Instant Access Accounts & Money 
Market Funds) 

UK £2,926,000 
(daily average)  0.32% 

 
3.4. The rates achieved by the Council vary by institution, by duration of 

investment and by the timing of when the investment was made. The 
Council’s lending criteria restricts the number of financial institutions that 
are eligible to be on the lending list, and the amount that can be invested 
with eligible counterparties (and counterparty groups) at any one time.  
 

3.5. The majority of the investment portfolio is held on a short-term basis (<1 
year). The Council continues to utilise same day access business accounts, 
fixed term deposits and certificates of deposits (via the use of custodian 
King & Shaxson) which offer competitive rates and access to banks that 
would not necessarily deal direct with the Authority for the sums invested. 

 
4. Investment Portfolio 

 
4.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 

institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 31st December 2016 totalled £28,234,000 as shown 
in the table below: 
 
 

Financial Institution Country of 
Domicile Amount Maximum recommended 

lending duration 
Surrey County Council UK £5,000,000 WHITE (12 months) 
Money Market Funds UK £4,100,000 WHITE (12 months) 
Santander UK UK £4,000,000 RED (6 months) 
NatWest Bank Plc UK £3,684,000 BLUE (12 months) 
Nationwide Building Society UK £2,300,000 RED (6 months) 
Lloyds Bank Plc UK £2,150,000 RED (6 months) 
Coventry Building Society UK £2,000,000 RED (6 months) 
Goldman Sachs International UK £2,000,000 RED (6 months) 
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA Netherlands £1,000,000 ORANGE (12 months) 
Eastleigh Borough Council UK £1,000,000 WHITE (12 months) 
Swedbank AB Sweden £1,000,000 ORANGE (12 months) 

TOTAL  £28,234,000  
 

Page 125



 
 

4.2. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Capita, is shown by 
colour banding in the table below: 

 

 
 
 

4.3. Group limits are also applied, restricting the total amount that can be 
invested on a fixed basis per the colour category above, increasing by a 
percentage (10% blue, 8% red; 7% green) if at least the additional amount 
is held on an instant access basis.  
 

4.4. The average level of funds that have been available for investment up to 
31st December 2016 was £22.9 million.  Investments are generally made up 
of short-term cash and core cash. Short-term cash is dependent on the 
timing of major payments e.g. precept payments, salaries and creditor 
payments, and major receipts e.g. receipt of grants and Council Tax direct 
debits.  Core cash is dependent on capital programme commitments.  

 
5. Borrowing Position 
 
5.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of 

the Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow.  Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as 
part of the prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement. 
 

5.2. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 31st December 2016 is 
£78,129,746, as detailed in the table below: 

 

Lender External 
Borrowing 

Average 
Interest Rate Maturity period 

Public Works Loan Board £59,773,504 3.70% between 0 and 46 yrs 

Market Loans £12,800,000 4.57% between 6 and 51 yrs 

Local Authority Loans £5,000,000 2.50% up to 3 yrs 

Finance Leases £556,242 n/a Between 3 and 6 years 

Total £78,129,746 3.74%  
 

Colour Banding 
Maximum 

Duration of 
Investment 

UK 
Banks 

International 
Banks 

PURPLE Up to 2 Years £5.5m £4.0m 
ORANGE Up to 1 Year £4.9m £3.3m 

RED Up to 6 Months £4.0m £2.7m 
GREEN Up to 100 Days £3.5m £2.2m 

    BLUE (Part & fully nationalised 
financial institutions) Up to 1 Year £5.5m n/a 

BLUE (NatWest) Up to 1 Year £8.2m n/a 
    Money Market Funds Up to 1 Year £4.1m n/a 

WHITE (Lending to the 
Government / Local Authorities) 

Up to 1 Year n/a n/a 
Over 1 Year £6.0m n/a 

Page 126



 
 

 
5.3. The ‘operational boundary’ (£83,431,000) and ‘authorised limit’ 

(£85,931,000) indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing 
available to the Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of 
borrowing is within prudential limits. 
 

5.4. There has been no ‘new’ borrowing undertaken to date, nor is any 
anticipated for the year. However, there is £9.7 million of external loans 
maturing during 2016/17: £4 million matured in August 2016 and was fully 
repaid; a further £5.7 million matures in February/ March 2017. The budget 
included the refinancing of £4.5 million of these maturing loans. The 
treasury team will monitor if this requires reconsideration based on latest 
capital forecasts, the appropriate time to undertake any refinancing, being 
careful to consider the movement in interest rates, and the cost of carry of 
any borrowings taken in advance of the maturity dates. 

 
5.5. The Council has budgeted to incur £1,547,970 in interest charges and other 

financing costs in 2016/17. There is expected to be an underspend of 
£50,000 on the borrowing costs related to the refinancing of the maturing 
loans as if any borrowing is undertaken, it is likely to occur at the end of the 
financial year or into the next financial year. 

 
5.6. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure 

maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a 
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates 
are high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans. 

 

 
 
5.7. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to 

amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the 
degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the 
risk. The treasury team, along with Capita, continually monitor prospects for 
debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council. 

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

Less than
1 year

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

6 - 10
years

11- 20
years

21 - 30
years

31 - 40
years

41 - 50
years

Greater
than 50
years

Debt Maturity Profile 

Page 127



 
 

 
5.8. No rescheduling has taken place during 2016/17 to date. The Council will 

work with Capita to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking 
account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on early 
redemption compared to the potential interest savings.   

 
6. Prudential Indicators 

 
6.1. The prudential & treasury indicators (as set in the Treasury Management 

Strategy 2016/17) have not been breached during the year. 

Page 128



 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

14th February 2017 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix A - Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2017/18 
 
1. Purpose of the Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow members of the Committee to 

consider and endorse the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 
2017/18, ensuring that its capital and treasury activities for the next four 
years are affordable and properly managed. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 
 
2.1. That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 

2017/18 is recommended to Council for approval. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1. The Council is required, in accordance with the Local Government Act 

2003, to produce an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
before the commencement of each financial year.  

 
 
 
 

TITLE:   Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
(TMSS) 2017/18 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 

Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 

Manager 
 Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner 
 
WARDS: Non-Specific 

Page 129

Agenda Item 12



 
3.2. The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the 

Council to ‘have regard to’ the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code 
of Practice. The Council is required to set prudential and treasury 
indicators for the next four years to ensure that the Council’s capital 
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 

 
3.3. The 2017/18 Treasury Management Strategy Statement comprises three 

principal areas: 
 

a. Capital Programme (section 6) 
• The capital plans and the prudential indicators 
• The minimum revenue provision (MRP) Policy 

 
b. Treasury Management (section 7) 

• Current Treasury position 
• Treasury Indicators  
• Prospects for Interest Rates  
• The Borrowing Strategy 

 
c. The Annual Investment Strategy (section 8) 

• Investment Policy 
• Creditworthiness Policy 
• Investment Income 

 
3.4. Members are asked to note the controls that have been put in place to 

manage the Council’s treasury management risks and activities and to 
endorse the Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/18. 

 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1. Effective treasury management is critical to the safeguarding and 

management of the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the Council’s 
corporate priorities. 

 
 
5. Evaluation of Options 
 
5.1. This report sets the proposed treasury management approach based upon 

the Council’s financial plans.  
 
 

Page 130



6. Implications 
 
6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
  None 
 
6.2. Workforce 
  None 
 
6.3. Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
  This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's equality  
  and diversity policies. 
 
6.4. Financial Considerations 
  Financial considerations are embedded throughout the report.  
 
6.5. Legal  
  None 
 
6.6. Sustainability 

None 
 
6.7. Internal and External Consultation 

None 
 
6.8. Risk Assessment 

There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with treasury 
management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/or 
deposits.  The Council has engaged Capita Asset Services as its treasury 
management advisors. 
 
Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the 
Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy, which is the 
subject of this report. The Strategy includes a number of risk management 
features such as the overriding priority that security of deposit takes 
precedence over return on investment. 

   
 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer 

 
  

Page 131



 
Background Papers Location Contacts 

‘Treasury Management – 
Governance and Scrutiny 
Arrangements’ 
 (Audit & Regulatory 
 Committee Sep 09) 

 
 

Town Hall, Buxton Claire Hazeldene 
Finance & Procurement Manager 
Tel. 01538 395400 #4191 
 
Emily Bennetts 
Finance Business Partner 
Tel. 01538 395400 #4186 

Page 132



APPENDIX A 
 
 
 

 
 

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 

 

Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement  

 

 

2017/18 
 

 

Page 133



1. Introduction 
 

1.1. The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly 
means that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of 
the treasury management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is 
adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus 
monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the Council's low risk appetite, providing adequate 
liquidity initially before considering investment return. 

 
1.2. The second main function of the treasury management service is the 

funding of the Council's capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide 
to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow 
planning to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending 
obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve arranging 
long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On 
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council 
risk or cost objectives. 

 
1.3. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 

investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks.” 

 
2. Reporting Requirements 

 
2.1. The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 

reports each year. The three main reports are: 
 

a. A Treasury Strategy, which looks forward four years and includes: 
• Treasury Management Strategy, explaining how the investments 

and borrowings are to be organised, including treasury indicators;  
• The Council’s capital plans, including prudential indicators; 
• Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy, stating how residual 

capital expenditure is charged to revenue over time; and 
• Investment Strategy, stating the parameters on how investments 

are to be managed. 
 

b. A Mid-Year Treasury Management Report, which updates members 
on treasury activities during the financial year and provides for 
revisions to the Treasury Strategy and indicators as necessary. 

 
c. An Annual Treasury Report, which updates members on the outturn 

for the previous financial year, summarises the treasury activity for that 
year and includes a full listing of actual prudential indictors. 

Page 134



2.2. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement contained in this Appendix 
addresses the first of these requirements. 

 
2.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for 

scrutinising the treasury function prior to reports being formally approved 
at Council. 

 
2.4. The respective roles & responsibilities of the Council, its Audit & 

Regulatory Committee and the Section 151 Officer are noted in Annex 2. 
 
3. Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2017/18 
 
3.1. The 2017/18 Treasury Management Strategy Statement comprises the 

following principal elements: 
 

Capital Programme  
(section 6) 

Capital plans and the prudential indicators 
Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy 

Treasury Management  
(section 7) 
 

Current treasury position 
Treasury indicators  
Prospects for interest rates  
The borrowing strategy 

The Annual  
Investment Strategy 
(section 8) 

Investment policy 
Creditworthiness policy 
Investment income 

 
3.2. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement meets the requirements of 

the Local Government Act 2003, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
(CIPFA) Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and 
Communities and Local Government (CLG) Investment guidance. 

 
4. Training 
 
4.1. The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer (the Chief Finance 

Officer) to ensure that Members and Officers with responsibility for 
treasury management receive adequate training. Training is particularly 
important for the Members who are responsible for the scrutiny of the 
Council’s treasury management. Training was provided for new Members 
of the Audit Committee in July 2015.   
 

4.2. A skills assessment has recently been completed by current Members of 
the Audit Committee and any subsequent training requirements arising 
from that will be incorporated into a training plan – iincluding any treasury 
management training needs. 

 
 

Page 135



 
5. Treasury Management Consultants 
 
5.1. The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services as its external treasury 

management advisor - providing the Council with access to specialist skills 
and resources.  

 
5.2. The Council recognises that the responsibility for treasury management 

decisions remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that 
undue reliance is not placed upon our external service providers. 

 
5.3. The Council will ensure that the terms of appointment of treasury advisors 

and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly 
agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review.  
 

5.4. The current contract with Capita Asset Services: Treasury solutions is due 
to expire on 31st March 2017. A procurement exercise is ongoing for the 
letting of this contract for the coming period. The 2017/18 Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) is written in accordance with the 
incumbent’s methodologies. Should  the supplier of this contract change 
during the lifespan of the TMSS, it will be updated and presented 
accordingly to the Audit & Regulatory Committee and Council as required. 

 
 
6. The Capital Programme & Prudential Indicators  

 
 Capital Expenditure 

 
6.1. The capital expenditure prudential indicator comprises a summary of the 

Council’s capital programme, which is a key driver of treasury 
management activity. 

 
6.2. The table below summarises the Council’s capital expenditure plans and 

how these plans are to be funded. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 136



 

 2015/16 
Actual 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Capital 
Expenditure: 4,151,100 6,173,000 9,801,000 6,801,000 6,004,000 5,321,000 

   General Fund 1,112,600 2,035,000 5,865,000 2,865,000 2,068,000 1,385,000 

   Housing Revenue 
   Account 3,038,500 4,138,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 3,936,000 

Financed by:       
Capital Receipts 31,300 509,000 1,031,000 798,0000 1,325,000 734,000 
Capital Grants 380,200 877,000 471,000 389,000 389,000 389,000 
Capital Reserves 741,700 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 
HRA Revenue 

 
2,997,900 2,079,000 1,997,000 2,079,000 2,325,000 2,386,000 

Net Financing 
Need for Year - 1,158,000 4,752,000 1,985,000 415,000 262,000 

  
 
 The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

 
6.3. The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR). The CFR is the total outstanding capital expenditure 
which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. 
This is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need.  

 
6.4. The CFR increases each time the Council procures capital expenditure 

that it does not immediately pay for (i.e. the CFR increases when its 
expenditure is financed through borrowing). 

 
6.5. Local authorities are required each year to set aside some of their 

revenues as provision for debt repayment. This is known as the Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP). The CFR is reduced each year by MRP. Each 
year’s borrowing need is divided by the life of the assets for which 
borrowing was undertaken, resulting in an annual charge to revenue, and 
reduction in the Council’s CFR. 

 
6.6. The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. finance leases). 

Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council's borrowing 
requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the 
Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes. The 
Council had £556,000 of such schemes within the CFR at 1st April 2016. 

 
 
 
 

Page 137



6.7. The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement is shown in the table below: 
 

 2015/16 
Actual 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Capital Financing Requirement        

    CFR – non housing 21,563,000 21,866,000 25,779,000 26,864,000 26,353,000 25,729,000 

    CFR – housing 58,358,000 57,108,000 55,859,000 54,610,000 53,360,000 52,124,000 

 79,921,000 78,974,000 81,638,000 81,474,000 79,713,000 77,853,000 

Movement in CFR (2,108,000) (947,000) 2,664,000 (164,000) (1,761,000) (1,860,000) 

Represented by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Net financing need for the year - 1,158,000 4,752,000 1,985,000 415,000 262,000 

Less Minimum Revenue 
Provision  (2,108,000) (2,105,000) (2,088,000) (2,149,000) (2,176,000) (2,122,000) 

Movement in CFR (2,108,000) (947,000) 2,664,000 (164,000) (1,761,000) (1,860,000) 

 
 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 

 
6.8. The Council is required each year to set aside some of its revenues as 

provision for debt repayment. This essentially allows to Council to “pay off” 
an element of the Capital Financing Requirement annually through a 
revenue charge known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  

 
6.9. The MRP was previously defined by statute with regulations providing for 

MRP as a 4% charge in respect of the amount of the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR). Under current regulations the rules have been 
replaced with a general duty for a local authority to make an MRP charge 
to revenue which it considers to be prudent.  The new regulation does not 
itself define “prudent provision”. However, guidance has been issued 
specifying methods for MRP calculation which the Secretary of State 
considers to be prudent thereby effectively determining prudent provision. 

 
6.10. The Department of Communities and Local Government regulations 

require the full Council to approve an MRP Statement in advance of each 
year. It is recommended that the Council apply MRP to capital expenditure 
funded by borrowing under the ‘Asset Life Method’: which calculates the 
MRP charge based on the estimated life of the asset for which the 
borrowing is undertaken.  

 

Page 138



6.11. MRP applied to the HRA capital financial requirement is on a voluntary 
basis.  The Council currently applies Minimum Revenue Provision to 
borrowing related to the 2011/12 HRA Reform settlement payment over 
the period of the HRA business plan (30 years).   This equates to 
approximately £1.2million per annum.  However, as part of the HRA 
Financial Improvement Plan, the level of MRP applied annually is under 
review.  

 
 Use of the Council’s Resources and Investment Position 

 
6.12. The Council builds up capital and revenue reserves as necessary for 

future application. The application of these resources to either finance 
capital expenditure or to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing 
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year 
from new sources (for example, asset sales, revenue surpluses). 
Reserves are invested, pending application, to earn a return which 
supplements the revenue budget.  

 
6.13. An estimate of the amount available at year end for investment is shown in 

the table below: 
 

 2015/16 
Actual 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 
General Fund 

 
6,086,000 5,608,000 5,054,000 4,214,000 3,492,000 3,486,000 

Housing Revenue 
Account 8,795,000 10,111,000 10,168,000 9,924,000 9,427,000 8,657,000 

Total core funds 14,881,000 15,719,000 15,222,000 14,138,000 12,919,000 12,143,000 
Working capital * 1,206,000 - - - - - 
(Under)/over 
borrowing 2,209,000 (6,738,000) (4,775,000) (4,731,000) (3,078,000) (1,291,000) 

Expected 
investments 18,296,000 8,981,000 10,447,000 9,407,000 9,841,000 10,852,000 

* Shown as ‘0’ for estimation purposes as dependent on the value of creditors/debtors at year end  
 
 Affordability Prudential Indicators 
 
6.14. The previous sections outline the Council’s capital expenditure plans and 

funding requirements. This section assesses the affordability of capital 
investment plans and the impact on the Council’s overall finances.  

 
 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 

 
6.15. This indicator calculates the cost of capital (borrowing costs net of 

investment income) as a percentage of the Council’s net revenue stream 
(council tax receipts & government funding - General Fund; rental income 
- HRA). 

Page 139



 

 2015/16 
Actual 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

General Fund 14% 16% 15% 17% 18% 18% 

HRA* 15% 15% 14% 14% 13% 13% 
* includes the annual voluntary MRP charge 

 
Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on Council Tax  

 

6.16. This indicator calculates the incremental impact of capital investment 
decisions on Council Tax (Band D equivalent) by comparing the Council’s 
latest capital projections, as expressed in the draft Medium Term Financial 
Plan, with those at the same period last year. 

 
 2015/16 

Actual 
2016/17* 
Estimate 

2017/18* 
Estimate 

2018/19* 
Estimate 

2019/20* 
Estimate 

2020/21* 
Estimate 

Council Tax (Band D 
equivalent) (£0.31) (£0.17) £1.23 £1.42 (£0.29) £0.52 

* Based on the difference in the estimated borrowing requirement between the two years and consequent impact 
on interest payable/loss of interest on investments and MRP charge 

 
Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent levels. 

 
6.17. This indicator calculates the incremental impact of capital investment 

decisions within the housing capital programme on weekly rent levels. 
 

 2015/16 
Actual 

2016/17* 
Estimate 

2017/18* 
Estimate 

2018/19* 
Estimate 

2019/20* 
Estimate 

2020/21* 
Estimate 

Weekly Housing Rents (£0.07p) (£0.01p) (£0.01p) (£0.02) (£0.03) £0.15 
* Based on the difference in capital expenditure estimates between the two years and consequent impact on 
investment income due to use of balances (no estimated borrowing requirement) 

HRA debt per dwelling 

6.18. The indicator in the table below shows the level of HRA debt per dwelling: 
 

 2015/16 
Actual 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

HRA debt (£) 58,358,000 57,108,000 55,859,000 54,610,000 53,360,000 52,124,000 

HRA dwellings (no) 4,021 3,991 3,961 3,931 3,901 3,871 

Debt per dwelling (£) 14,513 14,309 14,102 13,892 13,679 13,465 

 
 
 

Page 140



Interest payable & interest receivable 
 
6.19. Given the capital projections above, interest payable & interest receivable 

budgets for the next four years are forecast as follows: 
 

 2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

Borrowing Costs 
(General Fund) £1,425,230 £1,664,310 £1,754,890 £1,806,530 

Borrowing Costs (HRA) £3,382,000 £3,244,000 £3,158,000 £3,100,000 

Investment Income (£64,720) (£63,690) (£115,540) (£174,260) 

 
7. Treasury Management  
 
7.1. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is 

organised so that sufficient cash is available to service its plans. This will 
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans 
require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. This strategy 
covers the relevant treasury indicators and the current and projected debt 
and investment positions. 

 
 Current Debt Position 
 
7.2. The Council’s debt position at 31st March 2016 and its debt forecasts 

going forward are summarised below. The table shows the actual external 
debt against the underlying borrowing need (the Capital Financing 
Requirement) highlighting any under or over borrowing. 

 

 
March 16 
Estimate 

£ 

March 17 
Estimate 

£ 

March 18 
Estimate 

£ 

March 19 
Estimate 

£ 

March 20 
Estimate  

£ 

March 21 
Estimate  

£ 
External Borrowing 81,574,000 71,825,000 76,577,000 76,562,000 76,562,000 76,562,000 

Other long-term liabilities 
(Finance Leases) 556,000 411,000 286,000 181,000 73,000 - 

Gross Debt at 31st 
March 82,130,000 72,236,000 76,863,000 76,743,000 76,635,000 76,562,000 

Change in Debt position (134,000) (9,894,000) 4,627,000 (120,000) (108,000) (73,000) 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 79,921,000 78,974,000 81,638,000 81,474,000 79,713,000 77,853,000 

(Under) / over borrowing 2,209,000 (6,738,000) (4,775,000) (4,731,000) (3,078,000) (1,291,000) 

 

Page 141



7.3. The Council is required to ensure that its Gross Debt does not, except in 
the short term, exceed the total of the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR) in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 
the current year and the following two financial years. This allows some 
flexibility for borrowing in advance of need for future years, but ensures 
that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes. 
 

7.4. The Council is complying with this indicator in the current year and does 
not envisage difficulty in complying over the life of the Medium Term 
Financial Plan. This view takes into account current and future proposals 
with regard to the capital programme. 

 
Treasury Indicators - Limits to Borrowing Activity 

 
7.5. The Council sets limits to ensure that the revenue consequences of the 

capital programme on external borrowing remain affordable. 
 
Operational Boundary 

 
7.6. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not expected to exceed. 

This represents the Capital Financing Requirement plus an additional 
allowance to cover short-term liquidity requirements. 

 
Operational boundary 2016/17 

Estimate 
2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ 
Capital Financing 
Requirement 78,974,000 81,638,000 81,474,000 79,713,000 77,853,000 

Allowance for borrowing to 
cover short-term cash flow* 4,232,000 4,359,000 4,490,000 4,580,000 4,672,000 

Total Gross Debt 83,206,000 85,997,000 85,964,000 84,293,000 85,525,000 
* Amount required in short-term to cover precepts (the highest cash outflow)  

 
 

Authorised Limit for External Debt 
 
7.7. This indicator is the statutory limit set by the Council under Section 3 (1) of 

the Local Government Act 2003 beyond which external debt is prohibited.  
 

 

Authorised limit 2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ 
Operational Boundary 83,206,000 85,997,000 85,964,000 84,293,000 85,525,000 

‘Headroom’ 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 
Total Gross Debt 85,706,000 88,497,000 88,464,000 86,793,000 85,025,000 

 

Page 142



HRA Debt Limits 
 
7.8. The Council is subject to HRA Debt Limits under the HRA self-financing 

regime: 
 
HRA Debt Limit 2016/17 

Estimate 
2017/18 

Estimate 
2018/19 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ 
HRA Debt Cap  68,233,000 68,233,000 68,233,000 68,233,000 68,233,000 
HRA CFR 57,108,000 55,859,000 54,610,000 53,360,000 52,124,000 
HRA Headroom* 11,125,000 12,374,000 13,623,000 14,873,000 16,109,000 

*subject to a review of the HRA Business Plan 
 
Prospects for Interest Rates 

 
7.9. The table in Annex 4, provided by Capita, draws together a number of 

current City forecasts for short term (Bank Rate) and borrowing rates. The 
table below summarises Capita’s view on average interest rates:  

 

 
 
7.10. Expectations are that during the two-year period (2017-2019) while the UK 

is negotiating the terms for withdrawal from the EU, it is likely the 
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) will do nothing to dampen growth 
prospects, (i.e. by raising Bank Rate). Accordingly, Capita tentatively 
forecasts the first increase in Bank Rate for quarter 2 of 2019 when those 
negotiations may have concluded. However, other factors could bring the 
pace and timing of increases forward, such as strong domestically 
generated inflation from wage increases in the UK. 
 

7.11. Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many 
external influences weighing on the UK. The exceptional volatility of PWLB 
borrowing rates is anticipated to continue for the foreseeable future 
correlated to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis and emerging market 
developments. 
 

Page 143



7.12. The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is to the 
downside, including: 
• Uncertainties over the final terms of Brexit and the timetable for its 

implementation. 
• Monetary policy action reaches its limits of effectiveness to stimulate 

significant sustainable growth, combat deflation, reduce high levels of 
debt. 

• Major national polls  
• Resurgence of Eurozone sovereign debt crisis: Greece; stresses 

arising from disagreements between EU countries on free movement 
of people, how to handle a huge influx of immigrants; and terrorist 
threats. 

• Geopolitical risks in Europe, the Middle East and Asia. 
• UK economic growth and increases in inflation weaker than 

anticipated. 
• Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners  

 
 Borrowing Strategy 
 
7.13. The majority of the Council’s capital financing requirement is currently fully 

funded by external borrowing. 
 
7.14. As highlighted above, the Council has an estimated total Net Financing 

Requirement of £7,414,000 for the four years ending March 2021, which is 
fully offset by Minimum Revenue Provision of £8,535,600. 

 
 2017/18 

Estimate 
2018/19 

Estimate 
2019/20 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Estimate Total 

 £ £ £ £ £ 

Net financing need  4,752,000 1,985,000 415,000 262,000 7,414,000 

Minimum Revenue Provision (2,088,000) (2,149,000) (2,176,000) (2,122,000) (8,535,000) 

 2,664,000 (164,000) (1,761,000) (1,860,000) (1,121,000) 
 
7.15. The strategy assumes there will be some ‘new’ borrowing during 2017/18 

and 2018/19 to support the net financing need occurring in those years. 
There is also £5million of existing long term debt maturing during 2018/19, 
which the strategy anticipates will be partially refinanced during the year. 
The table at 7.2 shows that the Council is in an ‘under-borrowed’ position 
for the life of the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 

7.16. The capital financing requirement will be closely monitored in order to 
make a decision on refinancing prior to maturity.  Interest rate forecasts 
will also be monitored to identify any opportunities to refinance maturing 
debt in advance to reduce interest charges in the long-term. 

Page 144



 
Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need  

 
7.17. The Council will not borrow in advance of need, purely to profit from the 

investment of the extra sums borrowed. 
 
7.18. The Council however may consider borrowing in advance to protect it from 

higher borrowing costs within approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates to finance new capital expenditure or refinance existing loans. 
This will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds. 
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to 
prior appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year reporting 
mechanism. 
 
Debt Rescheduling 

 
7.19. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as 

to amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter 
the degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing 
the risk. The treasury team, supported by the Council’s treasury advisors, 
will monitor prospects for debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial 
benefit to the Council. 

 
Treasury Management Limits on Activity 

 
7.20. The activity of the treasury function is constrained within certain limits, 

thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement 
in interest rates.  

 
7.21. The treasury management limits on activity are: 

• Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure - this identifies a maximum 
limit for fixed interest rates based upon the debt and investment 
position; 

• Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure - this identifies a 
maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt and 
investment position; 

• Limits on the maturity structure of borrowing - these limits are set to 
reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for 
refinancing at the same time. 

  

Page 145



 
 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
 £ £ £ £ 
Limits on fixed interest rates: 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
83,531,000 
26,000,000 

 
83,537,000 
26,000,000 

 
84,220,000 
26,000,000 

 
82,525,000 
26,000,000 

 
 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
 £ £ £ £ 
Limits on variable interest rates 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
23,607,000 
25,300,000 

 
23,690,000 
25,300,000 

 
23,345,000 
25,300,000 

 
22,967,000 
25,300,000 

 
Maturity Structure of borrowing 2017/18 

 Lower Upper 
Under 12 months 0% 30% 

 12 months to 2 years 0% 30% 
2 years to 5 years 0% 40% 
5 years to 10 years 0% 60% 
10 years and above 0% 90% 

 
8. Annual Investment Strategy 

 
Investment Policy 

 
8.1. The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on 

Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA 
Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross 
Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”). 

 
8.2. The Council’s principal investment priorities are the security of capital and 

the liquidity of its investments. In addition to this, the Council will aim to 
achieve the optimum return on its investments commensurate with proper 
levels of security and liquidity.  

 
8.3. To minimise the risk to its investments, the Council applies minimum 

acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy 
conterparties which also enables diversification and thus avoidance of 
concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the 
Short Term and Long Term ratings. 
 

8.4. Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is 
important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a 
micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political 
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take 
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To this end, 
the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on market 

Page 146



pricing such as ‘credit default swaps’ and overlay that information on top 
of the credit ratings. 

 
8.5. The investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are 

listed in Annex 3 under the headings, ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ 
Investments.  

 
8.6. Counterparty limits will be set as part of the Treasury Strategy and 

maintained as part of the Council’s treasury management practices. 
 
8.7. The Council will report on its investment activity in its Annual Treasury 

Report at the end of the financial year.  
 
Creditworthiness Policy 

 
8.8. This Council employs the creditworthiness service provided by Capita 

Asset Services. This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach 
utilising credit ratings from three main credit rating agencies – Fitch, 
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. The credit ratings of counterparties are 
supplemented with the following overlays: 

 
• Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 
• Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely 

changes in credit ratings; and 
• Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most 

creditworthy countries. 
 
8.9. Credit watches and outlooks are issued by the ratings agencies. ‘Credit 

watches’ are considered short-term actions, whereas ‘outlooks’ are 
considered over a longer term time horizon. Capita includes the release of 
a negative or positive watch/outlook in its creditworthiness analysis. 

 
8.10. A ‘Credit Default Swap’ is a contract between two counterparties in which 

the buyer of the contract makes quarterly payments to the seller of the 
contract in exchange for a payoff if there is a credit event of the reference 
entity. The contract essentially gives protection or ‘insurance’. Therefore, 
CDS spreads provide perceived market sentiment regarding the credit 
quality of an institution and are also used in the creditworthiness analysis 
to determine the durational band of investment with a financial institution.  

 
8.11. Capita's creditworthiness model combines credit ratings, credit watches 

and outlooks in a weighted scoring system, with an overlay of CDS 
spreads, to produce a series of colour coded bands which indicate the 
relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are then 
used to determine the duration for investments.  

 

Page 147



8.12. Only counterparties that fall within a ‘durational band’ will be included on 
the Council’s lending list. In conjunction with the recommended durational 
limits, the Council has assigned corresponding investment limits to each 
banding. The limits have been set separately for UK banks and 
International banks. 

 
 

UK Banks  

Category Principal 
Limit 

Maximum 
Length 

Portfolio (% of 
highest balance**) 

Yellow* £5.5m Up to 5 years 20% 
Purple £5.5m Up to 2 years 20% 
Gold £4.9m Up to 1 year 18% 
Red £4.0m Up to 6 months 15% 

Green £3.5m Up to 100 days 13% 
No Colour - Not to be used - 
* UK Government debt instruments 
**assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000 
 

International Banks 

Category Principal 
Limit 

Maximum 
Length 

Portfolio (% of 
highest balance*) 

Purple £4.0m Up to 2 years 15% 
Gold £3.3m Up to 1 year 12% 
Red £2.7m Up to 6 months 10% 

Green £2.2m Up to100 days 8% 
No Colour - Not to be used - 
* assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000  

 
8.13. The Council’s lending list includes part- and fully-Nationalised UK banks, 

which have been assigned the ‘blue’ category as per Capita’s 
creditworthiness matrix. This category has been allocated a longer 
durational period and higher investment limit since it has strong 
Government support. The table below assigns investment limits: 

 

Category Principal 
Limit 

Maximum 
Length 

Portfolio (% of 
highest balance*) 

Blue £5.5m Up to 1 year 20% 
NatWest (the Council’s 

main bank account)  £8.2m Up to 1 year 30% 
* assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000  

 
8.14. The Council is alerted to changes in ratings and market movements 

through its use of the Capita creditworthiness service. If a downgrade 
results in the counterparty no longer meeting the Council’s minimum 
criteria, it will no longer be used for new investments. All ratings will be 
monitored prior to any new investments being placed.  

Page 148



 
Group Limits 

 
8.15. To reduce its risk further the Council has set a group limit for fixed term 

deposits in institutions with the same parent. The group limit will increase 
the portfolio percentage of the colour band the institution it is rated in at 
the time by a further 50% where at least the additional amount is held in 
an instant access account: 

 

Category 
Portfolio (% 
of highest 
balance*) 

Individual 
Principal 

Limit 

Portfolio % 
increased by 

50% 
Group 

Principal Limit 

Blue 20% £5.5m 30% £8.2m 
Purple 20% £5.5m 30% £8.2m 
Gold 18% £4.9m 27% £7.4m 
Red 15% £4.0m 23% £6.3m 

Green 13% £3.5m 20% £5.5m 
* assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000  
 
Money Market Funds 

 
8.16. The Council has access to several Money Market Funds (MMF) - all of 

which are ‘AAA’ rated. A ‘Money Market Fund’ is a pooled vehicle 
investing in a number of investment instruments with varying maturity 
periods in a number of different countries. Money Market Funds provide 
an alternative option for the Council when placing short-term funds and 
provide for diversification of the investment portfolio. 

 
8.17. The Council has set investment limits in Money Market Funds as follows: 
 

 Principal 
Limit 

Maximum 
Length 

Portfolio (% of 
highest balance*) 

Individual MMF £4.9m Up to 1 year 18% 
Total MMF investments** £6.3m Up to 1 year 23% 

* assumes highest balance in 2017/18 is £27,500,000  
** maximum held in MMF’s at any one time 
 
Sovereignty Ratings  

 
8.18.    A sovereign credit rating is the credit rating of a sovereign entity i.e. a 

country. The highest sovereign rating awarded is ‘AAA’. The evolving 
regulatory environment, in tandem with the rating agencies’ new 
methodologies, means that sovereign ratings are now of lesser 
importance in the assessment process and the new regulatory 
environment is attempting to break the link between sovereign support 
and domestic financial institutions. 
 

Page 149



8.19. While the Council understands the changes that have taken place, it will 
continue to use sovereign ratings of individual counties in addition to credit 
ratings when making investment decisions. When investing with 
institutions outside the UK, only banks and building societies located in 
countries with a minimum sovereign rating of ‘AAA’ will be used. This is in 
relation to the fact that the underlying domestic and, where appropriate, 
international economic and wider political and social background will still 
have an influence on the ratings of a financial institution. There are 
currently 10 ‘AAA’ rated countries approved for investments, as follows: 

 
 Investment income 
 
8.20. The Council’s in-house managed funds are derived from a core balance 

available for capital and revenue funding and day-to-day cash flows. At 
31st March 2016 the core balances available for investment were 
£16,100,000. Core balances are available for investment in line with the 
profile of capital expenditure and requirements of the revenue budget. 
Investments are therefore made with reference to the core balance and 
cash flow requirements and the outlook for interest rates. 

 
 Investment Return Expectations 
 
8.21. Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged at 0.25% until a rise to 0.50% 

in June 2019, and then rise to 0.75% in December 2019. Bank Rate 
forecasts for financial year ends (March) are: 

• March 2018  0.25% 
• March 2019  0.25% 
• March 2020  0.75% 

 
8.22. For 2017/18 the Council has budgeted for an average investment return of 

0.31%. The average rates assumed on new investments is as follows:  
• Fixed Term Investments (3 month to 1 year) 0.42% 
• Instant Access Business Accounts and short-term fixed 

deposits 0.22%. 
 
8.23. The 2017/18 income budget is therefore forecast to be £64,720. 

 
  

Australia Canada Denmark Germany Luxembourg 

Netherlands Norway Singapore Sweden Switzerland 

Page 150



Long-term Investments (greater than 1 year) 
 
8.24. When placing long-term investments with counterparties, the Council’s 

liquidity requirements, availability of funds and counterparty eligibility need 
to be taken into consideration. The table below sets the limit on the total 
principal funds that may be invested for greater than 364 days. 

 
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 
 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Principal sums invested > 364 days £4,000,000 £4,000,000 £4,000,000 £4,000,000 
 

Page 151



ANNEX 1  
 

Treasury Management Policy Statement 
 
In accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, High 
Peak Borough Council defines the policies and objectives of its treasury 
management activities as follows: 
 
1. The Council defines its treasury management activities as: “The 

management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.” 

 
2. The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control 

of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury 
management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and 
reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk 
implications for the organisation. 

 
3. The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will 

provide support towards the achievement of its business and service 
objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for 
money in treasury management, and to employing suitable 
comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the context 
of effective risk management. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 152



ANNEX 2 
 
Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 
 
(i) Full Council 

• receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, 
practices and activities; 

• approval of annual strategy. 
 
(ii) Audit & Regulatory Committee 

• approval of/amendments to the Council’s adopted clauses, treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices; 

• reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body; 

• budget consideration and approval; 
• approval of the division of responsibilities; 
• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 

recommendations; 
• approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms 

of appointment. 
 

The treasury management role of the section 151 (responsible) officer 

• recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for 
approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

• submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 
• submitting budgets and budget variations; 
• receiving and reviewing management information reports; 
• reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 
• ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and 

the effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management 
function; 

• ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 
• recommending the appointment of external service providers.  

 
 

Page 153



ANNEX 3 
Specified and Non-Specified Investments 
 
Specified Investments 
 
All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum 
of 1 year*, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. 
 

Investment Instrument* Minimum ‘High’ Credit Criteria Investment Limit** 
Debt Management Agency 
Deposit Facility (DMADF) n/a n/a 

Term deposits – local 
authorities  n/a n/a 

Bridging Loans (Community 
Groups within HPBC) 

Decision made on individual basis 
& subject to presentation of 
required documents 

£100,000 (total 
outstanding for all 
loans at any one time) 

UK Government Gilts and 
Treasury Bills UK Sovereign Rating n/a 

Certificates of deposits or 
corporate bonds with banks 
and building societies 

 Based on Capita Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN 
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK) 

As per individual / 
group lending limits 

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies  

 Based on Capita Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN 
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK) 

As per individual / 
group lending limits 

UK (Part-)Nationalised Banks  Based on Capita Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – BLUE 

As per individual / 
group lending limits 

UK Instant Access Accounts  Based on Capita Creditworthiness 
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN 

As per individual / 
group lending limits 

Money Market Funds (MMF) AAA rated As per individual / 
group lending limits 

 
* If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should not exceed 
one year in aggregate  
 
** must conform to both institution and group limits set 
 

Page 154



Non-specified Investments 
 
Non-specified investment instruments are assumed to take on greater risk and 
should therefore be subject to greater scrutiny. They include investments that are 
for a period of more than one year and instruments that the Council has very 
limited experience and expertise in dealing with. 
 
A maximum of £11,000,000 (40% of the projected highest balance) will be held in 
aggregate in non-specified investments. 
 

Non-specified Investments Minimum Credit Criteria 
Investment 

Limit / Max. % 
of total 

investments 
Max. maturity period 

Term deposits – UK government 
(maturities in excess of 1 year) n/a £4,000,000  

(> 364 day limit) 5 years 

Term deposits – other LAs / Parish 
Councils (maturities in excess of a 
year) 

n/a £4,000,000  
(> 364 day limit) 

To be determined on an 
individual case basis, 
inclusive of options for the 
Council to review terms at 
specified periods of time (no 
greater than 5 years) 

Term & Callable deposits – banks 
and building societies (maturities in 
excess of 1 year) 

Based on Capita 
Creditworthiness analysis. 
Lowest Band – PURPLE 
Sovereignty Rating -AAA 

£4,000,000  
(> 364 day limit) 2 years 

Collateralised Deposit 

Based on Capita 
Creditworthiness analysis. 
Band – YELLOW 
Sovereignty Rating -AAA 

£5,500,000            
(as per Yellow 
limit) 

5 years 

Commercial Paper 

Based on Capita 
Creditworthiness analysis. 
Lowest Band – GREEN 
Sovereignty Rating -AAA 

£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

1 year 

UK Government Gilts – all maturities Long term AAA 
£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

2 years 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks  - all maturities Long term AAA 

£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

2 years 

Bonds issued by a financial institution 
which is guaranteed by the UK 
government – all maturities 

Long term AAA 
£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

2 years 

Sovereign bond issues (i.e. other than 
the UK govt) – all maturities Long Term AAA 

£2,700,000 
(10% of highest 
balance) 

2 years 

Treasury Bills – all maturities n/a 
£4,000,000 
(15% of highest 
balance) 

1 year 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155



Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs): 

Non-specified Investments Minimum Credit Criteria 
Investment  Limit/ 

Max. % of total 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

    1. Government Liquidity        
Funds – all maturities  AAA rated £4,000,000 (15% of 

highest balance) 2 years 

    2. Money Market Funds –   
all maturities AAA rated £5,500,000 (20% of 

highest balance) 2 years 

    3. Enhanced cash funds –  
all maturities AAA rated £2,700,000 (10% of 

highest balance) 2 years 

    4. Gilt Funds – all maturities AAA rated £2,700,000 (10% of 
highest balance) 2 years 

 
 

Page 156



ANNEX 4 
UK Interest Rate Forecast (Capita) 

 
 

Capita Asset Services Interest Rate View

Mar-17 Jun-17 Sep-17 Dec-17 Mar-18 Jun-18 Sep-18 Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20

Bank Rate View 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75%

3 Month LIBID 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.30% 0.40% 0.50% 0.60% 0.70% 0.80% 0.90%

6 Month LIBID 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 0.50% 0.60% 0.70% 0.80% 0.90% 1.00%

12 Month LIBID 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.80% 0.80% 0.90% 1.00% 1.10% 1.20% 1.30% 1.40%

5yr PWLB Rate 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70% 1.70% 1.80% 1.80% 1.90% 1.90% 2.00% 2.00%

10yr PWLB Rate 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70%

25yr PWLB Rate 2.90% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40%

50yr PWLB Rate 2.70% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20%

Bank Rate

Capita Asset Services 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75%

Capital Economics 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

5yr PWLB Rate

Capita Asset Services 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70% 1.70% 1.80% 1.80% 1.90% 1.90% 2.00% 2.00%

Capital Economics 1.60% 1.70% 1.90% 2.00% 2.10% 2.20% 2.30% 2.40% 2.50% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00%

10yr PWLB Rate

Capita Asset Services 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70%

Capital Economics 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40%

25yr PWLB Rate

Capita Asset Services 2.90% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40%

Capital Economics 2.95% 3.05% 3.05% 3.15% 3.25% 3.25% 3.35% 3.45% 3.55% 3.65% 3.75% 3.95% 4.05%

50yr PWLB Rate

Capita Asset Services 2.70% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20%

Capital Economics 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90%

P
age 157



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

14th February 2017 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1- Internal Audit Charter 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”.  

 
1.2 The Audit Charter provides a framework for the operation of the Internal Audit 

service and is required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), 
which came into effect on 1st April 2013. PSIAS require the Charter to be 
approved by the ‘Board’, which for the Council’s purpose is the Audit & 
Regulatory Committee. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 That the Committee approve the Council’s updated Internal Audit Charter. 

 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s 

purpose, authority and responsibility. The Charter establishes Internal Audit’s 
position within the organisation, including the nature of the Audit Manager’s 
functional reporting relationship with the Audit Committee; authorises access 
to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of 
engagements; and defines the scope of Internal Audit’s activities. 

 

TITLE:   Internal Audit Charter 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR/ Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER:  Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services 
   
CONTACT OFFICER:  John Leak – Internal Audit Manager 
  
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 159

Agenda Item 13



  

3.2 The Internal Audit Charter has been updated to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the revised PSIAS effective from 1st April 2016 and is 
attached as Appendix 1. 
 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 

Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure value for money and 
effective use of financial resources.  

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 Approve the updated Internal Audit Charter (Recommended). The Council will 

have a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility and is in accordance with the requirements of Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards, and therefore the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015. 

 
5.2 Do not approve the updated Internal Audit Charter (Not Recommended). The 

Council will not be complying with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
requirement to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. 
 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
None 
 

6.5 Legal 
None 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
Not applicable 

Page 160



  

 
6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
None 
 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 

Internal Audit John Leak 
Audit Services Manager 
Tel: (01538) 395695 
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

Page 161

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


  

7. Background and Detail 
 
7.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) replaced the Code of 

Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006 with effect from 
1st April 2013. Whilst being generally similar to the CIPFA Code of Practice 
there are some additional requirements and changes in emphasis from the 
previous requirements. PSIAS have subsequently been revised from 1st Aril 
2016 to incorporate the Mission of Internal Audit and Core Principles for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. 

 
7.2 The Internal Audit Charter provides a framework for the operation of the 

Internal Audit service and is required by the PSIAS. PSIAS require the Charter 
to be approved by the ‘Board’, which for the Council’s purpose is the Audit & 
Regulatory Committee.  

 
7.3 The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s 

purpose, authority and responsibility. The PSIAS require that it should: 
 

• recognise the mandatory nature of the PSIAS; 
• define the scope of internal audit activities; 
• establish the responsibilities and objectives of internal audit; 
• establish the organisational independence of internal audit; 
• establish the accountability, reporting lines and relationships between the 

Audit Manager and the Audit Committee and those to whom the Audit 
Manager reports to functionally and administratively; 

• set out the responsibility of the Audit Committee and also the role of the 
statutory officers with regards to internal audit; 

• set out the arrangements that exist within the organisations anti-fraud and 
anti-corruption policies, requiring the Audit Manager to be notified of all 
suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety, to inform the 
annual internal audit opinion and the risk-based plan; 

• recognise that internal audit’s remit extends to the entire control 
environment of the organisation and not just financial controls; 

• establish internal audits right of access to all records, assets, personnel 
and premises, including those of partner organisations where appropriate, 
and its authority to obtain such information and explanations as it 
considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. 

 
7.4 The PSIAS also specifies that the Internal Audit Charter must: 

 
• define the terms “board” and “senior management” for the purposes of 

internal audit activity; 
• cover the arrangements for appropriate resourcing; 
• define the role of internal audit in any fraud related work; and 
• include arrangements for avoiding conflicts of interest if internal audit 

undertakes non-audit activities. 
 
7.5 The current Internal Audit Charter was previously approved by this Committee 

in June 2015. The Charter has therefore been reviewed and amended in line 

Page 162



  

with the revised PSIAS to incorporate the Mission of Internal Audit and Core 
Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (Appendix 1). 

 
7.6 The Internal Audit Charter will be reviewed periodically or in the event of any 

significant changes. Updated versions will be submitted to the Audit & 
Regulatory Committee for approval when required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
 

  

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Charter 
 
 

 
January 2017 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 165



 

Internal Audit Charter January 2017 Table of Contents 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
            
            
 

  PAGE 
  

   
 INTRODUCTION………………………………………………………………………………… 1 
   
 MISSION, DEFINITION & PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDIT…..…………………………. 1 

   
 STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS………………………………………………………………. 1 
  

 INDEPENDENCE………………………………………………………………………………... 2 
   
 AUTHORITY & RIGHTS OF ACCESS……………………………………………………….. 2 
   
 OBJECTIVES OF INTERNAL AUDIT………………………………………………………… 3 
   
 SCOPE…………………………………………………………………………………………... 3 
   

 RESPONSIBILITIES…………………………………………………………………………….. 4 
   
 OBJECTIVITY & CONFIDENTIALITY………………………………………………………… 5 
   
 INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES……………………………………………………………... 5 
   
 INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT…………………………………………………………… 6 
   
 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN………………………………………………………………………. 6 
   
 REPORTING ACCOUNTABILITIES…………………………………………………………... 7 
   
 QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME………………………………. 7 
   

Page 166



 

Internal Audit Charter January 2017 Page 1 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The internal audit charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. The charter establishes Internal Audit’s position within the organisation, including 
the nature of the Audit Manager’s functional reporting relationship with the Audit Committee1; 
authorises access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of 
engagements; and defines the scope of Internal Audit’s activities. 

MISSION, DEFINITION & PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
The Mission provided in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) is: 
 
“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, 
advice and insight.” 
 
The definition provided in the PSIAS is:  
 
“Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives 
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.” 
 
Internal Audit is therefore an assurance function which primarily provides an independent and 
objective opinion to the Council on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of its framework of 
governance, risk management and control. Internal Audit does this by conducting an independent 
appraisal of all of the Council’s activities, financial and otherwise. It provides a service to the 
whole of the Council and to all levels of management. 
 
Internal Audit will work in accordance with the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing as set out the the PSIAS: 
 
 Demonstrates integrity; 
 Demonstrates competence and due professional care; 
 Is objective and free from undue influence (independent); 
 Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation; 
 Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced; 
 Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement; 
 Communicates effectively; 
 Provides risk-based assurance; 
 Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused; 
 Promotes organisational improvement. 

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
The requirement for an Internal Audit function derives from local government legislation, including 
section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 which requires that all Local Authorities must 
“make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs”. More specific 
requirements are set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which require the Council to 
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control 
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance.”  
 
This authority is reinforced in the Council’s Financial Regulations and Procedure Rules. 

                                                 
1 The Audit Committee will fulfil the roles and responsibilities of “The Board” for the purposes of the PSIAS. 

Page 167



 

Internal Audit Charter January 2017 Page 2 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

INDEPENDENCE 
 
The Internal Audit service will remain independent of the systems and procedures which are 
subject to its review. Internal Audit will also remain free from interference by any element of the 
Council and the scope of its work will not be restricted in any way. 
 
To enable the auditors to perform their duties in a manner which facilitates impartial and effective 
professional judgements and recommendations, Internal Audit staff will not be responsible for 
activities outside of Internal Audit’s main responsibilities. All audit staff will act with due 
professional care ensuring that they are fair and objective, free from any conflicts of interest and 
abide by professional standards and guidelines. 
 
In seeking to provide an independent and objective opinion it is accepted that, being located within 
the organisation, the Internal Audit function cannot be wholly independent of all management. 
Internal Audit’s independence will therefore be achieved through its organisational status and from 
the fact that the Audit Manager has no other areas of responsibility other than the Internal Audit 
function.  
 
The Audit Manager reports to the Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer 
(s151 Officer) but has the right to report directly to the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer, Chair 
of the Audit Committee or External Auditor where it is deemed necessary. The Executive Director 
(Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer has other areas of responsibility which may 
compromise their independence when these areas are subjected to audit, where this occurs the 
Audit Manager can invoke the right to report directly to others.   
 
The Audit Manager will make the Audit Committee aware if the independence of Internal Audit is 
impaired or appears to be impaired. The nature of such a disclosure will depend upon the nature 
of the impairment.  
 
Audit advice and recommendations, including where Internal Audit has been consulted about 
system, policy, procedure development or significant changes to the internal control systems, are 
given without prejudice to the right of Internal Audit to review and make further recommendations 
on the relevant policies, procedures, controls and operations at a later date. 
  
The Internal Audit service determines its work priorities in consultation with Senior Management 
Team (ALT2), the s151 Officer and the Audit Committee and the Audit Manager reports to the 
Audit Committee in relation to the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan, the Internal Audit Annual 
Report and periodic updates of Internal Audit work. 
 
The Audit Manager is responsible for the content of all written reports produced by the service and 
has the right to report in his own name and offer an audit opinion without “fear or favour” to all 
officers and members and in particular to those charged with governance. 

AUTHORITY & RIGHTS OF ACCESS 
 
In order to perform their duties Internal Audit has the authority, supported by the Accounts & Audit 
Regulations 2015 and set out in the Council’s Financial Regulations and Procedure Rules, to:  
  
 access all Council premises at reasonable times; 
 access all assets, records, documents, correspondence and control systems; 
 receive any information and explanation considered necessary concerning any matter under 

consideration; 
 require any employee of the Council to account for cash, stores or any other Council asset 

under his or her control; 
 access records belonging to third parties, such as contractors, when required; and 
 directly access the Chief Executive, Executive, Standards and Audit Committees. 

                                                 
2 The Alliance Leadership Team will fulfil the roles and responsibilities of “senior management” for the purposes of the 
PSIAS. 

Page 168



 

Internal Audit Charter January 2017 Page 3 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

Where necessary such unrestricted rights of access may be called upon and should be granted to 
Internal Auditors on demand and not subject to prior notice or approval. All employees are 
required to assist Internal Audit in fulfilling its roles and responsibilities.  
  
The Internal Audit service will comply with any requests from External Auditors for access to any 
information, files or working papers obtained or prepared during audit work that they need in order 
to discharge their responsibilities. 

OBJECTIVES OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
The objective of the Internal Audit service is to give assurance to the Council on the adequacy of 
its governance arrangements. The key elements of this are: 
 
 to provide advice and support to ensure an effective control environment is maintained 

including completeness, reliability and integrity of financial, performance, risk and other 
management information and the methods for safeguarding assets; 

 to contribute to the achievement of corporate objectives by recommending improvements in 
control and performance of the systems established to ensure compliance with corporate and 
departmental policies and procedures and legislative requirements; and 

 to provide advice and guidance to ensure Managers have developed effective arrangements to 
promote appropriate ethics and values within the Council and arrangements to prevent and 
detect fraud and corruption. This will include input into the key policies such as Financial 
Regulations and Procedure Rules and Anti-fraud and Corruption Policies. 

SCOPE 
 
All of the Council’s activities, regardless of funding source, may be subject to review by Internal 
Audit as Internal Audit’s remit allows for unrestricted coverage of the Authority’s entire control 
environment taking into account the Authority’s assurance and monitoring mechanisms, including 
risk management arrangements, for achieving the Council’s objectives. This does not imply that 
all systems will be subjected to review in any given year, but that all systems will be included in the 
audit planning process and hence be considered for review following the assessment of risk. 
 
The scope of audit work extends to services provided through partnership arrangements and 
necessary assurances will be derived either directly or by seeking reliance on assurances 
provided by others. Where relevant, appropriate access rights will be negotiated and included in 
contracts and partnership agreements to ensure that Internal Audit can obtain access to the 
personnel and records within the partner organisation to obtain the necessary assurances. 
 
It is not the remit of the Internal Audit service to question the appropriateness of policy decisions. 
However, the service is required to examine the management arrangements of the Council by 
which such decisions are made, monitored and reviewed, how polices are applied by the Council 
and also compliance with agreed policies.  
 
The Internal Audit service may also conduct special reviews, providing independent and objective 
services such as consultancy and fraud related work as requested by Management. Due 
consideration will be given when planning this work to ensure that the service maintains its 
objectivity and independence. The impact of any additional work outside of the audit plan will be 
taken into account and where necessary reported to the s151 Officer and the Audit Committee. 
 
Internal Audit does not have responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud or corruption. 
It is the responsibility of all Managers to manage the risk of fraud by ensuring appropriate 
procedures are put in place to prevent and detect fraud. Internal Auditors will however, be alert in 
all their work to risks and exposures that could allow fraud or corruption to occur and to any 
indications that fraud or corruption may have been occurring. Audit procedures alone, even when 
performed with due professional care, cannot guarantee that fraud or corruption will be detected. 
Internal Audit will investigate any suspected fraud and corruption arising from their work and may 

Page 169



 

Internal Audit Charter January 2017 Page 4 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

also be requested by management to assist with the investigation of suspected fraud and 
corruption. 
 
In line with the Council’s Anti-fraud and Corruption Framework, the Audit Manager should be 
notified of all suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety within the Council. Where 
relevant the Internal Audit service will advise and assist Managers in the investigation of the fraud 
and corruption.  

RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Council has a responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of 
the governance arrangements and producing an Annual Governance Statement.  The review of 
the effectiveness of the governance arrangements is informed by: 
 
 the work of the internal auditors;  
 information from managers within the Authority who have responsibility for the development 

and maintenance of governance arrangements; and 
 comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 
 
To assist with this review the Audit Manager will produce an annual internal audit report 
summarising the areas that have been subject to Internal Audit review in the year. This annual 
report will include an opinion, based on the areas examined, on whether the Council’s governance 
arrangements, including those for economy, efficiency and effectiveness, are adequate and have 
been properly applied in the year. 
  
In order to provide the required opinion the Internal Audit service will undertake a programme of 
work which will aim to achieve the following objectives: 
 
 to appraise the soundness, adequacy and application of the Council’s system of internal 

control;   
 to determine the reliability and integrity of financial and other information including that used in 

decision making, and the methods used to identify, measure, classify and report such 
information; 

 to ascertain the extent to which the systems of internal control ensure compliance with 
established policies and procedures; 

 to ascertain the extent to which the assets and interests of the Council are properly controlled 
and safeguarded from loss; 

 to appraise the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are employed;  
 to investigate fraud and irregularities or significant breaches of the internal control system, 

where appropriate. 
 
Managers are responsible for ensuring that adequate internal control arrangements exist in 
relation to the risks facing their Services. They are also responsible for ensuring that staff are 
aware of processes and procedure rules required to operate the control systems. This 
responsibility includes the duty to continuously review internal controls and ensure that they 
remain suitable in design and effective in operation. The existence of Internal Audit does not 
diminish the responsibility of management to establish and maintain systems of internal control to 
ensure that activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and effective manner. 
 
Management can assist the process of Internal Audit by: 
 
 providing access at all reasonable times to premises, personnel, documents and assets that 

the auditors consider necessary for the purposes of their work; 
 giving information and explanations that are sought in the course of their work; 
 commenting on and inputting to the audit plan and the terms of reference for each review to 

ensure attention is focussed on areas of greatest risk or concern; 
 early notification of plans for change, including new operational systems and processes; 
 considering and responding promptly to recommendations in audit reports, either accepting 

and implementing recommendations or formally rejecting it and therefore accepting the risks 
involved in doing so; 

Page 170



 

Internal Audit Charter January 2017 Page 5 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

 ensuring agreed actions arising from audit recommendations are carried out in a timely and 
efficient fashion; 

 notifying the s151 Officer / Audit Manager immediately of any suspected fraud, theft, 
irregularity, improper use or misappropriation of the Authority’s property or resources. Pending 
investigation and reporting, the Director should take all necessary steps to prevent further loss 
and to secure records and documentation against removal or alteration; and 

 acting in line with the Authority’s disciplinary procedures. 

OBJECTIVITY & CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
Internal Auditors must demonstrate the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, 
evaluating and communicating information about the function or process being examined. They 
must make a balanced assessment of all relevant circumstances and not be unduly influenced by 
their own interests or by others in forming judgements. 
  
All Internal Auditors working in Local Government are required to comply with the Code of Ethics 
contained in PSIAS in addition to any requirements placed on them by the Council or any other 
Professional Body that they are members of. 
 
All records documentation and information accessed in the course of undertaking Internal Audit 
activities shall be used solely for that purpose. The Audit Manger and individual Internal Auditors 
(including contractors and external providers performing work on behalf of Internal Audit) are 
responsible and accountable for maintaining the confidentiality of the information they receive 
during the course of their work.  
 
Whilst Audit Reports are confidentially directed to the recipients named, they are subject to the 
provisions of the Freedom of Information Act and, as such, may be required to be made publicly 
available upon request.  Before responding to any request to make Audit Reports publicly 
available, or otherwise making them publicly available, the Audit Manager should be consulted 
and where necessary elements of the report can be redacted. Similarly, Audit Reports, or extracts 
from them, should not be included in, or appended to, any Council Report, nor should they be 
quoted as a background paper to any Committee Report without firstly consulting with the Audit 
Manager. 

INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES 
 
The Council has a duty to provide sufficient resources to allow an adequate and effective Internal 
Audit service to be provided. Where it is felt that the resources are inadequate to meet the 
objectives of the Internal Audit service, the Audit Manager will formally report this to the Chief 
Executive and s151 Officer, and, if the position is not resolved, to the Audit Committee.  
 
Internal Audit must be appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, qualification levels and 
experience, having regard to its objectives and to the PSIAS. The Audit Manager will hold a 
relevant professional qualification (CMIIA, CCAB or equivalent) and be suitably experienced. The 
s151 Officer will be involved in the recruitment of the Audit Manager. 
 
The Audit Manager is responsible for ensuring that Internal Auditors receive appropriate training 
and experience to fulfil their duties and that levels of professional competence are maintained via 
the use of continual professional development. 
 
Where necessary, access to appropriate specialists from other departments or external sources 
should be made available to the Internal Audit service to assist in any audit, project or 
investigation requiring detailed specialist knowledge. 
 
 
 

Page 171



 

Internal Audit Charter January 2017 Page 6 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT 
 
The Audit Manager is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Internal Audit service 
and fulfils the requirements of the “Chief Audit Executive” role required by the PSIAS. The Audit 
Manager will: 
  
 prepare an audit plan to review all relevant areas, and will update this plan if required to take 

account of changes in Council priorities and risks. The audit plan will be submitted to the Audit 
Committee annually for approval; 

 produce detailed audit programmes setting out the scope and objectives of each audit 
assignment, timescales and reporting arrangements; 

 ensure that work is completed to high standards in accordance with relevant professional 
standards; 

 ensure that a written audit report is produced for each assignment, giving an assurance 
opinion on the adequacy of the control environment and identifying actions to address any 
weaknesses; 

 ensure that audit reports are formally discussed with relevant Managers, an action plan is 
completed to reflect agreed actions and comments are recorded relating to each audit 
recommendation, together with the timescale for completion and the responsible officers. If a 
recommendation is not agreed by the Manager, this must also be stated; 

 ensure that follow-up work is undertaken to monitor the implementation of agreed 
management actions; 

 establish and maintain effective relationships with managers of all levels and obtain feedback 
from them on the effectiveness of the service; 

 establish and maintain effective relationships with the External Auditors; 
 develop and maintain a quality assurance and improvement programme covering all aspects 

of Internal Audit activity. 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
 
The work of the Internal Audit service is based on the delivery of a risk based annual Audit Plan 
and is conducted on a predominantly risk based systems audit approach. The Audit Manager 
prepares a new Audit Plan each year in line with the requirements of the PSIAS and this is 
presented to the Audit Committee for approval. 
 
The Audit Plan is derived from all of the areas that have been identified for review (the audit 
universe). Internal Audit undertakes a risk assessment of the audit universe based on an 
established best practice risk scoring model which takes into account a number of criteria 
including corporate strategic risks and risks identified from other sources of external and internal 
assurance. The Audit Plan is then determined based on the outcome of this process.  
 
Within the annual Audit Plan the Audit Manager will balance several key requirements. These 
include: 
 
 the performance targets for the service; 
 the need to ensure core financial systems are adequately reviewed to provide assurance that 

management has in place proper arrangements for financial control, on which the external 
auditors will place reliance; 

 the need to appropriately review all other strategic and operational systems; 
 having a contingency allowance to deal with unplanned work which may arise in the year 

including special investigations and consultancy. 
 
Achievement of the Audit Plan is a key priority for the Service. The Audit Manager will continually 
monitor the completion of the Annual Audit Plan. Where the Audit Plan is not being achieved the 
Audit Manager will be responsible for identifying the reasons for this and where possible take the 
necessary corrective action. 
 
 

Page 172



 

Internal Audit Charter January 2017 Page 7 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

REPORTING ACCOUNTABILITIES 
 
The Audit Manager reports to the Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer 
but has the right to report directly to the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer, Chair of the Audit 
Committee or External Auditor where it is deemed necessary. The Statutory Officers will support 
the work of Internal Audit and provide the necessary backing to ensure that key weaknesses are 
addressed and recommendations implemented and support Internal Audit’s position in upholding 
good governance within the Council. Statutory Officers should also ensure that the Internal Audit 
service is provided with all necessary advice, explanations and information needed for them to 
effectively carry out their role. 
 
The Audit Manager will present the annual audit plan to members of the Audit Committee for 
approval. Regular reports outlining progress against the Internal Audit Plan and summarising the 
assurances given for completed audits will also be presented to the Audit Committee. 
 
An annual report will be presented to the Audit Committee summarising the work undertaken 
throughout the year and providing an overall opinion on the Council’s internal control environment. 
This report is a key source of assurance for the Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 
The report will: 
 
 disclose any qualifications to that opinion together with the reasons for the qualification; 
 draw attention to any issues judged relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance 

Statement;  
 compare work actually undertaken with the work planned and summarise performance of the 

Internal Audit service against its performance targets. 
 
A written report will be prepared for every internal audit review and actions agreed with the 
relevant Manager. The report will be issued to the responsible Manager, Head of Service, Director 
and Chief Finance Officer. The report includes an ‘opinion’ on the adequacy of controls in the area 
that has been audited. Every Internal Audit Report is subject to a regular follow-up in accordance 
with the Audit Service’s formalised follow-up system, in order to ascertain whether the action 
stated by management in their response to the report has been implemented by the agreed due 
dates. Failure to agree or implement fundamental recommendations will be reported to the s151 
Officer, Chief Executive and the Audit Committee as appropriate. 
 
The Audit Manager will report to the s151 Officer any serious weaknesses or significant fraud 
identified from the course of Internal Audit work or reported to Internal Audit. The matter may also 
be reported to the Chief Executive, the external auditors and the Audit Committee as appropriate. 

QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 
 
The Audit Manager will develop and maintain a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
(QAIP) in accordance with PSIAS. The QAIP will form the basis of the annual review of the 
system of internal audit as required by the PSIAS. For Internal Audit services operating in Local 
Government proper practice is now deemed to be PSIAS plus the Local Government Application 
Note (LGAN). 
 
The QAIP will show conformance with PSIAS/LGAN requirements and will offer explanations 
where conformance with PSIAS/LGAN is not achieved. An action plan may be developed as a 
result of the QAIP to achieve or improve levels of conformance. The outcome of the review and 
any resulting action plan will be reported to the Audit Committee and a statement regarding 
conformance with the PSIAS will be included in the Internal Audit Annual Report.  
 
An independent external review of Internal Audit will be carried out as part of the QAIP at least 
once every five years.  
 
Where non-conformance with PSIAS/LGAN impacts on the overall scope or operation of Internal 
Audit activity the nature of the impact will be disclosed to the Audit Committee. Serious deviations 
from conformance will need to be considered for inclusion in the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



 
          
 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

14th February 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached - Appendix 1 Audit Reports Issued Between 1st 
September 2016 and 31st January 2017 

 Appendix 2 Internal Audit 2016/17 Progress Information 
as at 31st January 2017 

 Appendix 3 2015/16 Audit Recommendations 
Implementation 

 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to 
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. In 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit 
Manager must report periodically to the Audit Committee on the internal 
audit activity’s performance relative to its plan. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee note the progress information contained within this 
report. 

 
 
 
 

TITLE: 2016/17 Internal Audit Periodic Report 
September 2016 to January 2017 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive  
    Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  John Leak – Internal Audit Manager 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 175

Agenda Item 14



3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance 
information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2016/17 
financial year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and 
completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations 
made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management. 

 
3.2 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 100% of 

2016/17 audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. 
Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not 
corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an 
appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It 
should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to 
implement agreed recommendations. 

 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the 
Annual Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective 
use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money. 

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 There are no options to consider. 
 

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
None. 
 

 
 
 

Page 176



6.5 Legal 
 
None. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
None. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
None. 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
None. 
 

 
 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

None N/A John Leak 
Audit Manager 
Tel: (01538) 395695 
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

Page 177

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


7. Background and Detail 
 

7.1 Introduction 
 
7.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance 

information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2016/17 
financial year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and 
completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations 
made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management. 

 
7.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual 

risk assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2016/17 was 
agreed by this Committee at the 25th May 2016 meeting. The Internal 
Audit service also carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a 
contingency is usually built in. This unplanned work consists mainly of 
internal control consultancy work and special investigations into 
suspected fraud and irregularity. 

 
7.2 Audits Reports Issued & Status of Agreed Recommendations 
 
7.2.1 A summary of the Audit Reports issued during the period 1st September 

2016 to 31st January 2017 is shown in the table below. Further details 
of these audits outlining key issues and strengths and improvements 
are shown in Appendix 1. 

 
Service Audit Recommendations Assurance 

High  
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low  
Risk 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Bank 
Contract 

0 3 3 Satisfactory 

Visitor Services 

 

Tourism 0 0 4 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Capital 
Accounting 

0 0 0 Substantial 

Operational 
Services 

Street 
Cleansing 

0 2 7 Satisfactory 

Organisational 
Development & 
Transformation 

Social Media 0 0 7 Satisfactory 

Customer 
Services 

Housing 
Tenancy 
Allocation 

0 1 5 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Bacs Trans-
missions 

0 2 7 Satisfactory 

Environmental 
Services 

Food Safety 0 0 6 Satisfactory 

Operational 
Services 

Grounds 
Maintenance 

0 3 8 Satisfactory 

Page 178



Service Audit Recommendations Assurance 
High  
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low  
Risk 

Organisational 
Development & 
Transformation 

Performance 
Management 

0 0 2 Substantial 

Organisational 
Development & 
Transformation 

Risk 
Management 

0 0 3 Satisfactory 

 
7.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits in progress and completed 

during the current financial year including the current status of audit 
recommendations is detailed in Appendix 2.  All audit 
recommendations have been agreed, and to date 100% of 2016/17 
audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, 
Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate 
manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted 
that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 
recommendations. 

 
7.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit 

recommendation being allocated a risk, every audit completed has 
been given an ‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s 
assessment of the internal control environment. These assurance 
opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. The control 
levels are defined as follows: 

  
Control 
Level 

Definition 

Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve 
the objectives and controls are consistently applied. 

Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the 
most part, are consistently applied.  However, weakness in 
the design or inconsistent application of controls within a 
few areas put achievement of particular objectives at risk. 

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance 
with controls in a number of areas are such to put the 
system objectives at risk. 

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of 
controls, which leaves the system open to significant abuse 
or error. 

 
7.2.4 Appendix 3 is a summary of recommendations made in the previous 

financial year 2015/16 implemented to date. This information will keep 
Councillors informed of progress made to ensure that all previous year 
audit recommendations are implemented. Due dates for implementation 
of some previous year recommendations will fall into 2016/17 and 
beyond depending on when the audit was carried out so this appendix 
will show when those recommendations become due for 
implementation. In due course, all recommendations will fall due and it 

Page 179



will be possible to clearly identify which recommendations have not 
been implemented. 

 
7.2.5 To date 95% of 2015/16 audit recommendations that are due have 

been implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been 
identified and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be 
resolved in an appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor 
such cases.  It should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant 
Managers to implement agreed recommendations. 

 
7.3 Audits In Progress 

 
7.3.1 The status of audits that are currently in progress is shown in the table 

below. 
 

Service Audit Status 
Finance & 
Procurement 

Treasury 
Management 

Audit Complete. Management Response. 

Visitor Services Parking Audit in Progress. 

Assets Assets & 
Facilities 

Audit in Progress. 

Organisational 
Development & 
Transformation 

Human 
Resources 

Audit in Progress. 

Operational 
Services 

Sports 
Development 

Audit in Progress. 

Operational 
Services 

Housing 
Repairs & 
Maintenance 

Audit in Progress. 

Assets Commercial 
Properties 

Audit in Progress. 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 

Corporate 
Governance 

Audit in Progress. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Sundry 
Debtors 

Audit in Progress. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Budgetary 
Control 

Audit in Progress. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Recovery Audit in Progress. 

 
7.4 Progress against Audit Plan 
7.4.1 The current year to date has seen steady progress against planned 

audits and all of the audits in progress or nearing completion as 
detailed in 7.3 above will be completed soon. It is anticipated at this 
stage that a satisfactory year end position will be achieved. 

 

Page 180



7.4.2 Current key progress information is summarised in the following table, 
excluding unplanned work unless otherwise stated: 

 
Summary Progress Information to 31st January 2017 

Percentage of Audit Plan completed / substantially 
completed 

44% 

Percentage of Audit Plan In Progress 26% 

Number of recommendations made (including unplanned 
work) 

122 

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service 
Managers (including unplanned work) 

100% 

Percentage of recommendations implemented within 
agreed timescale (including unplanned work) 

100% 

 
7.4.3 Should recommendations have not been agreed, compensating 

controls exist or service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency 
of the current system for the benefit of service delivery. 

 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED BETWEEN 1st SEPTEMBER 2016 & 
31st  JANUARY 2017 

 
 
Bank Contract 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• Expenditure should be monitored and 

incorporated into the current budget 
monitoring process. 

• The volume of transactions should be 
verified prior to passing invoices for 
payment. 

• Prices should be agreed to the relevant 
pricing agreement / contract prior to 
passing invoices for payment. 

• No debit interest was incurred during 
2015/16; 

• Any credit balance on the NatWest account 
is invested overnight. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Authorisation     1  
NatWest Bank   1    
Allpay   1   1 
RBS Worldpay   1  1  
Total   3  2 1 
 

Page 183



APPENDIX 1 

Tourism 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined  in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
 • Tourism contributed almost £235 million to 

the High Peak’s economy and supported 
almost 3,400 jobs in 2015 according to the 
latest figures issued by STEAM (Sport 
Tourism Economic Assessment Model); 

• The economic impact of tourism has risen, 
including an increase in visitor numbers, 
visitor days totalled and employment 
supported by tourism; and  

• There has been a rise in the number of 
people coming to the area ‘off-season’ 
between 2009 and 2015. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Tourism Strategy     1  
Partnerships     3  
Total     4  

Page 184



APPENDIX 1 

Capital Accounting 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
 • Asset Registers are updated accordingly 

based on information supplied by Legal 
Services and surveyor valuations.  

• Valuations are carried out in accordance 
with RICS and guidance issued by CIPFA. 

• Asset Registers are password protected. 
• Adjustments for depreciation and 

revaluations are correctly recorded on the 
Integra system. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Not applicable       
Total       

Page 185



APPENDIX 1 

Street Cleansing 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• Procurement Procedure Rules should be 

followed in all instances where spend 
reaches appropriate levels. 

• A system of regular stock checks should be 
in place, with stock records being promptly 
updated. 

• Street cleansing strategy in place. 
• Performance regularly monitored. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Flare     1  
Overtime Payments     1 1 
Private Works     1 1 
Round Sheets     1  
Gully Cleansing     1  
Litter Bins   1    
Stock   1    
Total   2  5 2 
 

Page 186



APPENDIX 1 

Social Media 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
 • The Channel Shift project will consider the 

use of social media in increasing digital 
transactions. 

• The development of Service 
Communication Plans will consider the use 
of Social Media. 

• Social media sites are regularly 
monitored with responses issued promptly. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Social Media Guidelines     1  
Training     1  
Social Media Accounts     1 1 
Management of Social Media Accounts     2  
Performance Monitoring      1 
Total     5 2 
 

Page 187



APPENDIX 1 

Housing Tenancy Allocation 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• The Verification Checklist should be fully 

completed prior to the start of a new 
tenancy, clearly stating all documentation 
seen. The Verification Checklist form 
should also be updated to take into account 
current requirements. 

• The  Home-Options partnership between 
High Peak Borough Council, Derbyshire 
Dales District Council, Amber Valley 
Borough Council and Erewash Borough 
Council is expanding its membership in 
order to deliver greater choice to all those 
seeking housing and to enable people to 
make well-informed decisions about their 
housing options. 

• There are formal policies in place with 
regards Housing Allocations; 

• All void properties reviewed were advertised 
promptly. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Contract     1  
Application Validation Documents     1  
Welcome Letter     1  
Housekeeping     1  
Property Offer & Sign Up   1  1  
Total   1  5  
 

Page 188



APPENDIX 1 

Bacs Transmissions 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• The user access level for the APT and 

BACS Payment Services systems should 
be reviewed to ensure that an appropriate 
segregation of duties is maintained and 
administrator duties are limited to a 
minimum number of staff at an appropriate 
level. 

• Transmission processes are consistent 
across the Alliance. 

• Password controls have been improved for 
the APT system. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
System Access   2  1  
Submission Limits     1  
Smartcards     1 1 
Activity Logs     1  
Access to BACS Files     2  
Total   2  6 1 
 

Page 189



APPENDIX 1 

Food Safety 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
 • Performance Indicator ‘% of high risk 

premises (A-C) inspected per annum’ has 
achieved its 100% target rate for the past 
four years.   

• Performance Indicator ‘% of Food Premises 
compliant with the Food Standards Agency 
criteria’ has achieved in excess of 98% for 
the past four years. 

• The public can access Food Hygiene 
ratings for all food establishments via the 
‘Rate my Place’ website. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Interdepartmental Liaison     1  
Export Health Certificates     1  
Enforcement Policy     1  
Hygiene Improvement Notices     1  
Food Alerts     1  
Flare     1  
Total     6  
 

Page 190



APPENDIX 1 

Grounds Maintenance 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• Asset Lists should provide a complete and 

accurate record of all equipment items held 
by the service. 

• The income due to the authority in respect 
of the Cheadle Town Council service level 
agreement should be promptly invoiced in 
accordance with contractually agreed 
terms. 

• Procurement Procedure Rules should be 
followed in all instances where spend 
reaches appropriate levels. 

• Staff training appropriately undertaken and 
documented. 

• Regular monitoring checks undertaken. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Asset Lists   1    
Cheadle Town Council SLA   1  1  
Housing SLA     1  
Playground Inspection SLA’s     3  
Payment Terms     1  
Authorisation of Documentation     1  
Procurement   1    
Commercial Opportunities      1 
Total   3  7 1 
 

Page 191



APPENDIX 1 

Performance Management 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
 • There is a four year Corporate Plan in place, 

detailing the Council’s aims and key 
priorities.  

• Service Plans have been documented and 
are directly linked to the Corporate Plan. 

• A new performance framework is in place to 
measure the delivery of the Corporate Plan.  

• Performance results are effectively 
scrutinised and regularly reported to senior 
officers and members highlighting any off 
track’ PI’s and celebrating improvements. 

• Performance outcomes are compared with 
other Councils. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
PI Data Security     2  
Total     2  
 

Page 192



APPENDIX 1 

Risk Management 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
 • The new Alliance Risk Management strategy 

was approved by the Audit and Regulatory 
Committee in February 2016. 

• Major overhaul of all risk registers 
(November 2015) focussing on genuine risk.  
This was as a result of external challenge 
through Zurich and sector learning through 
ALARM membership (the public risk 
management association). 

• The Risk Management Group meet on a 
regular basis to discuss risk management 
issues. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Risk Management Strategy     1  
Risk Management Fund     2  
Total     3  
 

Page 193



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2016/17 PROGRESS INFORMATION AS AT 31st JANUARY 2017 
AUDIT TOTAL 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
HIGH RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
MEDIUM RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
LOW RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
ASSURANCE OPINION / 

COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 
value 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date  

Housing Rents 5 2 0  0 0 2  0 0 5  0 0 Satisfactory 
Democratic Services 11 3 0  0 0 0  0 0 14  0 0 Satisfactory 
CCTV 9 1 0  0 0 2  1 1 8  4 4 Satisfactory 
Right to Buy 4 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  2 2 Satisfactory 
Taxi Licensing 15 8 1  1 1 6  6 6 16  10 10 Limited 
Bank Contract 5 1 0  0 0 3  0 0 3  0 0 Satisfactory 
Tourism 4 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  1 1 Satisfactory 
Capital Accounting 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 
Street Cleansing 7 2 0  0 0 2  0 0 7  0 0 Satisfactory 
Social Media 5 2 0  0 0 0  0 0 7  0 0 Satisfactory 
Housing Tenancy Allocation 6 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  3 3 Satisfactory 
Bacs Transmissions 8 1 0  0 0 2  0 0 7  1 1 Satisfactory 
Food Safety 6 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 6  0 0 Satisfactory 
Grounds Maintenance 10 1 0  0 0 3  0 0 8  1 1 Satisfactory 
Performance Management 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 Substantial 
Parking               Work In Progress 
Assets & Facilities               Work In Progress 
Human Resources               Work In Progress 
Sports Development               Work In Progress 
Risk Management 3 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 3  0 0 Satisfactory 
Treasury Management               Management Response 
Housing Repairs & Maintenance               Work In Progress 
Commercial Properties               Work In Progress 
Corporate Governance               Work In Progress 
Sundry Debtors               Work In Progress 
General Ledger               Work In Progress 
Recovery               Work In Progress 

                
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 122 1    21    100     
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  1 1  7 7  22 22  

 
Key: 

Risk   Class  
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 
Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer. 

     
Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 

information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 195



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2015/16 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS IMPLEMENTATION 

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

HIGH RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

MEDIUM RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

LOW RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 
value 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date  

Housing Rents 6 0 0  0 0 3  2 2 3  2 2 Satisfactory 
Health & Safety 5 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 2  2 2 Satisfactory 
Transparency Agenda 12 1 0  0 0 9  8 8 4  3 3 Limited 
Leasing 4 0 0  0 0 3  0 0 1  0 0 Limited 
Safeguarding Children & VA 6 1 0  0 0 3  3 3 4  4 4 Satisfactory 
Markets 7 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 5  4 4 Satisfactory 
Elections 11 4 0  0 0 3  3 3 12  12 12 Satisfactory 
VAT 4 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  3 3 Satisfactory 
Waste Collection 4 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  5 5 Satisfactory 
Development Control 5 1 0  0 0 3  2 2 3  0 0 Satisfactory 
Enforcement 19 4 0  0 0 3  3 3 20  14 13 Satisfactory 
Env Health Licensing 6 2 0  0 0 1  1 1 7  6 5 Satisfactory 
Pavilion Gardens TIC/Shop/Gallery 14 3 0  0 0 6  5 5 11  10 10 Limited 
ICT Asset Management 6 0 0  0 0 3  1 1 3  3 3 Satisfactory 
Housing Agency 3 1 0  0 0 1  1 1 3  2 2 Satisfactory 
Insurance 7 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 7  3 3 Satisfactory 
General Ledger 10 1 0  0 0 2  1 1 9  4 4 Satisfactory 
Peak District Partnership 5 2 0  0 0 3  2 2 4  0 0 Satisfactory 
Treasury Management 3 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 Satisfactory 
Procurement 9 3 0  0 0 3  2 2 9  5 5 Satisfactory 
Budgetary Control 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Substantial 
Regeneration 4 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 4  3 3 Satisfactory 
Carelink 6 2 0  0 0 1  1 1 7  4 4 Satisfactory 
Payroll 9 3 0  0 0 1  1 1 11  7 7 Satisfactory 
Sundry Debtors 2 2 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  4 4 Satisfactory 
Recovery 10 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 9  3 3 Satisfactory 
Creditor Payments 6 1 0  0 0 3  3 3 4  3 3 Satisfactory 
Housing Strategy 1 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 Satisfactory 
NNDR 6 3 0  0 0 2  0 0 7  7 3 Satisfactory 
Council Tax 8 2 0  0 0 2  1 0 8  8 4 Satisfactory 
Capital Contract Management 7 1 0  0 0 3  3 3 5  5 5 Satisfactory 
Housing Planned Maintenance 6 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 4  3 3 Satisfactory 
Housing Benefits 6 1 0  0 0 5  5 5 2  2 2 Limited 
One Stop Shops 10 2 0  0 0 0  0 0 12  10 10 Satisfactory 

                
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 274 0    73    201     
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  0 0  54 53  146 136  

Key: 
Risk   Class  
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 
Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer. 

     
Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 

information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 197



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 199

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting
	AUDIT AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

	4 Annual Audit Letter 2015/16
	5 Annual Grant Certification Letter 2015/16
	6 External Audit Plan 2016/17
	7 External Audit - Informing the Risk Assessment 2016/17
	8 Amendments to Accounting Policies
	Contact
	Location
	Background Papers

	9 Appointment of External Auditors - Public Sector Audit Appointments Opt-In
	HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
	Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee

	Appendices Attached
	Appendix 1 Opt-in Letter and Appendix: Appointing an External Auditor – Information on the National Scheme
	Appendix 2 Appointing Person: Frequently Asked Questions
	Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
	Workforce
	Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
	Financial Considerations
	Legal
	Sustainability
	Internal and External Consultation
	Risk Assessment
	ANDREW P STOKES
	Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
	Contact details
	Location
	Web Links and
	Background Papers
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	10 Annual Governance Statement - Progress against 2015/16 Action Plan
	Appendices Attached
	Appendix 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2015-16 Action Plan Update
	Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
	Workforce
	Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
	Financial Considerations
	Legal
	Sustainability
	Internal and External Consultation
	Risk Assessment
	ANDREW P STOKES
	Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
	Contact details
	Location
	Web Links and
	Background Papers
	Appendix 1

	11 Treasury Management Update - Mid-Year Report 2016/17
	ANDREW P STOKES
	Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
	Contacts
	Location
	Background Papers
	High Peak Borough Council

	12 Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2017/18
	ANDREW P STOKES
	Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer

	Contacts
	Location
	Background Papers

	13 Internal Audit Charter
	HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
	Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee

	Appendices Attached:
	Appendix 1- Internal Audit Charter
	Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
	Workforce
	Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
	Financial Considerations
	Legal
	Sustainability
	Internal and External Consultation
	Risk Assessment
	ANDREW P STOKES
	Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
	Contact details
	Location
	Web Links and
	Background Papers
	Appendix 1
	Internal Audit Charter
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	IntRODUCTION
	MISSION, DEFINITION & PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDIT
	STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS
	INDEPENDENCE
	RESPONSIBILITIES
	OBJECTIVITY & CONFIDENTIALITY
	Internal Audit Resources
	INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT
	INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
	Reporting Accountabilities
	QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME



	14 2016/17 Internal Audit Periodic Report September 2016 to January 2017
	Appendices Attached - Appendix 1 Audit Reports Issued Between 1st September 2016 and 31st January 2017
	Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
	Workforce
	Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
	Financial Considerations
	Legal
	Sustainability
	Internal and External Consultation
	Risk Assessment
	ANDREW P STOKES
	Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
	Contact details
	Location
	Web Links and
	Background Papers
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Class

	Appendix 3
	Class


	16 To approve the Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting

